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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust plc is to maximise shareholdzrs’
total returns by investing in the shares and securities of property companies and property
related businesses intemnationally and also in investment property located in the UK.

Introduction
TR Property investment Trust plc (the “Company™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated property investor

since 1382. The Company is an Investment Trust and its shares are prernium listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Benchmark
The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling.

Investrnant Policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by investing in shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses on an international basis, although, with a Pan-European benchmark, the majority of
the investments will be located in that geographical area. The Company also invests in investment property located
in the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset Allocation Guidelines and policies regarding the use of gearing are
set out in the Strategic Report on pages 24 to 25 and the entire portfolio is shown on page 16.

Investment Manager

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company's alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River Capital LLP ("he Portfolio Manager” or "the Manager").
Marcus Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolio since 1 April 2011 and been part of the Fund Management
team since 1997

Independent Board

The directors are all independent of the Manager and meet regularly to consider investment strategy, to monitor
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies and to review performance, Details of how the Board
operates and fulfils its responsibilities are set out in the Report of the Directors on page 41.

Performance

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out opposite and Historical Performance can be found on
page 2. Key Performance Indicators are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 26 and 27.

Retail Investors advised by [FAs

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that its shares can be recommended by Independent Financial
Advisers ("iFAs") in the UK to ordinary retail investors in accordance with the Financial Conduct Autharity (“FCA")
rules in relation to non-mainstream investment products and intends to continue to do so. The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply to non-mainstream investment products, because they are shares in an

authorised investment trust.
Further information

Genera! shareholder information and details of how to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be found on pages 99 to 102. This information can also be
found on the Trust's website wavyy.trproperty.com




Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended

31 March 3 M‘drc %o
2019 W02 Crange
Balance Shaet
Net asset value per share 418.54p 395864p +5.8%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,328,254 1,255,559 +5.8%
Sharas in issue at the end of the year (m) 3174 3174 +0.0%
Net debt'® 10.0% 14.6%
Share Price
Share price 391.0uUp 382.5Cp +3.0%
Market capitalisation £1,250m  £1,214m +3.0%%
Yaarendal Yaar erdad
31 %arch 31 March 2
293 2013 Crargs
Ravanusg
Revenue eamings per share 14.55p 13.22p +10.3%
Dividends®
Interim dividend per share 4.80p 4.65p +5.4%
Final dividend per share 8.83p 7.55p +13.9%
Total dividend per share 13.50p 12.20p +10.7%
Parformance: Assets and Banchmark
Net Asset Value total return®® +8.1% +15.5%
Benchmark total return? +5.6% +10.2%
Share price total return*s +65.225 +25.5%
Ongoing Charges Ratio®®
Including performance fee +1.10% +1.48%
Excluding performance fee +0.63% +0.55%
Excluding performance fes and direct propeity costs +0.81% +0.61%

Net dabt s the total valua of fcan notes, loans (induding notionel exposura to CFDs) l2ss cash as a proportion of nat asset value,

Dividends per shars ara the dwidends in respect of the financial yaar ended 31 March 2019, An interim dividend of 4 90p was paid in
January 2013 A final dividend of 8.60p (2018: 7.550) will be paid on 30 July 2013 to shareholders on the ragister on 21 June 2013

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 20 Juns 2019

Tha NAV Total Return for the yaar is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividands are deemed to be rainvasted on the ex-divdend date as this 15 the protocol usad by the Company's benchmark and
ather indicas.

The Share Price Total Raturn is calculated by rainvesting the dividands in tha sharas of the Company from the ralevant ex-dwidend
data.

Ongoing Charges are calculatad in accordance with the AlIC methodology The Ongoing Charges ratios provided in the Company's Key
Information Document are calculated in line with the PRIIPs regulation which is different to the AIC methodology

Considerad to be an Alternativa Performanca Measura as defined on pags 89



Historical Performance

For th2 vaors 2adzd 31 March

N 700t ’ T4 LI o
Performance for the year:
Total Return (%)
NAWVA) -~405 52.6 15.4 -85 215 224 283 8.2 80 15.5 A1
Benchmark!® -486 60.6 15.2 -89 178 14,9 233 5.4 65 102 X
Shars Price(© 412 603 126 =95 258 377 295  -16 91 255 8.1
Shareholders’ funds
(E'm)
Total 400 538 670 588 684 803 1,010 1,665 1,118 1,256 1,328
Ordinary shares 324 478 531 470 684 803 1O 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,338
Sigmna shares(™? 76 122 138 118 - - - - - - -
Ordinary shares
Net revenue
(pence per share)
Earnings £.49 5.18 6.94 707 5.74 8.09 883 836 11.38 1522 14.53
Dividends<® 579 5.75 600 6.60 700 745 770 8.35 10.50 1220 13.50
NAV per share
{pence) 126,10 18520 20710 18360 21525 25494 31812 33556 325242 39584 413,34
Share price
{pence) 10600 15940 17710 15450 18630 24750 31050 235750 31450 38250 334.00
Indices of growth
Share pricet™ 100 150 167 146 176 233 293 281 297 35) in
Net Asset Value(® 100 147 164 146 171 202 252 266 280 314 352
Dividend Net®) 100 106 04 115 122 130 134 145 183 212 235
RPI 100 104 110 114 118 121 122 124 127 132 135
Benchmark (! 100 153 162 147 167 178 213 219 227 243 249

Figuras nawve been prapared In accordancs with 1IFRS

(A) The NAV Totai Retum for sach year is calculatad by reinvesing the dvidends in the assets of the Company fram the relevant ex-driderd date Dividends are deemed
to be rervesied at the avdividend date as this is the protocal used by the Compary's bencrmar< ard ather irdicas This is corsiderad to be an Alzsrmnative
Performar ce Measure as defired on page 82

{B) Benchmar< .ndex” composite iIncex comprising the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Deveiaped Eurnoe TR Inden up to March 2013, and therzaftac the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed Europe Capped Index Source. Thames River Capital

{C) The Snare Price Total Retumn s calculatad by rervesting the dividends in the sharas of the Compary from the :slavant ex-dividerd date.
(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and sigma shares wera redesignated as Ordinary shares on |7 Decamber 2012

(S) Dividends per share i the year 1o which their declarauon relates and rot the year they wera pad

(F) Share prices oriy These do not reflec: dividends pad.

(G Capital arly values. These do not raflect dividends paid

(H) Price orly value of the indicas sat out in (3) above
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Chairman’s Statement

Hugh Seabomn
Chairman

ntroduction

it has been a good solid year for the Trust. Even more so
given the haightened volatility amidst macro-economic
and political uncertainty. The Net Asset Value (NAV) total
return for the year of 9.1% was well ahead of the
benchmark at 5.6% and results in a five year annualised
return of 13.6%. The share price total return of 6.2%
exceeded the benchmark but was less than the NAV
growth due to a shight widening in the discount between
the share price and the asset value. in addition, the Trust
deliverad revenue growth of 10.3% and has now
increased B0.2% over the past five years equating to
+12.5% per annum.

The vear under review fell broadly into three phasas.
Share prices rose steadily through the early part of the
year and into the summer months. This was followed by
a drarmmatic change in mood as equity markets across the
globe sald off sharply for the remainder of 2018 on
concerns from the US/China trade war escalation through
to more localised geo-political issues. Hawever, the
beginning of 2015 has seen a resurgence in stock markets
as central banks from the Fed to the ECB have offered
dovish commentary away from further monetary
tightening. Real estate has bean a significant beneficiary
and the Trust's asset value has more than recovered from
the fall experienced in the last quarter of 2018.

The steady growth in underlying earnings has supported
returns whilst cur Manager has scught to navigate the
weakness of UK property equities when compared with
their Continental European counterparts. The other striking

feature has been the continued divergence of
performance between asset types with retail property the
clear underperformer cantrasting with demand for logistics
assats from occupiers and investors, which remains
unabated.

A consequence of the deferral of interest rate rises,
courtesy of the central banks, has been a renewed focus
on longer term income streams and in particular thase
which benefit from indexation. This theme, which

I raferred to last year, has contributed to strong
performance from property with these charactaristics
including healthcare and student accommaodation through
to residential Private Rented Sector (PRS) and
supermarkats.

The value of our physical property portfolio, which
represents less than 10% of the assets, also reflected the
demand for long lncome as our largest asset, The
Colonnadsas in Bayswater, was subject to an increase in
value led by the index-linked, long leased income from
our fargest tenant, Waitrose.

Ravengs Results and Dividend

The revenue increase of 10.3% has been driven by
healthy growth in the underlying dividends from our
Investments, more details are given in the Manager's
Report. The Board is dehghted to anncunce a similar
increase in the level of the full year dividend and is
recommending a final dividend of 8.60p per share
bringing the full year dividend to 13.50p.

Ravanus Qutionk
The early part of the current financial year is producing

consistent eamings which suggest modest growth for the
year ahead.

Of course, the usual caveats apply and indude earmings
being affected by a change in the tming of dividends
received arcund our year end and corporate activity. As we
have experienced in the past, a major variable is foraign
exchange rates as just over half our income is non-Sterling
denominated. This can have a significant impact on
earnings for the year.
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Net debt has been reduced from 14.6%, as reported at
the previous year end, to 10.0%. These figures include the
impact of CFD exposure. This reduction in gearing was
primarily due to histed companies being taken private at
significant premiums, however, gearing has been
mantained at this level since the year end in view of the
prevailing political uncertainty. All our revelving loan
facilities have been renewed so that further finance is
available if and wher an ncrease in gearing levels is

considered by the Manager to be beneficial.

Currancias
Currencies were less volatile over this financiai year than
during the pravious two years. Starling ended the year
marginally stronger than at the beginning. However, over

the year it fluctuated through a 7% range.

Our balance sheet currency exposurs remains hedgad in
line with the benchmark, however the income account is
un-hedged, therafora strengthening of Sterling will have an

adverse effect on our iNcome.

¥ skar2 ance discownt 1o caoital ol NAY

£. TR Property Share Price Total Return

Parformance: Total Return aver 103 yaars (tebased)

Mar-14  Mar-15  Mar-16  Mar-17  Mar-18  Mar-19

TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return

end Sharz Reourinasss

Discount
The discount® widened slightly during the year from 3.2%
to 5.3% at the year end. This range remains well within
the 10 year average of 7.1%.

No shares were repurchasad during the year.

Suzie Proctar retirad from thie Board in February 2019 and
I would like to racord the Board's thanks for her
contribution over the last six years. An experienced
recruitment consultant specialising in non-executive
directars is actively seeking another high calibre diregtor to
join the Board.

Outinn’

In Novernber, | concuded that whilst the ECB had
signailed its intantion to resume a more normaksad
interest rate cycle, this could well be defarred if economic
growth dampened. We now find curselves in that state of
affairs with global trade tensions and attention on
Germany, the European powerhouse, which is focused on
exports and hence global growth. Recent economic news
has been weaker than anticipated and this has
encouraged the ECB to remain dovish towards the tming
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of the next interest rate increase. Market expectations for
interest rate rises have therefore moved out to 2020 and
nossibly beyond, the longer end of the interest curve also
remains very subduad. For our companies the ability to fix
longer term debt at record low levels remains highly
attractive and helps the predictability of companies’
earnings.

in an environment where investars are seeking income,
property benefits from the characteristic of offering
relativaly high income returns, often growing with inflation.
Qur Manager continues to focus on real estate businesses
in arzas and sactors which offer the likelihood of rental
growdh. The divergence in performance between
companies with those attributes and the remainder has
widened to record levels. This does create the risk of the
most popular names becoming overbought and the least
popular are at risk of being oversold. Our Manager
remnains vigilant, k2eping a very close eye on eamings —
the bedrock of this asset class.

Cur confidence in the stability of earnings and the relative
attractiveness of the asset class versus other risk assets
offers little succour in the event of broader markat
weakness. The impact on the UK, and to a lesser extent
Continental Europe, inflictad by unprecedented levels of
political uncertainty may well only become apparent in
years to come. What we do know, at the time of writing,
is that we remain in a period cf great political uncertainty
and | take the opportunity to remind shareholders of the
broad pan Eurapean spread of our assets.

Hugh Seaborn
Chairman
6 June 2018



Manager's Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge MRICS
Fund Managar
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The Net Asset Value total return for the year of 9.1% was
ahead of the 5.6% benchmark total retumn. The share price
total return exceaded the banchmark at 6.2% but was less
than the growth in the NAV due to a slight widening in the
discount between the share price and the asset value.

Again | repart that our Continental European property
companies outperformed their UK counterparts. The
Continental European component of the benchmark, when
measurad in EUR returnad 10.6% whilst the UK names,
measured in GBP, coliedtively managed a paltry 0.6%.
Whilst this regional disparity was broad the general direction
of travel through the year was similar with both regions
initiafly enjoying positive returns in Q2 2018 followed by

a corrective phase for the secand half of 2018, Real estate
equities then participated with gusto in the Q1 2019 equity
rally fuelled by dovish commentary from the Federal
Resanve and the £CB.

While the macre concerns of heightened risk from a global
slowdown and tariff wars weighed heavily on equity
markets these concerns also depressed bond markets. Real
estate therefore continued to be appraciatad for its core
charactenistics of relatively high income often growing in fine
with inflation. However, property is a pro-cyclical asset class
and where the prospects for economic growth lock muted
or hard to predict the sector enjoys less suppert. Quite
simply when presented with the opportunity of choosing
exposure to the UK or Continental Europe, the Brexit factor
waighed heavily on sentiment regardiess of short term
performance indicators.

The second cverarching theme of the period was the
ongoing underperformance of retail property. The weakness
of the underlying asset class was magnified by the almost
universal peor balance shest management from listed
companties. Essentially, the vast majority of them have for

some time been overly optimistic about the prospects for
their assets. This is indefensible given that this sector's woes
are nothing new. There has been one exception which has
enjoyed both positive returns and even raised further capital
which 1 will elaborate on later in the report.

Running parallel to the deprassing saga for retail property
has been the positve momantum behind logistics property
equired to sustain the secular shift in consumer behaviour,
| report significant outperformance of all our companies
exposed to this market and cur averweight position in this
area, across ali geographies, was a kay drivar of
performance.

Elsewhare our performance was driven by overweight
positions in German residential, Swedish offices, Spanish
hotels and Parisian offices. The undenweight to shopping
centres across Continental Europe aided relative
performance but aven our Imited exposure in the UK still
hampered retums. The rationale behind aur exposure is
covered fater. Alternatives in the UK including self-storage,
student accommeodation and healthcare continued to add
value in the period. Safestore (our largest self-storage
exposure) was the top performing UK name returning
24.8%, Unite {our student exposure) returned 19.1% and
Target Healthcare 18%.

Our large undenveights to Switzerland and Belgium were
detractors to performance as these companies, all
produced, to varying degrees positive, if modest,
performance.

The Trust's UK ovenweight requires explanation. In summary,
F have been increasing expasure to index-linked, long-dated
and secure income streams. Although all our Continental
European companies have index-linked income, the
average lease length is much shoster than the growing list
of UX companies with these long-dated income streams.
We therefora have significant exposure to healthcare,
budget hotels, leisure and supermarkets, We remain under
exposed in terms of equities to Central London office, retail
and particularly residential prefering our own assets at
Wandsworth and Bayswater.

To cenclude en performance, | am pleasad to repart the
sale of our holding in Terreis. Jacqui Lorenzetti, a serial
property entrepreneur and 50% shareholder, began
assembling an unrivalied portfolio of high quality Central
Paris office buildings in 2010 having sold his pravious real
estate business with impeccable timing in 2007 In February
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this year, he announced an agreement to sell 80% of the
portfolio (€ 1.6bn) to Swiss Life and take the remainder of
the business private, thus buying out a!l minority
shareholders. The price (€ 58 per share) was a 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price and a 7%
premium to the net asset value, The holding equated to
2.3% of the Trust's assets and nearly 5% of Terreis. Qur
initial investments made in 2011 (€ 12-13 per share) were
augmentad over the intervening period, particularly when
small caps were out of favour even whilst fundamentals
were sound. This holding has been a poster child for our
strategy of backing strong management who are aligned
through their co-ownership and focused on a particular
submarket However, the gestation period for these types of
positions is always unknown. The portfalio has a number of
such holdings where the market continues to ignore their
fundamental qualiti=s, often citing size and liquidity as

a concemn. | therefore remain confident of being able to
quietly add to these names whilst they remain
unappraciated.

Offices

The performance of London offices continued to confound
the ‘Brexit bears’ with Knight Frank reporting take up of
14.8m sq ft in 2018, the highest since 2014. The numbers
were dominated by larger deals with 19 transactions over
100,000 sq ft, a record, against the long term average

of 12 In defence of those (induding ourselves) who felt
that traditional City tenants might defer property decisions,
the financial services sector's share of take up did indeed
slip to just 19%. The surprise has been the robustness of
the TMT sector as well as impressive growth in
pharmaceuticals and Ife sciences. In the Interim Report,

| highlighted the growth in the flexible office sector, this
accounited for 16% of all take up last year and now forms
over 5% of all London office stock. Quality of
accommaodation and flexibility of tenure are the watch
words and businesses are prepared to pay for it. It is difficult
to assess genuine net take up when so much of the
headline leasing is to flex operators who in tumn then need
to find real tenants to occupy the space. Demand
expectations have always been very tricky to predict. Supply
— at least the 2/3 year horizon — is easier to forecast and
there we take great comfort in the decreasing suppily profile
together with how much of this pipeline space is pre-let. Of
the current 11m sq ft under construction, 43% is already
pre-let. The consequence of this ambient market backdrop

is that rents have remained stable over the period,
particularly for high quality buildings. This in turn has
continued to attract overseas investment buyers, who
appear far less fazed by our potential departure from our
most significant trading partner. Transaction volumes remain
elevated (£16.3bn in 2018) 15% ahead of long-term
average. Overseas investors account for 83% of turnover
dominated, again, by Asian investors.

Paris experienced an overall slowdown in take up in 2018
versus 2017 and this was particularly the case in the more
suburban markets (defined as the Inner and Quter Rim).
Meanwhile La Defense and the CBD markets enjoyed year
on year growth and rising rents with a noticeable decrease
in tenant incentives. investor demand remained robust with
turnover reaching a new high of €2.4bn according to
ImmoStat as buyers remain drawn to the city wide vacancy
level dropping below 6%, a 10 year low. Yet the range of
vacancy levels remains broader in Paris than in other major
cities. The CBD recorded sub 3% whilst decentralised
focations such as Peri Defense and the Northern Inner Rim
and River Bend are still +109%.

Dublin continues to benefit from both Brexit concerns and
the near continuous growth from TMT occupiers attracted
by the fow corporate tax rate and well educated, youthful
oopulation. Take up reached a record 1.1m sq ftin

Q1 2019 and whilst supply has expanded back dose to alt
time highs of 4m sq ft, owr crucial pre-let measure remains
nigh at 49%. This remains a smali city enjoying boom times
again and our ownership of 3% of Green REIT, the largest
listed Irish REIT, reflects our positive views.

The seven largest office markets in Germany saw a
stowdown in take up in 2018 (4.0m sq m} when
compared to 2017 (4.3m sq m). However, both of these
years were significantly ahead of anything experienced in
the previous ten years. Lack of supply response combined
with the healthy take up resulted in vacancy rates dropping
even further and reaching sub 2% in Berlin and sub 3% in
Cologne and Munich.

As with the rest of European office markets such conditions
continue to underpin investor appetite with turnover for
office assets reaching € 2.9bn and prime yields tightening
further.

Madrid and Barcelona mirrored other markets having
shrugged off the political disruption from Catalonian
separatists. Much like Germany, take up was lower than
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2017 but higher than in any other year post the CGFC. The
vacancy profile is similar to Paris, with the CBD sub markets
enjoying strong reductions in vacancy whilst more
peripheral markets are still trying to get the percentage of
vacancy into single digits with the overhang of built space
from the boom times still to be absorbed.
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The travails of the reftail sector unfortunately remains work
in progress. [t feels like a drama box set where a new
season brings new viltains and more tragedy. What has
become increasingly apparent is that the consequences for
retail property of the secular shift in consumer behaviour
(to omni-channel retating) has bean underastimated by all
market participants. The compounding elerment in this saga
has been the uniquely Briush upward oniy rant raview
structure which was historically combined with much fongar
leases than in Continental Europe. With less turnover
through physical stores, retallers have focused on
rationalising their estates. The supply of available shops, as
retallers seek ta unload unprafitable units let on long leases
at historic high rents, has reached unprecedented levels.
The consequance has been both a dramatic fall in market
rent levels and a collective inability of retailers to rid
themselves of these liabilities. This has led to an explosion
in CVAs as a way of getting rid of unwanted liabilites and
resetting to market rents. Failure to secure agreement with
creditors far such valuntary administrations often leaves
companies with little altemative but to proceed to winding
up. Recent high profile cases include Debenharms, whilst
Arcadia are rumoured to be in discussion with creditors on
a CVA. None of this will be news to the Trust's sharsholders
as | have been comimenting on this issue for many years
now. The most racent manifestarion of the problem has
been the collapss in UK shopping centra investment
turnover with just £1.1bn recorded for 2018, the lowest
level since the nadir of the GFC in 2008. indeed three large
deals {Leicester, Tunbridge Weils and Clapham Junction)
accounted for 1/3 of the volurne with the remaining deal
size averaging just £2 1m. Quite simply, with the exception
of the (foohardy few, investors feel the uncertainty around
tenant affordability and hance the security of cashflows is
too great to justify increasing exposure.

The environment is a fittle differant across Continental
Europe. Online sales growth is slower and coming off a
lower base in all countries when comparad to the UK. We
are not complacant, the twin attractions of the onling

experience — price and convenience - will drive customer
behaviour. The difference in Continental Europe is simply
the current cost of physical retail space when comparad to
the UK. Leases are shorter and rents are index linked. Thers
is a much smaller gap (if any In some cases) between
market rents and passing rents. We fully anticipate thers will
be store rationalisaticn as online sales grow in importance
but the empirical evidence so far has been that retailers are
managing the process more successfully than in the LK
Having said that, investors do remain cautious and we
expect yield expansion (values to fall) in the coming
quarters. Although the Furopean shopping centrs landlords
performed relatively better than their UK counterparts, this
investor caution was reflactad in negative shara price
performance over the year.

In my opening statement | commentad on the one retail
stib-sector in the UK which has seen yield stability and price
rasilience and that is supermariets. Online grocery sales are
less than 6% of all food sales and the rate of growth has
been much slower than for hard goods. We are increasingly
confident that a physical store network is a crucial part of
the grocery online provision. However not all stores will be
part of that omni-channel approach. Identifying these
winners and losers is crucial and we have focused our
mvestment through a specialist vehicle, Supermarket
Income REIT. Unlike shopping centres there has been a raft
of supermarket transactions which gives us comfort on the
vatuation of our exposure.

Distiinution and Industrz!

Structural drivers for this asset class continue to offset any
concemns around the impact of a slowing UK economy.
Even the 2% fall in year-on-year manufacturing output
growth in 2018 failed to dent demand. Industrial take up of
units over 50,000 sq fi reached 37.8m sq ft, 3950 2head of
2017 driven by online ratailing. In fact the retail

sector — either direct or through 3PL (third party logistics)
accounted for 56%0 of all ‘big shed’ (+100,000 sq ft) take
up versus 39% in 2017, Prime rents across all unit sizes
experienced growth. The highest (+10% year on year
growth) was in the smaller, urban urits whilst the biggest
baxes saw much more modest growth.

Logistics remains the sector 'du jour' recording record yields
and investment volumes dose to the all tme fughs setin
2017 The £8.3bn of transactions recorded was 53% ahead
of the 10 year average. Supply continues to fall as new
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construction starts have not kept pace with the levels of
take up. However, we are seeing signs of broader regional
disparity with the autormotive heartland of the West
Midlands experiencing the deferral of decision making by
potential tenants. Maanwhile in the Thames Valley/Western
Cormdor take up in 2018 (5.6m sq ft) matched the strong
2017 figure. Both years were over 20% higher than the

15 year average of 4.6m sq ft

Rental growth remains more subdued across Continental
Europe but that is reflected in higher yields. Paris saw
logistics take up well ahead of the 10 year average but
lower levels than both 2016 and 2017. The rate of growth
and level of online penetration remains well below UK
levels and household consumption also slipped partially
impacted by the ‘gilet jaune’ pratests. However supply
shortages, particularly in the key metropalitan areas
underpins valuation and investar sentiment. Yields
continued to compress across all sizes of units.

Rasidenta!

German residential property, in the form of PRS (private
rented sector) rather than housebuilding remains the Trust's
largast single subscctor. Two factors underpin cur
confidence, affordability of rents which are rising in excess
of inflation but remain sub-market and the glacial pace cf
supply expansion. Germany enjoys neary full employment,
even with the ongoing economic slowdown and wage
inflation is ¢ 4%. The companies we invest in enjoy
occupancy levels above 58%. Demand continues to
outstrip supply aided by net migration which has stabilised
but is still elevated compared with previous decades.
Construction levels are picking up and the 280,000 units
completed in 2018 is a huge increase on the 150,000 low
point of 2008, However, the minimum requirad given
immigration, household formation and replacement is over
350,000 units per annum. Rents rermain heavily regulated
and construction cost inflabon has dampened profit
margins for contractors so we don't expect any dramatic
acceleration in supply.

Much of what I have stated has been our investment
rationale for a while. This year's reduction in exposure

nas been driven by our concerns over tenant activism
where rents have grown very quickly, principally in Berlin.
We responded early selling out of our fiolding in

ADO Properties and reducing exposure to the largest Berlin
landlord, Deutsche Wohnen. We have maintained our

holding in Phoenix Spree who are not deemed a significant
jandiord. We don't expect the authorities to even consider
the outlandish demands for property expropriation but
pressure to dampen the rate of (state controlled) rent rises
would be much more feasible and is indeed likely.

In Sweden we rerain drawn to the private rented sector,
aithough exposure is harder to find with only a couple cf
small cap investable opportunities, The market dynamics
remain similar to Germany with & large amount of poor
quality housing stock built in the 1970s in need of
refurbishment coupled with regulated rents. Population
migration towards the larger cities continues to drive
derand and rantal growth,

PRS in the UK remains embryonic compared to Germany
but it has attracted a huge amount of capital amongst long
term funders who see annuity style incorne streams. Our
experience through PRS REIT is that vacancy and
delinquency levels are much lower than expected, Tenants
will absorb rent increases, even consistently ahead of
inflation, if the quality of the product is high. We rernain
cautious on tondon values and rents. Qur only exposure is
through Telford Hames, a business which has evolved from
being a tugher risk ‘build to sell’ developer to being a lower
risk development partner for institutional investors creating
'build to rent’ portfolios. The commensurate drop in future
returns led to share price weaknass but we remain
comfortable with the business modet.

UK house prices continue to wane and the proverbial ripple
effect from London and the South East is visible ence again.
We see few positive price drivers and have minimised what
litthe exposure we had to regional residential landbanks,
primarily via St Modwen.

[ e
Altarnatives

Iintroduced this additional sector dlassification in the
Interim report. There are now several important asset
classes beyond the traditional areas of office, retail,
industrial/logistics and residential. The largest three are
student accommodation, self storage and healthcare.

Student accommaodation remains a core holding through
Unite Group which returned 19% in the period. The sector
has maturad since Unite's first purpose built student
building 28 years age and the estimated sector value in the
UK alone 1s now c.£50bn. Given the well flagged 39 fall in
the number of UK 18-20 year oids this year (‘the Millenium
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dip"), the drop of just —0.1% in university acceptances is
encouraging. Qverseas student numbers from non-EU
applicants are up strongly {+8.5%) but it was also
encouraging to see EU numbers rise by 2.8% given the
Brexit uncertainty. Looking fonwvard the rapid reversal of the
demaographic dip from 2021 and the steady growth in
university participation ratas (35% in 2015 to 38% in
2018) remain key positive tailwinds. Unite is constantly
impraving its portfolic (focusing on 22 key markets)
through its development pipeline alongside an exit strategy
from subscale locations.

Self storage, often viewad as the most economically
sensitive subsector had a stunning year with Big Yellow
(+18%} and Safastore, our Jarger ovenvaight, returning
24.8%. These two businesses dominate search engine
enquiries and the pericd saw both occupancy and rate
growth. The sactor continues to be ripe for consolidation
with a huge number of ‘'mem and pop' operations (less
than 10 stores) and both these businesseas have made
accretive corporate acquisitions. In Continental Europe we
saw the IPO of Shurgard, the largest pan Ewropean operator
whose business plan is predicated en sector consolidation.

Healthcara covers a broad range of use types from primary
(GP surgeries and hospitals) to elderly fiving {assisted,
nursing and acute). The commonality is the quality and
duration of income characterisad by a high level of implicit
or explicit state funding and almost always structured with
indexation. These characteristics have proved very popular
with investors and these stocks remain firmly in dermand,
Again, we have seen consolidation in this sector with the
merger of PHP and Medicx. Our nursing home exposure is
through Target Healthcare which focuses on the highest
quality accommadation with commensurate higher levels of
private funding.

The final area is sodial housing which we class as an
altarnative rather than part of the residential exposure given
that these companies are again valued as income streams.
We have not invested in tihis area due © concems over the
quality of operator and their exceptionally low margin
businesses. Both Civitas and Triple Point have delivered
negative returns since their respective IPOs,

Dept and Ecuy Markats

A slightly quieter period for real estate equity capital markets
with just four IPOs and alt of them focused on Continental
European markets. In the first half there were two modest

sized offers, Eurohox and Kojamo. Eurobox, a Lordon listed
cash box externally managed by the Tritax Big Box team
intends to replicate their UK vehicle investing in large
logistics properties but across Continental Europe as
opposed to the UK. They raised €300m and ara busily
investing the cash. The Trust did not participate as we have
multiple exposures to European logistics companies. The
stock returned —2 5% since 1PO 0 June 2018. Kojamo
raised € 150m in a mix of primary and seccndary in order
to expand their residential portfolio focused on Helsinkl. The
latter has enjoyed strong retumns post IPO whilst Eurabox
ramains subdued given the expectation that the external
managament model will result in further capital requests in
short order. October saw the largest 1P, albait where
existing shareholders maintainad significant positions,
Shurgard, Continental Europe's largest self storage business
now has a free float of € 500m and has performed strongly
post IPO. The Trust participated in the raise but sold the
position on valuation grounds more recently. On a more
medest scale, the Axiare management team having sold the
Business to Colonial (another listed Spanish property
company), launched Arima raising € 100m to invest in
Madrid and Barcelona offices requiring refurbishment. The
Trust's involvernent in Axiare was profitable and we backed
the management team at IPO in the new venture.,

There were a number of follow on raises in the periad
across Continental Europe. In Sweden, Hemfosa raised
SEK 1.0bn ahead of the propesad splitting of the business
into two vehicles, Hemfosa and Nyfosa. The largest raise
was € 995m by Vonovia, Continental Europe’s largest listed
property company who announced that they intended to
acquire control of a small residential business in Sweden,
Victoria Park. We expect them to expand much further in
this new market,

In the UK, Tritax Big Box raised £280m tc acquire 87% of
D8 Symmetry, a private logistics developer with a 2,500
acre (gross) logistics landbank. The Trust participated in the
sub-underwriting of this transaction earning £0.3m in fees.
Grainger, the private-rented rasidential portfolio operator
announced a rights issue 0 acquire a joint venture partner's
stake in their largest London-centric portfolio. Workspace,
the London focused office operator raisad £180m for
expansion and investment.

The smallest raise was by the cnly Continental European
listad student accommodation vehicle, Xior who raised
€ 8m for expansion. This company remains too smeall for us
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but we monitor it closely given our pasitive views on this
asset dlass.

Private equity was also busy elsewhers in the sector with
Kildare Partners successfully taking Technopolis, a small
Finnish owner of business parks, private for € 750m.

Debt markets continue to offer very attractive funding terms
but rmost of the debt raised in the period was refinancing as
opposed ta increasing overall loan to value ratios. This is
healthy given the maturity of the cycle. Total issuance in the
dabt markats by listed property companies totalled over
£12bn in the year, considerably less than the same period
last year (£19.5bn).

Prosarty Shares

Pan European property shares when viewed as two baskets,

UK and Continental Europe, both enjoyed a strong first
quarter of the financial year with returns close to 5%.
However, the second quarter saw a wide divergence of
perfarmance with the UK basket giving back all of the first
quarter gains and bocking a negative fotal return of 0.5%
over the six months. Continental Europe managed to hang
on to its first quartar gains. This divergence of perfarmance
persisted through the auturmnal market weakness and then
widened a little further in a Q1 2019 rally.

We attribute the particular weakness in the UK to two key
factors, overarching Brexit related concemns and the
accelerating deteriaration in the valuation of retail property
as retaller administrations and restructurings increased and
rents continue to fall. investors have focused not only on
the corporate charades surrounding Intu and Hammerson
(covered in the interim Report in Novemnber) but
increasingly on the scale of the over renting in the UK
versus Continental Eurcpe. UK landiords have historically
required longer leasas with five yearly review patterns whilst
Continental Europe saw shorter leases with indexation. The
consaguence is that as demand weakens there is far
greater ‘over renting’ in the UK than in Continental Europe.
The UK's woes have been compounded by much swifter
online penetration into sales than across Continental
Europe resulting in a collapse in demand for physical sales
space. Whilst the autumnal sell off was broad based we
were not surprised to see a much greater recovery in Q1
2019 in the European retail names than in the UK. In fact
the 12 month retums prove the relative resilience of the
European companies, with returns ranging from Klepierre
+4.4% to Unibail —15.5%. The latter was a particularly poor

performer as investors punished the company for what was
seen as iljudged expansion into the US via the takeover of
Westfield. However, these figures look relatively positive
when compared with the UK's retail companies who
endured 12 month returns of ~42% for Intu, —32.6% for
Hammerson and —46% for Capital & Regional.

The most surprising response has been in the London
office namas. Given the absence of a resolution to the
Brexit issue we had expected yield expansion (and falling
capital values) for London assets given that this globally
orientated city had the most t¢ lose in so many respects.
However, investors responded to the evidence of steady
tenant demand and intemational buyers continued to
acquire, taking advantage of a weak GBP and a long term
view of London's potental. The three pure play names
returned as follows: Denwent London +7.9%, Great
Portland +13.8% and Workspace +1.3%, the latter
subdued from its last raising which was in effect a thinly
veiled degearing.

Mearmwhile Paris, the second largest office market

(by value of listad companies) saw its office facused stocks
underperform even whilst the ile de France region
produced strong take up figures and supply remains tight,
partictilarly in central Paris. The exception was Terrais as
covered earlier.

The German residential sector remains the largest
sub-group in our universe and was a steady performer in
the period underpinned by sound fundamentals with
companies reporting close to full occupancy and rental
growth. With little opportunity to acquire significant
portfolics domestically the largest companies are either
looking to other countries (Vonovia acquiring in Sweden
and investigating oppartunities in France) or other sectors
with similar charactenstics (Deutsche Wohnen acguired
more elderly living assets). We remain happy with the
former's strategy particularly in Scandinavia but less
imprassed with the latter's drive into the already crowded
German elder care market.

The strongest performing region was Sweden with an
astonishing collective total return of 36.6%. Sweden doesn't
have a REIT regime and therefore property companies tend
to have higher levels of geanng as they are able to offset
the associated interest cost against tax, The combination of
a dovish central bank maintaining very low interest costs
and a strongly performing economy resulted in elevated
expectations of rental growth acrass all commercial property
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sectors particularly Stockhalm offices and logistics. The
higher level of gzaring then amplified these returns.

Of course gearing is no panacea and we remain vigilant for
signs of either an economic siowdown or the central bank
turning hawkish which seems unlikely at the moment given
the rhetoric from the Riksbank.

The logistics/industrial assat class was, once again, the
strongast performer and this was duly mirrerad in the listed
companies’ returns. This subset of our universe is however
becoming crowded and every company stands on
premiums to asset value, That is of course entirely
appropriate if thay continue to deliver market beating
returns. We are now focused on those businesses with an
arganic devalopment pipeling which can deliver much
higher vields o cost such as Segro, Argan, WDP and

VB Vermoegen, as opposad 10 buying standing assets
acquired from developars where the opporunity for further
yield compression is becoming marginal.

Invastment Aty

Turnover of investments (purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £252m equating to 2G% of the average net
assets over the period. This compares to £370m or 31.2%
of average net assets in the previous 12 menth period.

The year under review saw lower levels of both primary
issuance and follow cn capital raisings than in previous
years and this is reflected in the much reduced tumover
figure. However, we did have two significant delistings with
the sale of Hispania (£58.3m holding) to Blackstone in
September last year and then more recently in February the
sale/privatisation of Terreis (£32.5m helding).

The Trust's overall geograpnical positicning betwesn the UK
and Continental Europe showed a small increase over the
period with exposure to UK equities being 36. 190 of assets
compared to 33.4% in March 2018. Much like a year ago.
the rationale remains one of 'boftom up' stock picking
rather than a desire to saak exposure to UK ple. Gver the
period | increased exposure to Secure income REIT and
Supermarket Income REIT both of which reflect my desire
for more iong dated, secure, index-linked income which is
not dependent on the immediate timing of the business
cycle. Within the rest of the alternatives group, | increased
exposure to seif storage and student accommodaticn, the
latter adding to the UK through our large holding in Unite
but also in Belgium following the IPO on Xior. Qur
healthcare exposure reduced during the period with the

sale of our Pnimary Healthcare Properties, on valuation
grounds, but rebuilt with the addition of more Assura shortly
aftar the year end. The sale of PHP was poorly timad with
the announcement a month later of a takeover of their
nearest listed rival, Mediox and the markeat duly priced in
optimistic central and debt cost savings.

German residential remains a stalwart of the portfolio
(229%) but there was considerabie stock rotation particularly
in our Barlin exposure as explored earlier.

Retall exposure remained heavily subdued. In the UK,
adjusting for the supermarket exposure, we have lass than
2% of assats invested in retail. Yet even that modest
amount was too much with Capital & Regional falling —45%
and New River Retail —10%. Supermarkat Income

REIT — with its long, secure income focus — rose +7% and
remains the one success story In the ratail sactor, Post the
year end it completed its first purchase using its equity as
currency with an institutional investor effectively swapping

a large supermarket for part cash/part paper. The paper was
issuad at the prevailing share price, an 8% premium to
asset value. Most encouraging

In the Interim, | referred to the intu/Hammerson saga which
has finally played out as a 'nil score draw’. Both companies
are now undertaking independent restruciuring initiatives
against a backdrop of relentless asset value corrections.

| did dose cur underaeight pasitions in both stacks during
the year when | deemed takeover or privatisation lkely. In
the case of Inty, this likelinoed dimmed and | sold the
position in December. So far this calendar year that has
proved to be the correct strategy. Nonetheless my
performance in the year in this (albeit small) subsactor,
driven by an expectation of M&A activity, was a little
disappointing

The increased undenwveight to Continental European retail
was a more successful tale. Aithough | firmly believe that
retailer affordability (as discussed earlier) is far graater in
most CE locations (when compared to the UK) there are
still considerable pricing adjustments to come. Equity prices
discount these expected falls in asset values, vindicating our
reduced exposure. However, markets do ovarreact and

i bought back into the larger retail owning companies in the
fast quarter of the financial year, particularly
Unibail-Rodamco-Westfield. This stock suffered a dramatic
correction falling from a finanaial year hugh of €237 per
share in May to a low of €133 per share in December. The
other side of the undenveight tc ratail coin has been the
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overweight to industrial and fogistics, the much touted
exprassion ‘'sheds are the new shops’ has certainly been
shouted with gusto by market participants induding
ourselvas. Stand out performers, where we continued to
add to positions, include Argan (+55% total return) in
France, Catena (+60% total raturn) and ViB Vermoegen,
a more modest but still healthy 14%. In the UK, we
participated in the undenwriting of the £280m capital raise
by Tritax Big Box for its acquisition of DB Symmetry,

a logistics developer. | remain concerned about the external
management corporate structure of this business and the
position was subsequently sold. Our UK industrial/logistics
exposure still expanded with the opening of a hiolding in
Mucklow Group, a West Midlands investar/developer and
we now hold almost 5% of this well run small cap.

Alongside the sale and delisting of Terreis, the other
sigmificant privatisation for the Trust was the sale and
delisting of Hispania in fuly 2018. The purchaser was
Blackstone, a timely reminder that much more commercial
property is owned privately than through the public
markets. Qur holding equated to 4.4% of the Trust's NAY
and the transaction was covered in more detait in the
Interim. Post the sale, our only major hotel exposure was
through the Scandinavian vehicle, Pandox which returmned
a comfortable 14%.

London offices was a market we were narvous about going
into 2018, As examined earlier, our concerns have proven
(at least for the moment) unfounded and the London
specialist names recovered well post the summer even with
the Braxit mayhem unresolved. | took the opportunity to
reduce expasure, selling out of Derwent London as it
moved back to pre-Referendum pricing. | would add that
this sale was on valuation grounds as this 15 a very welt run
business, nevertheless it should also be noted that the
highly regarded CEQ is retiring and becoming nen-executive
Chairman. Whilst against modern corporate governance
protocel, we like to see his steady hand continuing 1o assist
his long established management team.

Ravenu= and Ravenus Qutlook

Revenue growth for the year was a healthy 10.3% although
lower then the levels of growth seen in the previous two
years, ahead of expectation.

Revenue growth over the last five years has been B0.22%,
the equivalent of 12.5% p.a. This exceptional growth is
largely due to the significant increases reported in 2017 and

2018 fuefled by the weakening of Sterling following the
UK referendum result. This increased the value of our
non-Sterling income in Sterling terms. In addition, the
revenue tax charge has been suppressed by successful
historic withholding tax reclaims in the last two years plus
the impact of beneficial withholding tax rates on some
current distributions due to the nature of the distributions
themselves.

This weakening of Sterling may reverse when thers is more
certainty about the final Brexit model and the negative
impact that would have on our income has been well
flagged. Nonetheless we must continue to highlight it,

ol hag

We do expact the underlying incoms on most of our
portfolio to continue to grow. We have avoided or are
underweight those sactors which we assess as the most
vilnerable to revenue decline. Although it should be noted
that some of the factors, such as debt refinancing, which
have enhanced some companies’ earnings over recent
years have largely played out, so we expect the rate of
underlying eamings growth to be more muted over the
next financial year.

Gearng and Dabt

Gearing reduced from 14.6% at the last year end to 12.3%
at the interim stage and then 10.0% at the year end.
Corporate adtions have returned some significant amounts
of cash to us and | have not sought to reinvest this. The
more uncertain pelitical outlook, not only in the UK,
warrants a more cautious gearing approach. The current
level ramains at 9.9%.

We are maintaining our flexible debt facilities and are in
a position to increase the level of gearing at any point in
time.

Diract Propany Porffolio

The physical property portfolio produced a total retum of
6.5% with an income return of 3.5% and a capital return of
3%. This compares well to the total retumn from the IPD Al
Property Index of 5.6% which saw a higher income retumn
of 5.2% but a capital return of just 0.4%.

The major activity since the interim has been the
submission, in December, of a planning application for the
redevelopment of our industrial estate in Wandsworth. We
are proposing a mixed use scheme which increases the
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density on the site and indludes 105 residential units, with
35% affordable, together with 50,000 sq ft of new office
space and 50,000 sq ft of new light industrial space.
Amenity space includes a new community playground and
an enhanced and enlarged station square. This is a majar
application and Wandsworth Council's assassment of our
proposais will take time.

We have had a busy penod of {ettings in the second half,
completing 6 new leases and generating an additional
£300,000 of rent, a 75% incraase.

in Harlow we et 7000 sq ft to CUA Ltd, an insurance
company, cn a 10 year lease at a new headiine rent for the
building of £15 per sq ft, an increase of 209 from the last
letting. This leaves only 4,200 sq ft vacant at the building
and there is a good level of interest.

in October the largest tanant at our industrial estate in
Wandsworth, Absolute Taste, vacated their four units due to
a relocation outside London. Three units have been ra-lat in
under seven months. There continusas to be strong demand
for light industrial space in this location even though we are
only able to offer short lease terms ahead of the potantial
redevelopment.

At The Colonnades in Bayswater, we have let 2,500 sq ft to
Specsavers on 2 new 10 year lease at a rent ahead of the
valuers’ expectations. The rental level reflected their need
for a new unit as their previous local premises are baing
redeveloped. The letting of this end of terrace unit
bookends the scheme and this tenant will generate further
footfall providing support 1o the letting of the remaining
adjacent restaurant unit,

Outlook

While political uncertainty across Europe and the risk of

a slowdown in global growth are central macro themes we
take some comfort in the pragmatic response of the central
banks. Their dovish messaging is helpful in maintaining the
historically low cost of finance. Property offers a healthy
source of income particularly at imes such as these when
bands yield so little. i remain confident that cutside of the
retail sector, income generation from this asset dass
remains robust. We see ongoing earnings growth driven by
a lack of development of new property in many of cur
markets. This restricted development cvdle, caused by

a reluctance of capital to fund speculative construction
(and taking tenant risk) remains a key underpin for the
asset class. However, those sectors with rental growth

prospects are all well bid and whilst we do see future
eamnings growing we find it harder to pradict yield
tightening. Capital growth will therafore be a function of
rerital growth rather than higher multiples being applied to
the valuation of revenue streams.

In a similar vein to the Chairman's commentary ! would fike
to conclude by reminding shareholders that not anly are the
majority of the Trust's assets outside of the UK {(and GBP)
but that where we do have a UK focus it is invariably
backing companies with either sacure balance shests
{Jower than average leverage) or long income fram high
quality tenants. Much of this income is modestly pricad as
investors have soughit to avoid the UK in thase tumultuous
tirmes. We remain acutely aware of the vast range of
outcomes for the UK ecanomy in the caming quarters and
years but we will still sesk out value whan we see it
mispriced.

Mazarcus Phayra-Mudge
Fund Manager
6 June 2019
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Caoital & Ragional 4957 0.4
Garmany St dtodwen 3,393 03
Vonovia 149,995 116 Picton 3,125 02
LEG 78,718 61 Target Healthcare 2,185 0.2
Deutsche Wohnen 63,454 5.4 Hammerson 1,238 01
VIB Vermoegan 18,690 1.5 Local Shopping REIT 768 0.1
Aroundtown S,602 08 Atrato Capital 377 -
327,469 25.4 327,175 33.2
ireland Diract Proparty 101,929 79
C
Green RET 27301 2! CFD Positions (includad in
27,301 2.1 currant Habiliti=s) {3.210) {0.2)
MNatharlands Total Investmant Pasitions 1,288,232 100.0
Eurocommercial Properties 17,145 13
17,145 1.3
Norway
Entra 24939 1.9
24,998 1.9
Spain
Merlin 16612 1.3
arima Real estat2 9200 07
25,612 2.0
Swaden
rabege 44337 3.4
Kungsteden 30,258 24
Wihlbergs 23045 18
Pandox 9203 07
Catena 6873 05
Hembla 6,735 g5
120,312 9.3
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VOINOVIA

'I Vonovia

2 Unibail-Rodamco-Wasteld

LEG

jgwckm‘ gnt

3 LFG
(Germany)

(Germany) (France)

31 Rarch | 31 March 31 March | 31 Maxch 31 Masch [ 31 March

2018 2019 2043 2012 2018

Shareholding valug £1239m Snaraholding value 21328 - | £1356m Sharsholding value =727 E759m
Up of invastment A o of vestment - 29 of Investrent . )
portfolial I 10.0% portiolio? o 8.5% portioliot e 6.1%
09 of equity owned e 0.7% % of equity ownad 250 0.5%0 % of equity owned L5 1.5%
Share price £.372 £4025 Share price SiaS o £18555 Share price £11545 €91.34

Vonovia is the largest German residential
landlord (as well as the largest European
quotad property company by market cap}
following the acquisition of Gagfah in
2014, Sudewo portfolio in 2015, Conwert
in 2015 and Buwog in 2017 with more
than 358,000 units under managerment.
in 2018, the company closed the
acquisition of Victoria Park, a Swedish
company which owns 14,000 residential
units in the Stockholm, Gothenburg and
Malmo regians. In addition, the company
acquired a 10% stake in a 4,000-unit
potfolio  sold by French  SNCE
Ceographical split s now Germany
(90%), Austria (6%) and Sweden (4%).
Vonovia runs a large in-house craftsman
organisation which allows the company to
run an innovative strategy focusing on
impraving and modemising its €3%bn
German portfolio (£43bn for the total

portfolio),  whilst  offering  further
economies  of scale by acquiring
addttional  portfolios  and  modular

construction. In addition, the acguisition of
Buwog allows the company to add
development for sale to s business
maodel. The company is putting a special
focus on ecological and social matters
which are gaining more and more
attention in the highly regulated and
politically dnven residential sector. The
company reported a like-for-like rental
growtn at 4.4% in 2018 and expeds to
reach a similar level in 2019, The adjusted
NAV per share growth reached +16.7%
implying a total accounting return of 20%
for 2018. The total shareholder retumn
since listing in July 2013 has been 224%.

Unibail lost their title of the largast property
company by market cap as investors
guestioned  the  rationgle  of  the
transformational acquisition of Westfield. 1t
does however remain the largast in tarms of
gross assets with a €65bn partfolio focated
in France (343c), US (24%), UK (390),
Centeal Europe (8%}, Germany (6%), Spain
(%), Scandinavia (6%), Austria {4%) and
the Netherlands (3%). The company is the
world's premier developer and operator of
flagship  shopping  destinations with an
historical focus on large European cities
before expanding this year in the US and in
the UK. In an environment where the brick
and mortar retail owners are  facing
existential  threats  (online  competition,
change of consumer behaviowr, aver-supply
of physical retail space), Unibal ams to
captalise on their strengths to offer an
omni-channel experience to consumer and
outperform the rest of the campetition. To
supplement ratumns the group also pursues
an opportunistic strategy (buy/build and
sall) in offices (6% of the total portfolic)
mostly located in Paris CBD and La Defense.
The company intends to deleverage its
balance sheet, a topic which has bean a ke
paint in investors” aganda last year. A total of
mora than €3bn of disposals has alrsady
been exacutad or signed since June 2018,
The target is a further €3bn of disposals to
be completed by 2023 to lower the LTVIo a
range of 30-40%. Considering this portfolio
streamlining, tha group 15 guiding for an
adjusted EPS betwean €11.80-12.00 in
2019 and an EPS CAGR (rebased for
disposals) between +5% and +7%
between 2019 and 2023. The five-year total
sharehclder return has been -2 3%,

"Parcentage of investrment Portfolio, postions indude exposure through CFCs
Note: e Portfolio set oLt an page 1/ ndudes the physical holdings anly .ncluded i Invastrrents Reld at far valee i tha 34arce sheat Tre CFO pront or loss sostan s raluded

n Currant assets.

LEG is a Cerman residential company
focused on the economically strong
region of North Rhine-Westphalia. The
company is one of the largest real estate
companies in Germany with more than
133,000 units under management with
a combined value of €10.0bn. LEG is
characterized by a strong balance sheet
with a net LTV of 41%, an average debt
maturity of more than seven years and
an average cost of debt of 1.6%. The
CEQ Thomas Hegel retired in May
replaced by Lars von Lackum, Chief
Digitial Officer. We expect a smooth
transition as Thamas Hegel will stay in
the company for some time as an
advisor in key areas which will ease the
succession  process.  The  company
discloses a two-year guidance illustrating
the goed visibility on eamings. For 2019,
the company is guiding for a like-for-like
rental growth between 3.0% and 3.2%
and an FFO increasing by 7% compared
to 2018 For 2020, the company is
seeing & like-for-ike rental growth
between 3.2% and 3.4% and an FFO
per shara growing by 5.5%. The five-year
tota! shareholder return has been 173%.
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TONLGUST
L \ ) '
Landsec
Lands=c Dzutsonz Wohnen ~ (edna
(UK} (G=rmany (Franze
31 March |31 March 51 March | 31 March 31 March | 31 March
2313 2013 2013 22143 2013 2018
Snarsholding value 7.2 | EBS5.8m She-erolding va us Si:5 | EH78m Snarsholding value 23251 £33.0m
25 of invastmant . .. 9 of Investment . 3e of iInvestment . .
portiolo! 35 5340 porrfo\.of AN 5523 porﬁol:o* = 3,29
op of equity owned [ 0.9% Zo of aquity ownad 03le 20 of equity owned A 0.4%0
Share pree RIS 3371p Share prica €379 Share price Liz0 e £141.1

Landsec 15 the UK's largest REIT by
portfolio value, managing £14bn of
assats  (including its share of joint
ventures and developments). While the
company is often thought of as ‘half
retail, half London offices’ in reality the
poitfolic is 44% London offices, with
11% in central London shops, 119 in
leisure properties including hotels, and
just 343 constituting ‘traditional’ retail
(6% retal paks, 28% shopping
centres). Having undertaken multiple
refinancing  actions  to  purchase
expensive legacy bonds and reissue
chaaper alternatves, the company's
earmings yield (and dividend yield) have
reached attractive levels (¢6.4% and
¢.53% respectively), with the eamings
outstripping those of its main peer British
Land in a trend we expect to continue,
We also believe that Landsecs retail
portfolio is much better placed than
British Land’s to weather the structural
storm which is currently  hitiing  the
UK retail sector. Management has
remained cautious on the outlook for
UK real estate, keaping development risk
to a minimurm and financial risk low (LTV
€.26%), and we believe the ccmpany
remains well placed to capitalise on any
upcoming  market  weakness  The
five-year total shareholder return has
bean 8%.

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany's second
largest residental company with the
bulk of its exposure to Creater Berlin
(77%). The company owns a
high-quality portfolio consisting of more
than 164,000 units with a combinad
value of €22bn. Despite increasing
prassure on the regulaiory front and
more negative headlines around Berlin
landlords, Deutsche Wohnen
experienced another strong year in
Berin with valuation uplift of +130%4
and NAV +18% In addition to its
residential exposure, the company is
developing a Nursing and  Assisted
Living  business  which  currently
represents 8% of the Group EBITDA
and could graw to 15% in the coming
years, The company is guiding for FFG
growih of 12% YoY while assuming
a prudent 5% Berln Mietspiagal rent
review (was +9% two yaars ago for the
last release) The fiveyear total
shareholdar return has been 211%.

‘Parzertage of Invesrment Sxposure, 2ositens ndude swesurz througn Tr0s

Cecina is the largest office landiord in
Continental Europe with a porifolio of
more than &5bn focused almost

exclusively on the Paris region (97% of
the total wvalue). In addition, the
company cwns a portfolio of €3.3bn of
residential assets (of which €330m |

student housmg) pradominantly locat=d
in the Paris ragion. Finally, the company
owns a portfolic of exclusive high street
retait assats for a value of €.5bn. The

management is capitalizing on a laige
development pipeline of more than
&bn (15% of Gross Asset Value) to be

delivered in the next three years. (n
2018, following 1ts total return strategy,
the company delivered vary solid results
with a NAV increasing by 5.4% while
recurring earnings per share increased
by 9% driven by a total like-for-lke
rental growth of 2.5%. Since the Eurosic
acquisition in 2077, the company has
scld for close to €2.0bn of nan-core
assefs at a premium to last appraisal
vglue close to +8%. This has allowed
the company to have an even greatsr
focus  on  core  locations  while
deleveraging the balance sheet to
a conservative LTV of 38%. The five-year
sharsholder total return has been 77%.
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

continuad

SEGRO

WHERE BUSINESS WORKS

[y

31 March | 31 March

2013 2013

Shareholding value £30.2~(  F472m
Bl stmen

rEmEme T

3o of equity awned 0.8%%

Share prica ERERS 601.2p

Segro has become the largest UK REIT
by market cap, and is the largsst
operator  of logistics and  industrial
property fistad in the UK, with a total
portfolio of €9.4bn ( 683 in the UK,
320 in Continental Europe, with 67%
urban warefiouses, 3196 big boxes and
2% other uses). in the UK, the group is
exposed to Grester London industrial
and logistics space and national logistics
space. Rental growth (n these markeats is

running  at record levels as there
remains  an  acutz  supply-demand
imbalance,  fuelled by  tenants’

requirements to deal with the growth in
e-commerce. In Continental Europe,
Germany and France are the group's
largest markats with Poland third; these
markets have a flatter rental outlook
{and are geographically less space-
constrained) but are experiencing some
yield compression as investors continue
to chase income. The group also has an
extensive development exposure that it
manages 1o largely pre-let and develop
at yields significantly in excess of
investment values (¢.7% yield on cost
vs, an EPRA net initial yield of 3.9% at
FY18). We expect this to dtive both
earnings and NAV growth over the short
to medium term, as well as high
shareholder total returns. In our view
the loan-to-value ratio is relatively low
nsk at ¢.29%, and the development
pipeline has been funded by fresh
equity. The five-year total shareholder
return has been 151%

Unite Group

|

(UK)
31 diarch | 31 Ma-ch
2913 2018
Shareholding value £ sm | £41.8m
S0 oftnv?stment 17 . 3.4

portialio”
2o of equity cwnad 2o 2.0%
5hara prica 520 791.5p

Unita is the UK's largest purpose-built
student housing daveloper, owner and
opsrator. The group manages just over
48,800 student beds  either
wholly-owned or within joint ventures.
Over 2018/19 the asset class has
remainad attractive for institutional
investment.  Rental  growth  has
remained strong (3.2%) and Unite
continues to outperform the market.
Unite offers a strong development
pipeline of 5,600 beds funded through
retained resources and active portfolio
recycling.  This, alongside continucd
3-4% annual rental growth, is expected
to drive ¢125% compound annual
growth in earnings per share over

FY18-21. Overall there remains an
excess of applicants to  university
acceptances, resulting in a

demand-supply dynamic strongly in the
jandlords’ favour. The TV of 259%
means that risk is well controlled and
provides the group with sufficient
firepower to continue its development
activity as it looks to Increase its
parinership projects with  universities.
The five-year total shareholder return
has been 138%.

“Percentage of Sharsholding Yalue and Equity Investment Portiong, aoshions nclude expasura through CFDs

1
Fabege

(Swedan)

31 Marzh | 31 Macch

2313 2018

Shargholding value £2=1- | E329m

% of investment . N

portfoliof e 2.5

24 of equity owned 17 05%

Snére price Iz< 15T T (SEK180.80

Fabege is an owner and developer of
Stockholm offices, with a SEK 63bn
portfolio. The Siockhalm office markat
has seen, and in our view is sat to
continue  to see, strong rental
growth — prime rents in Stockholm have
reached cSEK 7500 psm, up from
SEK 4,500 psm just four years ago. In
addition to capturing this strong rental
growth (like for like remtal growth was
0% in FYI8) in s investment
portfolic, Fabege underfakes a largs
amount  of development (it s
responsible for ¢50% of all new office
developments in Stockholm) and has
erjoyed very strang returns on its
project portfolio (ROIC in FY18 was

98%, a long way ahead of the
company's targeted >50% level).
Having  exscuted  large  scaie

development in  Arenastaden the
company has now turned its focus to
Flemingsberg to the south of the city.
We continue to back Fabege's
development focused strategy, and
estimate that Fabege has one of the
strongest total return outlooks of all
Swedish property companies. The
five-year shareholder total retumn has
been 218% in GBP terms,
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COVIVIO

'| Coviio

'I 'l Moay Secunties

‘l CLS

e o - ) e
(Franze (Ui (U
3% March | 30 March 31 March | 31 March 3t March | 31 Maich
2313 2018 2013 2013 2313 2018
Sharehodng value Zi:i | E4RIm Sha-gholding valu 227 | £403m Shareholding va.ue ST Zv i E354m
&g of investent I . 25 of investment L . 9 of investert — .
DOfoD“OT - . 3.6 POFT.‘OI:O“ - 3.3% PO.’T.‘O:ID+ < 2.9
% of equity ownad - 0.8%% 35 of aguity gwnad I 15.5%0 % of equ ty owned 3. 3. 7%
Shara prica e £89£5 Sha-z prez REE I 275.0p Sharz prea 2-27: 2355p

Covivio (formerly known as Fonciere des
Regions) is a diversified company with a
consolidatad portfolio of £23bn cf assets
(3 in group share). The company is mainly
invastad in French and ltalian offices (5830
group share), Cerman Residental (25%
group sharz) and hotels (15%) while
non-sirategic assats account for only 220 of
total group share. In December 2018, the
merger with its Itafian subsidiary Beni Stabiii
reprasentad @ major step fowards the
simplification of the company structure. The
company was adtive on the portfolio rotation
frant through the disposal of €1 4bn of
assets on a group share basis with the goal
of enhancing the portfolio gquality and
increasing presence in majer European
cities. Besides, the cormmitted development
pipeline was increased to €1.2bn on a
group shars basis split betwveen French
offices {67% of the total), falian Offices
(2365 of the total), Cerman rasidential {6%
of the total) and hotsls (4% of the tota).
The company daliversd a very solid
operational performance in 2018 with a total
like-for-like remtal growth of +3.4% and a
lixa-for-like porfolia value growth of +4.4%
driving an EPRA eamnings per shara increase
of 4.5% and an EPRA NAV per share up by
5504, For 2018, the company is taking a
welcomed  conservative stance on  the
balance shest front targeting an LTV below
4006 versus a pravious targat between 400
and 45%0 and 2 2018 reportad level of 42%.
At the same time, the company is still
targsting a positive EPRA Earnings per share
growth of at least +3% based on a
consenvative  +2.5%0  like-forike  rental
growth at geup level The  fve-year
sharsholder total return has been 86%a.

McKay Securities’ F473m portfolio s
focused on markels where we believe
the fundamentals are attractive.
Geographical split is 55% South East
Offices, 25% London Offices, 16%
Scuth East Industrial and 5% in Other
sectors.  Thers  remains  significant
reversion within the porifolio (23%),
and after having de-risked its office
development programme the company
has shown that it is prepared fo take a
contrelled  amount  of risk  through
speculative development in logistics,
including constructing a 134k sq ft
urban warehouse in Theale. We believe
the company is set to deliver strang
eamnings growth in the coming ysars,
while keeping leverage under control
(LTV 34%), and the discount to NAV
{28%) underpins our view of the
relative value of the shares today. The
five-year total shareholder returm has
besn 37%.

“Percantage of Investmeant Porfoie, oustions indude exposar: tnroueh CF0s

ClS has a €1.8bn portfolio across
69m sq f It owns primarily office
properties  89%, with  Student
accommodation 5%, Hotels 4% and
Retail 2% and is geographically spht
between the UK (51%), Cermany
(33%) and France (16%). The German
assets in particular have [ed value
growth for CLS (+9.3% in local currency
terms in FY18), while recent disposals
(including First Camp) have tidied the
portfolio and allowed capital to be
recycled into attractive acquisitions. The
company's disciplined but opportunistic
approach to capital allocation is one of
its most attractive qualities 1n our view,
while the high level of Government
tenants on the rent roll (28%) gives
good covenant strength and stability to
the income stream. \We believe the
portfolio today provides a good base
from which to drive futurs retums, and
with LTV at 37% financlal risk ramams
held at sansible lavels. The five-year
shareholder total return has been 96%.
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Investment Properties
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ﬁSpread of Diract Portfolio by Capital valuz (%) B Lengths within the Diract Preparty Porﬁoiic\
35 ar Al Marim 2303 SR R SRR Gross rata, incoma
Git c2 0o 5 years 50%
Rata, adusi Ctaer Totai 5to idyears &%
" 10 to i5 years 13%
yest End of Lond 403 (6 - 08 057
West End of L*on on 0 0% 14,000 54.0% 15 to 20 years 28%
Inner London 1.4% 2149 — 228% 210 o
20+ yoars 3%
Around M25 — 9 750 - 9.7% =
\ 100%
South YWest — 13.5% — 13.5%
Total 41 /Ccntrar‘ JRant h
ot REs 3467 3.0% 100.0 TS
o ¥ 2 i3.0% Year | £3,600,00C
*inner London defined as inside the North and South Circular. Years 2-5 £10.750.000
) \Years 5+ £15,725,000
Valuez in excess of £10 million
annadss, Bishons Bridea Road, London W2
NZ70S3, DISN0DS oildge nOad, LONGon VW2
Sector Mitad Usa
f Tenure Frzohald
Size (sq ft)' 51,003
; Principal tenants Waitrosz Ltd 12ab 3
Cranam & Grazn Spacsavars

The property comprises a large mixed-use block in
Bayswater, constricted in the mid-1970s. The site
extends to approximately 2 acres on the north east
cormer of the junction of Bishops Bridge Road and

I' Porchiester Road, close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The commaercial
element was extanded and refurbished in 2015 with
a new 20 year lease being agreed with Waitrose.

Ferrier Strest Industrial Estate, Wandswortn, London SW18

Sectar Tndusirial
Tenure Frazhold
size {sq ft) 35,000
Principal tenants Maossimans

Kougar Teol Kire Lid Page Lacquer

Site of just over an acre, 50 metres from Wandsworth
Town railway station in an area that is predominantly
residential. The estate comprises 16 small industrial
units generally let to a mix of small to medium-sized
private companies.




Investment Properties
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Value fess than £10 million

Yodai Unit, Woodlands Park, Almondsbury, Bristol B:S’)

Sector ndustial
Tenure Frasholl

i Size (sq ft)- VSS,D’:‘J
Principat tenants- odzl Balivary

Matwork Ltd

Located on tha junction of the M4 and M3, this
industrial building is let to Yodel, the parcel dslivery
company, ¢n a lease expiring in 2019 at a low rent of
£5 per sq ft. The building sits oni a 5.75-acre site
giving a low site density and a large yard offering

a variety of alternative uses for the site.

2r GL3
Sector Industial
" Tenure  Fraancid
Size (sq f1) 63,000
Pl;in-cii;al tenants SCIMX imvastments

Infusion G2

~ The IO Centfe comprises six industrial units occupied
by fiva tenants and sits on & 4. 5-acre site. Gloucester
o Business Park is located to the east of Junction 11A
of the M5 and one mile to the east of Gloucester City
Centre. The property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4 via junction 15.

Fiald Housa, Station Apnroazh, Hardow CVI20
Sector Officss
Tenure ‘Erashold
size (sq ft) 65,000
Princii'pal tenants Tava UK Ltd

Capital Underwriting Agznacias Lid

Located next to Harlow Town raitway station, the
building was constructed in the late 1980s and
comprises a 66,000-sq ft office building on a site of
3.5 acres. 80% of the building by ERV is let to Tava
UK Ltd on leases expiring in 2023,
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Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company's Objective is to maximise shareholders’ total return by investing in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses internationally and also in invastment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NARE!T Developed Europe Capped Net Tota!l Return Index in Sterling. The index,
caiculated by FTSE, is free-fioat based and currentiy has 108 constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The benchmark website voonv2nr2.com contains further
details about the index and performance

Business Model

The Company's business model follows that of an externally managed investment trust,

The Company has no employees. ts whally non-executive Board of Directors retains responsibility for corporate strategy;
corporate governance; risk and control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits on gearing
and asset allocation and monitorng investment performance.

The Board has appainted BMO Investment Business Limited as the Altemative Investment Fund Manager with portfolio
management delegated to Thames River Capitai LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company on
behalf of Thames River Capitai LLF and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property
Manager and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the Investment Management Agreement can be
found in the Report of the Directors on pages 36 and 46 to 47.

in accordance with the AIFMD, BNP Paribas has been appointad as Depositary to the Company. BNP Paribas also provide
custodial and administration services to the Company. Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company
Matters.

The specific terms of the Investment Management Agreement are set out on pages 46 and 47.
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The investment selaction process seeks to identify well managed companies of all sizes. The Manager generally regards
future growth and capital appreciation potentiaf more highly than immeadiate yieid or discount to asset value.

Although the investmant abjective allows for investment on an international basis, the benchmark is a Pan-European
Index and the majority of the investments will be located in that geographical area. Direct property investments are
located in tha UK only.

As a dedicated investar in the property sector the Company cannot offer diversification outside that sector, however,
within the portfolio there are imitations, as set out below, on the size of individual investrents held to ensure
divarsification within the partfolio.

The maximuim holding in the stock of any one issuar or of a single asset is imitad to 15% of the portfolio at the point of
acquisition. In addition, any holdings in excess of 5% of the portfolic must not in aggregate excead 40% of the portfolio.

The Manager currently applies the foliowing guidelines for asset allocation:

UK histad equities 25 - 50% Other listed equities 0 - 5%
Continantal European listad equities 45 - 75% Listed bonds 0-5%
Direct Property — UK Q- 20% Unguotad investments 0-5%
Other listad equities 0 - 5%

Geanng
The Company may employ levels of gearing fram time to time with the aim of enhanang retumns, subject to an overall

maximumn of 25% of the porifolio value.

In certain market conditions the Manager may consider it prudent not to employ gearing on the balance sheet at &, and
to hold part of the portfolic in cash.

The current asset allocation guideline is 10% net cash to 25% net gearing (as a percentage of portiofio value).

Proparty Valaztion

Investment properties are valued every six months by an external independent valuer. Valuations of alf the Group's properties
as at 31 March 2019 have bean carried cut on a "Red Book” basis and these valuations have been adopted In the accounts.

Allozation of costs bahweaen Ravanusz & Capitan

On the basis of the Board's expecied long-term split of returns in the form of capital gains and income, the Group
charges 75% of annual base management fees and finance costs to capital. Al performance fees are charged to capital.

Holdings in Investmant Companies
It is the Board's current intertion to hold no more than 153 of the portfolio in listed closed-ended investment
companies.

Some companies Investing in commercial or residential property are structured as listed externaily managed closed-ended
investment companies and therefore form part of our investment universe. Although this 1s not a model usually favoured by
cur Fund Manager, some investments are made in thesa structuras in order to access & particular sector of the market or
where the management team is regarded 2s especially strong. If these companies grow and become a larger part of our
investment universe and/or new companies come to the markst in this format the Manager may wish to increase exposure
to these vehicles. If the Manager wishes to increase investment to over 15%, the company will make an announcement

accordingly.
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{ey Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust's objective against the following Key

Performance Indicators ("KPIs™):

Board monitosing and outcome

Net Asset Valus Total Rztum
relativa to tha bencnmark

The Directors regard the Company's net asset
vaiue total return performance in comparison
with the benchmark as being an overall
measure of value delivered to the
shareholders’ aver the fongerterm.

® The Board reviews the performance in detail at each meeting and
discusses the results and outiook with the Manager,

Oufcome

NAY Total Returmn* (Annualised) 9.1% 13.6%
Benchmark Total Return
(Annualised) 5.6% 10.0%

" NAY Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the duidends in the assers and the Compaary
from the relevant ex-dividend date, Dividends ars deemad © be rednvastad on the
ex-qividends data for the benchmais,
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The principal objective of the Company is
a total return objective, however, the Fund
Manager also aims to deliver a reliable
dividend with growth over the longer-term.

® The Board reviews statements on income received to date and
income forecasts at each meeting.

Compeund Annual Dividend
Growth* 10.7%
Compound Annual RPI 2.4% 2.3%

i

12.6%

* The final dwiderd i the time series divided by the iniual dividend in the period raisad to
the power of 1 divided by the number of years ie the senes

Th= Discount or Premium at

o 1 -y ot ey P =
which the Company's sharas trades

comparad with Nar Asse: Valu

D

Whilst expectation of investment performance
is @ kay driver of the share price discount or
pramium to the Net Asset Value of an
investment trust over the longer-term, there
are periods when the discount can widen.
The Beoard 1s aware aof the vulnerability of a
sector-specialist trust to a change of investor
sentiment towaids that sector, and the impact
that can have on the discount.

® The Board takes powers at each AGM to buy-back and issue
shares. When considening the merits of share buy-back or
issuance, the Board looks at a number of factors in addition to the
short and longer-term discount or prermium to NAV to assess
whether action would be beneficial to sharsholders overall.
Particular attention is paid to the currant marksat sentiment, the
potential impact of any share buy-back activity on the hiquidity of
the shares and on Ongeing Charges aver the longer-term.

Average discount* —2.0% -4.6%
Total number of shares
repurchased MNil 150,000

* Avarage Caity discount throughou? the penod of share pace to capeal anly NAV
Source: Bloomberg




Key Performance Indicators
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{ Board monitoring and outcome

Leval of Ongong Chargas

The Board is conscious of expenses and aims
to deliver a balance between excellent service
and costs.

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges
includes any direct property costs in addition
to the management fees and all other
expensas incurrad in running a publicly histed
company. As no other investment trusts hold
part of thair portfolic in direct preperty (they
either hold 100% of their portfolio as
property securities cr as direct property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by
the AIC, this siatfstic is shown without direct
property costs to allow a clearer comparison
of overall administration costs with other
funds investing in securities.

The Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, in
comparison to a range of other Investment
Trusts of a similar size, both property sector
specialists and other sector specialists.

® Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the Board
reviews regular reports on actual and forecast expenses
throughout the year.

5 Years

Ongoing charges excluding

periormance fees 0.63% 0.69%
Cngoing charges
excluding Perfarmance Fees and 0.61% 0.65%

Diract Property Costs

® The congoing charges are compettive when comparad to the peer
group.

irpsestrmant Trast Status

The Company must continue ta operate
in arder to meet the requirements for
Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010.

® The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at each
meeting which set out the requirements outlinad in Section 1158

® The Directors belisve that the conditicns and ongoing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to 31 March
2019 and that the Company will continue to meet the
requiremeants.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering long-term retums to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the risks that have been taken in
order to achieve that return. The Board has included below details of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company and the appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

:Risk Identified

Share price parforms poorly in comparison

1 PR P - N
to thz undzriving NAY

o

The shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and the share price 1s datermined by supply and
demand. The sharss may trade at a discount or premium to
tha Company's underlying NAY and this discount ar pramium
may fluctuate over time.

The risks are all in line with the prior peried and none are considered more or less significant than in the prior year.

| Board monitaring and mitigation

® The Board monitors the leval of discount or premium
at which the shares are trading over the short and
longer-term.

® The Board encourages engagzment with the shareholders.
The Board receives reports at each meeting on the activity
of the Company's brokers, PR agent and mestings and
events attendad by the Fund Managsr.

e The Company's shares are available through the BMO
share schemas and the Company participates in the active
marketing of these schemes, The shares are also widaly
available on open architacture platforms and can be held
directly through the Company's registrar.

® The Board takes the powers to buy-back and to issue
sharas at each AGAL

Poor invastmast parformance of the
portiolio relative to tha benchmark

The Company's partfolio is actively managed. In addition to
investmant secuntizs tha Company alsc invests in commercial

property and accordingly, the portfolio may not follow or
outperform the raturn of the benchmark.

® The Manager's objective is ta outperform the benchmark.
The Board regularly reviews the Company's long-term
strategy and investment guidalines and the Managear's
relative positions against these.

® The Management Engagement Committes reviews the
Manager's performance annually The Board has the
powers to change the Manager if deemed appropnate.

Aol ar it
farkel ns<

Both share pricas and exchange rates may move rapidly and
adversely impact the value of the Company's portfolio.

Althaugh the portiolio is divarsified across a number of
g=ographical regions, the investment mandate is focused on
a single sector and therefare the portfolio will be sensitive
towards the property sactor, as well as global equity markets
more generally.

roperty companies are subject to many facters which can
adversely affect their investment performance, these include
the general economic and financial environment in which their
tenants operate, interest rates, availability of investment and

& The Board receivas and considers a regufar report from tha
Manager datailing asset allocation, investment decisions,
currency exposures, gearing levels and rationale in ralation
to the prevailing market conditions.

# The report considers the potential impact of Braxit and the
Manager's response in positioning the porttolio.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk tdentified

development finance and regulations issued by governments and
aJthanaes.

As highlightad since the result of the UK referendum in June 2016,
parts of the UK property market may be adversely affectad by
Braxit Tnz negotiations continue end until the siracture of our
futurs relatonship with Continental Europe s clearer we cannot
fully asses impact on cocupation across each sactor. In addition, any
strangthening or weakening of Starfing will have a diract impact as a
propartion of our Balance Shesat is held in non-GBP denominated
currencies The currancy exposure is maintainad in fine with the
benchmark and will changa over time. As at 31 March 2019 72 9%
of the fund exposura liss to currancies other than GBP

Board monitoring and mitigation
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Lower eamings in the underying portfolio pattng prassurs on the

Comgany's ability to grow the dividend could result from & number

of factors:

® Jower eamings and distnbutions in investee companies;

® pralongad vacandies in the direct property porifoho;

® strengthening Starling reducing the value of overseas dividend
raceipts in Stering terms;

#® adversa changes in the tax treatment of dividends or other
income received by the Company; and

¢ changss in the timing of dividend receipts from investee
companies.

The Company has seen a material increase in the level of eamings

in recent years. A significant factor in this has been the weakaning

of Stering following the Braxit decision. This may reversz in the

near or medum tarm as the longer term implications of Brexit and

thie impazt en the UX economy are understood, leading to a fall in

2amings.

® Ths Board receives and considers regular income
forecasts.
® Income forecast sensitivity to changas in FX rates is also

monitarad,

# Ths Company has revenue reserves which can be drawn
upon whan raquired.

N o~ — - i [,
Accouniing and operational ris<s

Disruption or failure of systams and procassas underpinning
the senvices provided by third parties and the risk that these
supphars provide a sub-standard service.

® Third party sarvice providers produce periodic reports to the
Board on their control environments and business
continJation provisions on a regular basis.

® Tha Management Engagement Committee considers the
performance of each of the service providers on a regular basis
and considers therr ongoing appaintment and terms and
conditions,

@ The Custodian and Depositary are responsible for the
safaguarding of assets In the event of a loss of assats the
Depositary must return assets of an identical tye or
comasponding amount unless able to demenstrate that the
loss was the result of an event beyond their reasonable
control
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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Risk Identified

Financial risks

The Company's investment activities expose it to a vanety of
financial risks which include counterparty credit risk, liquidity
risk and tha valuation of financial instruments,

Board monitoring and mitigation

® Detalls of these risks togather with the policies for
managing these risks are found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements on pages 64 to 88,

Loss of Invastment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue & Customs
as an investment trust, subject to continuing to meet the
relevant eligibility conditiens. As such the Company is exernpt
fram capital gains tax on the profits reakised from the sale of
nvestments.

Any breach of the relevant eligibility conditions could lead to
the Company losing investment trust status and being subject
to corporation tax on capital gains realised within the
Company's portfolio.

® The Investrment Manager monitors the investment
portfolio, income and proposed dividand levels to ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The
results are reportad to the Board at each meating.

® The income forecasts are reviewed by the Company's tax
advisor through the year wha also reports to the Board on
the yearend tax position and on CTA 2010 compliance.

Legal regulatory and reporting 1isis

Failure to comply with the London Stack Exchange Listing
Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency rules; faflurs
to meet the raquirements under tha Alternative Investment
Funds Directive, the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
and other UK, European and overseas lagislation affacting

UK companias. Failura to maet the required accounting
standards or make appropriate disclosures in the Interim and
Annual Reports.

® The Board raceives ragular regulatory updates from the
Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisors and the
Auditors. The Board considers these reports and
tecommendations and takes action accardingly.

® The Board receives an annual report and update from the
Depositary.
® nternal chacklists and review procedures are in place at

seivice providers.

® The Extermal auditor review Interim & Annual Reports and
audit ye=ar end Financial Statements.
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Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or through the
use of derivatives may be utilisad from time to time. Whilst the
use of geanng is intended to enhance the NAY total return, it
will have the opposite effect when the return of the
Company's investment portfolio is negative.

® The Board receives regular reports from the Manager on
the levels of gzaring in the portfolio. These are considered
against the geaning imits set in the Investment Guideiines
and also in the context of currant market conditions and
sentiment.

Parsonnal changss at Investment Managar

Less of portfolio manager or other key staff.

& The Chairman conducts regular mestings with the Fund
Management team.

® Tha fea basis protacts the core infrastructure and depth
and quality of resourcas. The fee structure incentivises
good perfarmance and is fundamantal in the ability to
retain key staff.




Viability Statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UX Corporate Governanice Code, which requires the Company to assess the prospects
of the Company over the longar term, the Directors have assessed the prospects of the Company aver the coming five years
This period s used by the Board during the strategic planning process and the Beard consider this period of time appropriate for
a businass of our nature and siza.

This assessment takas account of the Company's current position and the policies and processes for managing the principal risks
set out on pages 28 to 31 and the Company's ability to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the
perod of assessment. In making this statement the Board carried out a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing the
Company, Including those that might threaten its business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity.

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have reviewed five-year forecas!s for the Company with sensitivity analysis to a number

of assumptions; imvestes company dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax rate and assat value growth.

In the assessment of the viability of the Company the Directors have noted that:

® The Company has a longterm invesiment strategy under which it invests mainly in readily realisable, publicly isted securities
and which restricts the level of bormowings.

® Of the curent portfolio, 69% could be liquidated within ten trading days.

& Current assets exceed current liabifitias at the Balance Sheet Date. At the Balance Sheet Date the Company had £65 million
undrawn cn its revolving loan facilities.

® The Company Invests in real estate related companies which hold real estate assets, and invests in commercial real estate
directly These investiments provide cash receipts in the form of dvidends and rental income.

® The Company is able to take advantage of its closed-ended Investment Trust structure and ablz to hold a proportion of its
portfolio 1 less liquid direct property with a view to long-term outperformance.

® The structure has also enabled the Company to secure long-term financing. EUR 50m loan notes issued in 2015 are due to
mature at par in 2026 and G8F15m loan notes issued on the same date are due to mature at par in 2031

® The expenses of the Company are predictable and modest in comparison with the assets. Regular and robust monitoring of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaken throughout the year.

® The Company has no employees and consequently does not have redundancy or other employment related liabilites or
respansibikties

® The Company retains title to its assets held by the Custodian which are subjact to further safeguerds imposed on the
Depositary.

® Thempact of Brexit has been considered in both terms of effect on Sterling and impact on the UK commercial property
maiket. 73% of the partfoiio is exposed to currencies other than Sterling and 7.0% is invested directly In UK commercial
property assets,

The following assumptions have been made in assessing the longer-term viability:

® Raal Estate will continue to be an investable sector of international stock markats and investars will continue to wish to have
exposure 1o that sector.

® (losed-ended Investment Trusts will continue to be wanted by investors and regulation or tax legislation will not change to
an axtant o make the structure unattractive in comparisan to other investment produdts.

® Thz performance of the Company wili continue to be satisfactory. Should the perfarmancs be less than the Board deems to
be satisfactory, it has the appropriate powers to replace the Investment Manager.

The Board has concluded that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the coming five years. The Company’s business model, capital structure and strategy have enabled
the Company to operate over many decades, and the Board expects this to continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Exarcise of voling powar
The Board has approved a corporate governance voting policy which, in its opinion, accords with current best practice
whiist maintaining a primary focus on financial retums.

The exercise of voting rights attached to the Company's portfolio has been delegated to the Manager who takes a global
approach to engagement with issuers and their management in all of the jurisdictions in which it invests. The Manager is
required to include disclosure about the nature of their commitment to the Financial Reporting Committee's Stewardship
Code and details may be found at v fandzcom.

Enviranmenta! policy & Sodially Responsible Invastmant

The Company considers that good corporate governance extends to policies on the environment, employment, human
rights and community relatfonships. Corporates are playing an increasingly important role in global economic activity and
the adopticn of good corporate governance enhances a cormpany's economic prospects by reducing the risk of
government and regulatory intervention and any ensuing damage to its business or reputation.

The Company has adopted an environmental policy i respect of its investments in both physical oroperty and listed
property campanies. Within the contaxt of the overall aim of the Company to maximise shareholders’ returns the
Directors will seek to limit the Company's and its investee companies’ impact on the environment and will comply with
all relevant legislation relating to its operations and activities.

The environmental policies and behaviour of all the companies in which the Company invests are taken into account in
decision making.

Cocd environmental managament can play a role in overall risk management and alsc have a finandial impact in terms
of savings through energy and water efficiency. Where appropriate the Manager wili engage with investee companies to
raise concerns about environmental matters.

So far as direct property investiments are concemed, the Company conducts environmental audits prior to purchase to
identify contamination or materials cansidered environmentally harmful. The Company will tke remedial action or
enforce tenant obligations to do so wharever appropriate. The Company's advisers assess the environmental impact of its
properties on an ongoing basis and will take all necessary action to comply with environmental rasponsibilities.

The Cempany has no greennouse gas emissions to repart from the operations of the Company, nor does it have
responsibility for any other emissions producing sources under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Raports) Regulations 2013, including those within its underlying investrment portfolio.

Divarsizy, Gender Repotiing and Human Rignts Palicy

The Board recognises the requirement under Saction 414 of the Companies Adt 2008 to detail information about employes
and human rights; including information about any policies it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness of these
policies. As the Trust has no employees, this requirement dees not apply. The Company 1s not within the scope of the

UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because it has not exceaded the turnover threshold and 1s therefore not obliged to make

a slavery and human trafficking statement. The Directors are satisfied that, to the best of their knowiadgs, the Company's
principal suppliers, which are listed on page 98, comply with the provisions of the UK Moderm Slavery Act 2015,

The Board currently compnses four male Directors and e recruitment process is currently ongoing as referred to in the
Nomination Comnitiee Report on pages 43 and 44. The Board's diversity policy is cutlined in more detail in the
Corporate Governance Report. The Manager has an equal cpportunity policy which is set out on its website

WAL BT O

By order of the Board
Hugh Seaborn
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Directors

Hugh Seaborn

David Watson

Huzh S2aborn, joined the Board of the O Ty
Coempany on 24 July 2007 and became i
Chairman m July 2015, He is 2 Chartered
Surveyar and has considerable
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Simona Marrisan

experience in the properly arena; he is
the Chief Executive Cfficer of the
Cadogan Estate. He was a member of
the Coundil and Audit Committze of the
Duchy of Lancastar until December
2013 from 2000 to 2009, he was Chief
cxecutve Officer of the Portman Estate,
heis Chairman of the Kmightsbridge
Business Groug, is past Chafrman of the
cstates Business Group and past
Chairman of the Westminster Praperty
Owiners Assaciation

Company on 1 April 2012, He became

the Senior Indapendent Directar in July |

2215 and was Chairman of the Audit |

Committze between 1 January 2013 and ‘
!
|

David Watson, joined the Board of the { A

gy

30 September 2018. He is a Chartered
Aczauntant and has had a distnguished
career in the Financial Services Industry.

AR

He spent 9 years as Finance Director of Tim Giltbanks

M&G Croup plc, where he was a directar
at faur equity investment trusts, and
mare racently at Aviva plc as Chief
Finance Officer of Aviva General
insurance. He is currently Deputy
Chairman of Countrywide plc and a
non-executive director of Kames Capital
plc and Hermes Fund Managers Limited,
where he1s Charman of the Audit
Committae. He is also Chairman of

The Tennis & Rackets Association Limitad

Ail dirsctors are indesendent ot the manager and are members of the Audit Commttes

Simen Marrisan, joined the Board of
the Company on 28 Seotember 2011,
M Marrison is CEO of Europe at LaSalle
Imvestment Managament and has
responsizility for a portfolis of over

0 5illion azrass Europe. Mr Marrison
has been basad in Pans sinze 1990
having started his carzar in London. Untl
1997 he was g partner at Healey & Baker
(now Cushman & Wakefield) and from
1837 t2 2001 he was at Rodamco
whers he became Country Manager for
rrance, He joined LaSalle nvestment
Managament in 2001 as Managing
Director for Conttnental Europe and
secame CEO of the entire European
business in 2007, Mr Marrisan is due

t3 step down as CEO of Europe at
Lasalle Investment Management to
bezome Chawman as at 1 july 2019.

Tim Giliz 1nks, jeined the Board of the
Company on 23 January 2018 and
berame Audit Committe2 Chairman on
1 Octaver 2018. Tim is 2 Chartered
Accountant, with 30 years' experience in
the financial services and investrments
industry Most recently he spent 13 yaars
at Columiia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Qperating Officer and finally as
tntenim Chief Executive Officer so brings
broad experience of investment
managsment to the Board He s also

a Trustee of Bloodwise.
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Maicus Phayre-Mudze
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Alban Lhonaeur

Marcus Phayra-Mudza, Fund Manager, joined the Managament tearn for the Company at Henderson
Glowal linvesiors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s direct property poitfolio and latterly
focusing on real estate equities, managing a number of UK and Pan Eurgpean real estate equity funds

in addition to activities in the Trust, Marcus moved te Thames River Capital in October 2004 where he 1s
also fund manager of Thames River Property Growth & Income Fund Limitad. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment survayor at Knight Frank (1930} and was made an Associate Partner in the
fund management divisian (1995). He qualified as a Charterad Surveyor 1n 1922 and has a BSc (Hons)
in Land Management from Reading University.

Io Elint, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors
then, since January 2005, at Thames River Capial, when she joinad as CFO for the property team. She
joined Hendarsan Global Investars in 1995, where she most recently held the pasition of Cirector of
Pracerty, Financa & Operations, Eurape. Praviously she was Corporats Finance Manager with Londan
and Edinburgh Trust plc and pricr to that was an investment/tr23sury analyst with Heron Corporation plc.
I3 has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of Mottingham and qualified as a Chartered

zoountant with Ernst & Young in 1983, Jo is a Non-Exacutive Directar and Audit Committee Chair of Polar
Capital Global Financials Trust plz.

Gaorz2 Gay, Direct Property Fund Manager, has been the Dirzct Prooerty Fund Manager since 2008.

He joined Thameas River Capitaf in 2005 as assistant direct progerty manager and qualified as a

Chartered Surveyor 1n 2006. Ceorge was previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper where
as an investment graduate he gained considerable industry exzerience. He has an MA in Property
Valuation and Law from City University.

Alban Lhonnaur, Deouty Fund Manager, joined Thames River Cagital in August 2008. He was previously
at Citigraup Clobal Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on Continantal Eurogean Real Estata
Prior to that he was at Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transpart equity research. He has
a BSc in Business and Management fram the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel University,
London. He alsa attended CERAM Nice High Businass School in 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 fram £SCP-EAR



Report of the Directors

The Directors prasent the audited financial statements of the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report and
Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Group comprises TR Property investment Trust pic and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. As permitted by legislation, some matiers normally included in the Report of the Directors
have been included in the Strategic Report because the Board considers them to be of strategic importance. Therefore
review of the businass of the Company, recent events and outlook can be found on pages 4 to 32.

Status
The Company is an investmeant company, as definad in Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006, and operates as an
investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the Corperation Tax Act 2010.

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares, with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium listed on
the London Stock Exchange.

The Company has receved confirmation from HM Revenue & Customns that the Company has been acceptad as an
approvad investrment trust for accounting periods cormmencng on or aftar 1 April 2012 subject to the Company
continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing requirements for
approved companies in Chaptar 3 of Part 2 investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax) Regulations 2011 (Statutory
Instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has conductad and will continue to conduct its affairs so as to
maintain investment trust status. The Company has alsc conductad its affairs, and will continue to conduct its affairs, in
such a way as to comply with the individual Savings Accounts Regulations. The Ordinary shares can be held in Individual

Savings Accounts (ISAs).

Rasulis and Dividends
At 31 March 2019 the net assets of the Company amounted to £1,328m (2018: £1,256m), on a per share basis
418.54p (2018: 335.64p) per share.

Revenue earnings for the year amountad to 14.58p (2018: 13.22p) and the Diractors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of 8.60p (2018: 7.55p) per share bringing the tota! dividend for the year to 13.50p (2018: 12.20p), an
incraase of 10.7% for the tull year. In arriving at their dividend proposal, the Board also reviewed the income foracasts for

the year to March 2020.

erformance details are set out in the Financial Highlights on page 1 and the outcome of what the Directors cansidar to
be the Key Performance indicators on pages 26 and 27 The Chairman's Statement and the Manager's Report give full
details and analysis of the results for the year.
Sharz Capitas and Buy-balk Aztivity
At 1 April 2019 the Company had 317,350,880 (2018: 317,350,980) Qrdinary shares in issus.

At the AGM in 2018 the Directors were given power to buy back 47,570,911 QOrdinary shares, Since this AGM the
Directors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at the nominal value of 25p each under this authority. The
outstanding authority is therefore 47570,911 shares.

This authority will expire at the 2019 AGM. The Company will seek to renew the power to make market purchases of
Ordinary shares at this year's AGM.

Since 1 April 2G19 to the date of this report, the Company has made no market purchases for canceilation. The Board
has not set a specific discount at which shares will be repurchased.
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Managemsnt Arrangaments and Fees

Details of the management arangements and fees are set ouit in the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning an page 46. Total fees paid to the Manager in any one year (Management and Performance Fees)
may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareholders' Funds. Tatal fees payable for the year to 31 March 2019 amount
to ©.9% (2018 1 2%) of Group Equity Shareholders Funds. included in this were performance fees eamed in the year
ended 31 March 2019 of £6,110,000 (2018: £10,188,000).

Basis of Accounting and 1FRS

The Group and Company financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (1FRS), which comprise standards and
interpratations approved by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (1AS8), together with interpretations of the
international Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee (IASC) that remain in effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the European Union and
as regards the Group and Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2008.

The accounting policies are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements on pages 64 to 68.

Coing Concern
The Directars’ assessment of the longer-term viability of the Company is set out on page 31.

As the Board is of the opinion that the Company can continue in operation for the foreseeable future, being for a period
of at least 12 months from the date that these financial staternents were approved, it has been concluded that the going
concern basis should be adopted for the preparation of the Financial Staternents for the year ended 31 March 2019.

internal Controls
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of intamal controls and for reviewing their effectiveness.

The Portfolio Manager is responsible for the day to day investment manzagement decisions on behalf of the Group.
Accounting and company secretarial services have both been ocutsourced.

The internal controls aim to ensure that the assets of the Group are safeguarded, proper accounting records are
maintained, and the finandial information used within the business and for publication is reliable. Contro! of the risks
identified, covering financial, operational, compliance and risk managemaent, is embedded in the contrals of the Group by
a series of regular investment performance and attribution statements, financial and risk analyses, AIFM and Portfolio
Manager reports and quarterly control reports. Key risks have been identified and controls put in place to mitigate them,
including those not directly the responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolio Manager. The key nisks are explained in more detall
in the Strategic Report on pages 28 to 30.

The effectiveness of each third party provider's internal controls is assessed on a continuing basis by the Compliance and
Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager, the Administrator and the Company Secretary. Each maintains its
own system of internal controls, and the Board and Audit Committee recewe regular reports from them. The control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage, rather than eliminate, risk of failure to achieve objectives.
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As the Company bas no empioyees and its operaticnal functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit Committee
dees rot consider it necessary for the Company to establish its own internal audit function. instead, the Audit Committee
relies on internal control reports received from its principal service providers to satisfy itself as to the controls in place.

The Board has established a process for identifying, evaluating and managing any major risks faced by the Group.

The Board undertakes an annual review of the Group's systern of intemal controls in line with the Turnbull guidance.
Business risks have also been analysad by the Board and recordad in a risk map that is reviewed regularly. Each quarter
the Board receives a formal repart from each of the AIFM, Portfclio Manager, the Administrator and the Company
Secretary detailing the steps taken to manitor the arsas of risk, induding those that are not directly ther responsibility, and
which report the details of any known internal contro! failures.
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The Board aiso considers the flow of infermation and the interaction betwaen the third party service providers and tha
controls in place ta ensure accuracy and completanass of the recording of assets and income. The Board raceives
a report from the Portfolio Manager setting cut the key contrals in operation.

The Board also has diract access to company secrefarial advice and services provided by Link Company Mattars
(previously cailed Capita Company Secratarial Services) which, through its nominatad representative, is responsible for
ensuring that the Board and Committee proceduraes are followed and that applicable regulations are complied with,

These controls have been in piace throughout the pericd under raview and up to the date of signing the accounts.

Key risks identified by the Auditors are considerad by the Audit Commilttae to ensure robust internal contrals and
monitoring procedures are in place 1n respect of these risks on an ongoing basis.
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The AGM will be held on 23 luly 2019 at 2:30pm. The Notice of AGM is set out on pages 92 and 93. The full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each is contained in the Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 85 and 97

Annual Gensral Masting (the

Al m e ot F A
tatera interasts

There were no contracts subsisting during or at the end of the year in which a director of the Company is or was
materially interested and which is or was significant in refation to the Coempany's business. No Diractor has a contract
of service with the Company. Further details regarding the appointment letters can be found on page 44.

Donztions

The Company made nc political or charitable donations during the year (2018: £nil).

Listing Rule Disclosura
The Company confirms that there are no tems which require disclosure under Listing Rule 9.8.4R in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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Voting Interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders’ rights, shares may be issued with such rights and restrictions as the
Company may by ordinary resolution decide, or (if there is no such resclution or so far as it does not make specific
provision) as the Board may decide. Subject to the Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and other shareholders’ rights,
unissued shares are at the disposal of the Board.

Voting
At a general meeting of the Company, when voting is by a show of hands, each share affords its owner one vots.

Restrictions on Voting
No member shall be entitled to vote if he has been senved with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Company with information conceming intarests in those shares required to be provided under the

Companies Act 2006.

Deadiines for Voting Rights
Votes are exarcisable at the general meeting of the Company in respect of which the business being voted upon is being
heard. Votes may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate reprasentatives.

The Articles provide a deadline for submission of proxy forms of not less than 48 haurs {or such shorter time as the
Board may determineg) before the meeting (not excluding non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated form and, subject to the Articles, title to uncertificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system. Subject to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any usual form or in any other form which the Board may approve.

Significant Voting Rights
At 31 March 2018, no shareheldars held over 32 of voting rights on a discretionary basis. However, at 31 March 2013
the following shareholders hald over 3% of the voting rights on a non-discretionary basis:

3y of

Trdinary share

Shareholdar vating rights*
Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.60%
Alliance Trust plc 6.96%
Rathbone Investment Management Lid 551%
Quiiiter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 4 78%
Investec Waalth & investment Ltd 451%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 4.40%
Charles Stenley Group plc 3.24%

* See above for tuthar information or the voung ights of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2019 1o the date of this report, the Company has not been informed of any notifiable changes with
respect to the Ordinary shares.



Repo 't of the Directors

Corporatz Govzmance Report
The Board of Directors is accountable to shareholders for the governance of the Company's affairs.

This statament dascribes how the principles of the 2016 edition of UK Corporate Governance Cade ("the Code”) issued
by the Financial Raportmo Council (the "FRC") in 2018 have bean applied to the affairs of the Company. The Code can
be viewed at woon booig vk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles
in applying the principies of the Code, the Directors have also taken account of the 2016 Code of Corporate Governance
publishad by the AIC (“the AIC Code"), which established the framawork of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trust companies. There is some overlap in the principles tzid down by the two Codes and there are some
areas where he AlC Code is more flexible for investment trust companias. The AIC Code can be viewed at

snza oo Following the update of the Code, the AIC Code has alsc bezn updated to reflect the changes

mp!emef\tﬂd by the Code, which the Board will report on for the year end 31 March 2020.

Following the publication of the 2018 edition of the UK Corperate Govermance Code, the Board, with assistance of the
Company Secratary, has undertaken a full review of the Company's governance, which appliss to the Company's financial
year commencing 1 Aprl 2018, and will repert further in due course.

The Directors believe that during the period under reviaw they have complied with the main principles and relevant
pravisions of the Coda, insofar as they apply to the Company's business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement
The Directors note that the Company did not comply with the following provisions of the Cade in the year endad

31 March 2019;

A2.1 Due to the nature and structure of the Company the Board of non-executive directars dees not feel it is appropriate
to appoint a chief executive,

3.5 & C3.6 As the Company has no employees and it5 operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the
Audit Committee does not consider it appropriate for the Company to establish its own internal audit function.

£.2.1 The Board does not have a separate Remuneration Committas. The functions of a Remunaration Committes are
cariied out by the Management Engagement Committee.

Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currantly consists of four directors, all of whom are non-executive and are independent of the Manager. None
of tha Diractors have any other links to the Manager. Mr Seaborn continues te gualify as independent, despite his length
of service due to being independent of the Manager and from any other business that couid materially interfere with his
judgment. The Board believes that diversity of experience and appreach, including gender dversity, amengst board
members is of great importance and it is the Company's policy to give careful consideration to issues of board balance
and diversity when making new appaintments,

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Assodiation, the Companies Act 2006 and any diractions given by spacial resolution,

the business of the Company is managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Company, whether relating to
the managament of the business of the Cempanry or not. In particular, the Board may exarcise all the powers of the Company
to borrow money and to mortgage or charge any of its undertakings, property, assats and uncalfed capital and to issue
debentures and ather securities and to give security for any debt, liability or abligation of the Company to any third party.

There are no contracts or arrangemeants with third parties which affect, alter or terminate upon a change of contral of the
Company.
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continvad

Directors

The Chairman is Mr Seaborn and the Senior independent Director is Mr Watson. The Directors' biographies, on page 33,
demonstrate the breadth of investment, commercial and professional experience relevant o their positions as Directors of
the Company.

Directors' retirement by rotation and re-election is subject to the Articles of Assodiation. In accordance with the Code, all
directors will be subject to annual re-election.

Mr Marrison, Mr Seaborn, Mr Gillbanks and Mr Watson will retire at the forthcoming AGM in accordance with the Code
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. All Directors are regarded as being free of any conflicts of interest
and no issues in respect of independence arise. The Board has concluded that ail Directors continue to make valuable
contributions and believe that they remain independent in character and judgement.

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of office in an event of a takeover bid.

Board Commitiass

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a Nomination Committee and a Management Engagemen: Commiittee,
which also carries out the functions of a Remuneration Committee. Al the Directors of the Company are non-executive
and serve on each Committee of the Board. It has been the Company's policy to indlude all Directors on all Committeas.
This encourages unity, clear communication and prevents duplicatian of discussion between the Board and the
Commitiees. The roles and responsiblilities of each Committee are set out on the individual Committee reports which
follow. £ach Committee has written terms of reference which clearly defines its responsibilities and duties. These can be
found on the Compary's website, are available on request and will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

Board Maetings
The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of
individual Directors, are shown below:

Board Audit MEC Nomination
Attended Eligible Attended Eligibie Aterded Eligibte tended Eiigibla

Hugh Seabom € 6 2 2 | 1 1 1
Simon Marrison 6 6 2 2 1 ] 1 1
Suzie Procter* 5 5 2 2 0] 0 1 1
DCavid Watson 6 & 2 2 i 1 | 1
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 1

* Suzie Procter retired from the Board on 28 Fabruary 2019

In addition to formal Board and Committee meetings, the Directors also attend a number of informal meetings to
reprasent the interests of the Company, and to discuss operational markets and succession planning.

Tha Board

The Board is responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs. Certain strategic issues are monitored by
the Board at mestings against a framework which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may be
arranged as required. The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
categorised under various headings, including strategy, management, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal controls,



Report of the Directors

e e el
0

gearing, asset aliocation, share price discount, contracts, investment policy, finance, risk, investmant restrictions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments.

In order to enable them to discharge their responsibilities, all Directors have full and timely access to relevant information.
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment performance and considers financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature. The Board moniters compliance with the Company's objactives and is responsible for
sefting asset allocation and investment and gearing limits within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion to act and
thus supervises the management of the investment pertfolio, which is contractually delegatad to the Portfolio Manager.
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The Board has respansibifity for the approval of investments in unquoted investments and any investments in funds
managed or advised by the Portiolio Manager. it has also adopted a procedure for Directors, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take ind=pendent profassional advice at the expensa of the Company.
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in ling with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the power to authorise any potential conflicts of interast that may
arise and impose such limits ¢r conditicns as it thinks fit. A register of potentia! conflicts is maintained and s reviewed

at every Board maeting to ensure all details are kept up-to-date. Appropriate authorisation will be sought prior to the
apoointrent of any new Director or if any naw conflicts arisa.

S=tations vt Sharensidars

Shareholder refations ara given high priority by the Board, the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager. The prime medium by
which the Company communicates with sharehiolders is through the Intenm and Annual Reports which aim to provide
shareholders with a clear understanding of the Company's activities and their results. This information 1s supplemented by
the daily calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Company's Ordinary shares which is published on the London Stock
Exchange.

This information is also available on the Company's website, o torzz2am, 2o together with a monthly factsheet
and Manager commentary.

At each AGM a presentation is made by the Manager following the business of the meeting. Shareholders have the
opportunity to address questions to the Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committes at the AGM. All
sharzholders are encouraged to attend the AGM.

itis the intantion of the Board that the Annual Report and Accounts and Notice of the AGM be issuad to shareholders so
as to provide at least tventy working days’ notice of the AGM. Sharsholdars wishing to lodge questions in advance of the
AGM, or to contact the Board at any other time, are invitad to do so by writing to the Company Secretary at the registered
address given on pags 98.

General presentztions are given to both shareholders and analysts following the publication of the annual results.
All meetings between the Manager and sharehoiders are repoited to the Board.

Dir2ctors’ indamnity

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover is in place in respect of the Directors. The Company's Articles of
Assaciation provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislation, an indemnity for Diractors in respact of costs which they
may incur relating to the defence of any proceedings brought against them arising out of thair positions as Dirsctors, in
which they are acquitted or judgement 1s given in their favour by the court.
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To the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s Articles of Association, the Company has entered into deeds of
indemnity for the benefit of each Director of the Company in respect of liabilities which may attach to them in their
capacity as Directors of the Company. Thase provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity provisions as defined by
section 234 of the Companies Act 2008, were introduced in January 2007 and currently remain in force.

Diractors’ statemant as to disclosuse of information to audins
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The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors' report are fisted on page 33.
Having made enquiries of fellow directors and of the Company’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms that:

® o the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there is no information (that is, information needed by the
Company's auditors in connection with preparing their repart) of which the Company's auditors are upaware; and

® cach Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of refevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This information is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the prowsions of Section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

By order of tha Board /

Hugh Szaborn

6 June 2019
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Chairman: Mr Seabori

IS

<=/ Rasponsioibiies

® Raview the Board and its Committees and make recommendations in relation to structurs, size and composition, the
balance of knowledge, experience and skill ranges,

® Consider succession planaing and tenura policy; and
& Review the outcome of the Board evaluation process.

The Nomination Committea maeats at least on an annual basis, and mere frequantly as and when required and last met
in January 2019.
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The Committee discussad succession planning of the Board, in particular the roles of the Chairman, Audit Committes
chairman and SID to ensure appropriate plans were in place. in October 2018, Mr Watson stepped down as Audit
Committee Chairman and Mr Gillbanks assumed the role. Mr Watson remains as Senior Independant Director.

Following the resignaton on of Suzie Procter from the Board at the end of February 2019, a key issue that the
Committee has considerad this year is the appointment of a new Nen-Exacutive Director. The Committee has engagad
an external recruitment company to assist in identifying potential candidates, which it has provided with a role profile
outlining the skills, attriibutes and experience that the Board is seeking from a potential candidate. A short list of
candidates has been compiled and is being formally interviewed by the entire Committee. When considering
appointments of directors, the Committee looks at the balance of skills, knowtedge and experience, induding gender
diversity, on the Board.

The Committes annually reviews the size and structure of the Board and will continue to review succession planning and
further receuitment and take info account the recemmendations of external Board evaluations.

in order to review the effectivenass of the Board and its Committeas and of its individual Directors, an evaluation was
carried out for the Board. This was done in the form of a questionnaire. The process was considered by the Board to be
constructive in terms of identifying areas for improving the functioning and performance of the Board and the
Committees, areas for additional focus going forward, the contribution of individual Directors, as well as building on and
developing individual and collective strengths.

The Chairman's effectiveness was assassad by ali other Board members and views fed back ta the Senior Independent
Diractor, The Chairman and Senior Independent Director confirm that the performance of each Director continues to be
effactive and demonstrates their commitment to the role. This includes extensive time for ad hoc communications
throughout the vear in addition to formal Board and Committee meetings. The Board believes it has a good balance of
skills, experience, mdependence and length of service to ensure it oparates effectively. The performance of the Company
is considered in detail at each Board meeting. In accordance with the provisions of the Code, 1t is the intention of the
Board to engage an extarnal facilitator to assist with the performance evaluation every three years. An external Board
evaluation was last caried out in January 2017.

In accordance with the Code, all Diractors will be submittad for re-glection on an annual basis.
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Diractors’ Traning

When a new Director is appaintad, he/she is offered training to suit their needs. Directors are also provided with key
informaticn on the Company's activities on a regular basis, including regulatory and statutory raquirements and internal
controls. Changes affecting Ciractors’ responsibilities are advised to the Beard as they arise. Directors ensure that they are
updated on regulatory, statutory and industry matters.

Lt
)
=
=L
b3
[+4
=
Q
O

Laetters of Appointmen®

No Director has a contract of emiployment with the Company. Directors’ ferms and conditions for appointment are set aut
in letters of appointment which are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company and will be on display
at the AGM.

Hugh Seaborn

Chovrman of the Nominzios Toroinzs

6 June 2019
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Managamant Engagament Commities

& Monitor and review the performance of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager;

Review the terms of the Investment Manager Agreement;

Annually review the contract of terms and agreements of each extamal third party service provider; and
® Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration of the Directors.

in addition to the Investment Management role, the Beard has delegatad to external third parties the depositary and
custadial servicas (which include the safeguarding of assets), the day to day accounting, company secretanal services,
administration and registration services. Fach of these contracts was entared into after full and proper consideration of the
guality of the services offered, including the control systems in operation insofar as they relate to the affairs of the
Company.

The Management Engagement Committee determines and approves Directors’ fees following proper consideration,
having regard to the level of fees payable to non-executive Directors in the industry generally, the role that individual
directors fulfil in respect of Board and Committee responsibilities and the time committad to the Cempany's affairs. For
further details please see the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 48 and 49.

The MEC meets at least on an annual basis, towards the end of the financial year and last metin March 2018,

Actisity during the year
Al the MEC meeting in March 2019, the Committee reviewed the overall performance of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager

and considered both the appropriateness of the Manager's appointment and the contractual arrangements (including the
structure and level of remuneration) with the Manager.

In addition to the reviaws by the MEC, the Board reviewed and considered performance reports from the Portfolic
Managar at 2ach Board mesting. The Board also received regular reports from the Administrator and Company Secretary.

The Board believe that the Manager's track record and performance remains cutstanding. As @ result, the MEC confirmed
that the AIFM and Portfolio Managar should be retained for the financial year ending 31 March 2020 being in the best
interests for all shareholders. A summary of the significant terms of the Investment Management Agreement and the third
party service providers who support the Trust are set cut below.

During the year the MEC also reviewed the perfermance of all their third party service providers including BNP Paribas,
Link Company Matters, Computershare, both the Company’s brokers and PwC (as tax advisors). The Pertfolio Manager
provides regular updates on the parformance of all third party providers during the year and attended this part of the
MEC Mesting. The MEC confirmed that they were satisfied with the level of services delivered by each third party
provider.
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Janagemeant Arrangements and Feas
On 11 July 2014, the Board appointad BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative Investment Fund Manager

(in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive) wath portiolio management delegated to the
investment Manager, Thames River Capital LLP.

The significant terms of the Investment Managament Agreement with the Manager are as follows:

MNotice Period

The Investment Management Agreement ("IMA") provides for termination of the agresmant by either party without
compensation on the provision of not fess than 12 months’ written notice.

Management Fees

The fes for the period under review was a fixed fee of £3,5565,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based on the
net assel value (determined in accordance with the AIC method of valuation) on the last day of March, june, September
and December, payable quarterly in advance.

The fee amrangements have been reviewed by the Board for the year to 31 March 2020 and will be unchanged.

The Board continues to consider that the fee structure aligns the interests of the shareholder and the Manager as well as
being highly competitive.

The fee arrangements will continue to be raviewed on an annual basis.

Performance Fees

In addition to the managemant fees, the Board has agreed ta pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of an
accounting period if certain performance objectives are achieved.

A performance fee is payable if the total return of adjusted net assets {after deduction of all Base Management Fees and
other expenses), as defined in the IMA, at 31 March each year outperforms the total return of the Company's benchmark
plus 19 {the "hurdie rate"); this cutperformance (exprassed as a percentage) is known as the “percentage
outperformance”. Any fae payable will be the amount equivalent to the adjustad net assets at 31 March each year
multiplied by the percentage outperformance, then muttiplied by 15%. The maximum performance fee payable for

a period is capped at 1.5% of the adjustad net assets. Howevey, if the adjusted net assets at the end of any period are
less than at the beginning of the period, the maximum performance fee payable will be limited to 196 of the adjusted net
assets.

If the total return of shareholders’ funds for any performance period is less than the benchmark for the relevant
performance period, such underperformance (expressed as a percentage) will be carried fonward to future performance
periods.

If any fee exceads the cap, such excess perfarmance (expressed as a percentage) wilt be carried forward and applied to
offset any percentage underperfaormance in future performance periods. In the event that the banchmark is exceeded but
the hurdle is not, that outperformance of the benchmark can be used to offset past or future underperformance. These
amounts can be used for offset purposes only and therefore cannot have the effect of creating a fee in a year where

a fee would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee in that year. At 31 March 2019 there is a carry forward of
outperformance of 1.8% (2018: 1.8%).
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Ne fe2 will be payable uniess the adjusted nat assets outperform the hurdle rate, after taking inte account any
accumulated percentage underperdformance brought forward at the beginning of the financial year. Performance fess
eamed in the year ended 31 March 2019 were £6,110,000 (2018: £10,188,000). Total fees paid to the Manager in any
one year (Management and Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.93% of Group Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees
payable for the year to 37 March 2018 amount to 0.9% (2018: 1.2%9) of Group £quity Shareheldars’ Funds.

Dapositary Arrangzmznts and Feas

BNP Paribas was appointed as Depositary on 14 July 2014 in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive. The Depositary's respansibilities include: cash monitoring; segregation and safe keeping of the Comparny's
financial instrumenits; and monitoring the Company's compliance with investment and leverage requirements. The
Depositary receives for its services a fee of 2.0 basis points per annurm on the first £150m of the Company's assats,

1.4 basis points per annum on assats above £150m and below £500m and Q.75 basis points on assets above £500m.

Raviav of Third Party Providsers' Feas

Custody and Administration Services are provided by BNP Panbas and Company Secretarial Sawvices by Link Company
Mtatters. The fess for thesa sanvices are charged directly to the Company and are comtained within other administrative
expenses disclosed in notes to the accounts.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction
The Board has prepared this report and the Directers’ Remuneration Policy, in accordance with the requirements of

Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Repoits) Regulations 2013. An
ordinary resolution for the approval of this repart will be put to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The law requires the Company's Auditors, KPMG LLP, to audit certain of the disclosures provided. Where disclosures have
been audited, they ars indicated as such. The Auditor's opinion is included in the ‘Independent Auditor's Report’

Annual Statement from the Chairman of the Commitiee

The MEC met in March 2019 and considered the feedback received as part of the Board evaluation alongside other
factors. Nan-executive fees of listad companies continue to rise, and the regulatory burden continues ever upwards.
Following the MEC meeting in March 2019, it was agreed that Non-executive Director's fees would be increased from
£34,000 to £35,000 with effect from 1 Apnl 2019. It was also agreed that those Directors holding the role of Audit
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect their additional
responsibility. It was further agreed that the Chairman’s fee would remain at £70,000 per annurm.

Diractars’ Remunaration Policy

The Company's policy is that the fees payable to the Diractors should reflect the time spent by the Board on the
Company’s affairs and the responsibilites bome by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable candidates of high
calibre to be recruited. The policy is for the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and the Senior
tndependent Director to be paid higher fees than the cther Directars in recognition of their more anerous roles. This policy
was approved by the members at the 2017 AGM, and the Directors’ intention is that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2070, In accordance with the regulations, an ordinary rescluticn to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy
will be put to Shareholders at least once avery three yzars, this is next due at the 2020 AGM.

The Directors are remunerated in the form of faes, payable monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or to &
third party specified by that Director. There are no long-term incentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specifically related to the Directors’ performance, either individually or collectively.

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directors, who are appeinted with the expectation that they will serve for

a period of three years. Directors’ appointments are reviewed formally every three yaars thereafter by the Board as

a whole. Nane of the Directors have a contract of service and a Director may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time; there are no notice periods, The terms of their appointment are detailed in a letter to them when they join

the Board. As the Directors do not have service contracts, the Company does not have a policy on termination payments.

There is no natice period and no payments for lass of office were made during the period. The Company's Articlas of
Association currently limit the total aggregate fees payable to the Board to £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’ remuneration are communicated at the Company's AGM and are taksn into
account in fermulating the Directors remuneration policy. At the last AGM, over 98.5% of sharsholders voted for the
resolution approving the Directars’ Remuneration Report (1.4% against), and over 98% voted for the resolution
appraving the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (1.5% against), showing significant shareholder support.
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Annual Remunszration Reoort
For the y=ar endad 31 March 2019, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman: £70,000 (2018:

£70,000) and all other diractors: £34,000 (2018: £33,000). An additional £5,000 is paid per annum for each of the a
roles of Audit Committee Chairman and Senior Independant Director. The actual amounts paid to the Directors during ﬁ
the financial year under review are as shown below. g
v ——— . L E
mount of each Director’s emoluments {audited)
The fess payable in respect of each of the Directors who served during the financial year were as follows:
31 Karch 3919 31 atach 2018
£ E
Hugh Seaborm 70,000 70,000
Simon Marrison 34,000 33,000
Suzie Procter (retirad 28 February 2013) 311,187 33,000
Dawid Watson 41,5300 43,000
' Tim Cilibanks (joinad 23 Sanuary 2018) 35,502 6,388 |
John Glen {retired 25 July 2017) G 10,409
Total 213,187 195,757

Company Performancs

The graph below cormpares, for the eight years ended 31 Maich 2019, the percentage change over each perod in the
share price total return to shareholders compared to the share price total return of benchmark, which the Board
considers to be the most apprapriate benchmark for investment performance measurement purposes. An explanation of
the performance of the Company is given in the Chairman's Statement and Manager's Repart.

Diractors interasts in Shares (E'inf:’jd) Performance Graph - Share Prica Totat Raturn
, ] for Ordinary Share Class
. ry
The interests of the Diractors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or 5200 \
date of appointment, if later, were as follows; 3307 e 75—
3,000 ; :
51 Marzh 3i Mah L / i
12i8 2018 -2
Q:dinasy Crdiray +200 P
sharzs of sha-es of 33500 SR, L v/\v“’
23p 250 5 o L /’\/
S Marrison 26547 26,086 250 Mfw
S E Procter MN/A 16,6861 208 mzf/
15cg 5
H Seaborn 34,668 34,668 7
1,930 :
D Watson ]0:37D 10,057 Viar  Mar Mar Mas Al AE I Ay M2 Rar o Aar '
T GE“baﬂkS D O 22803 2N zZan 223 204 223 2ME N o21R ot
Share Price Tetal Retumn assuming m\:elslt;ﬂent s; E1,00C on
. . 31 March 2009 and reinvastrrent of all dradends (excluding
Since 31 March 2019 to the date of this report, thera dealing axvenses) (Source Thames Rier Capital) s |
have been no subsequent changes to the Directors’ ——  Berchmark Tatal Raturn assuming notiordl investment it the
interests in the SL'IaFES of th Coﬂpany ndax of £1,0C0 or 31 Marzh 2003 {Source Tharres Rivar Capraly \
SH ] 2 i . J
Relative Importance of Spa a;
- P pend on Pay " For and on behalf of the Board
Percentage
2013 2013 ncrease;’
£'Doo EO00 (decr2ase)

Hugh Seaborn
Dividends paid 39,510 35,067 12.67% T e = a T rocemrziiETgIgET e ot Tas
Directors Fees 2313 186 8.67% 6 June 2019
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committes
Chairman: Mr Gillbanks

Key Responsibilitizs

& Review the internal financial and non-financial contrals;

® Review reports from key third party service providers;

® Consider and recommend to the Board for approvai the contents of the draft Interim and Annual Reports;
® Review accounting policies and significant financial reporting judgements;

#® Monitor, togather with the Manager, the Company’s comphiance with financial reporting and regulatory requirements;
and

& Review the findings, performance and remuneranon of the external auditor.

Representatives of the Manager's intarnal audit and compliance departments may attend these Commitice meetings at
the Committea Chairman's raquest.

Representatives of the Company's Auditor atiend the Cornmittee meetings at which the draft Interim and Annual Report
and Accounts are reviewed, and are given the opportunity 10 speak to the Committee members without the presance of
the representatives of the Manager.

The Board recognises the requirsment for the Audit Committee as a whole to have competence relevant to the sector
and at least one member with recent and relevant financial experience. During the year, Mr Watson stepped down as
Chairman of the Audit Committee and Mr Gillbanks assumed the role. The Chairman and Mr Watson are Charterad
Accountants with extensive and recent experience in the Financial Services Industry. The other members of the
Committee have a combination of property, financial, investment and business experience through senior positions held
throughout their careers.

Activity during thz yazr

During the year the Committee met taice with all members at each meeting and considerad the following:
® The Group's Internal Controls and consideration of the Reports thereon and Risk Map;

& The ISAE/AAF and SSAE 1S reports or their equivalent from F&C and BNP Paribas;

& Whether the Company should have its own internal audit function;

& The impact and processes ralating to the recent regulation, and the continuing requirerments under MFID 1, the
requirements under PRIIPS and GDPR;

® The External Auditor's Planning Memorandum setting out the scope of the annual audit and proposed key areas of
focus;

® The reponts from the Auditor concerning its audit of the Financial Statements of the Company and consideration of
Significant issues in refation to the Financial Statements;

® The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the accounting policies of the Company, including the reasonableness of
any judgements required by such policies,



Report of the Audit Committee

® The Viability Statement and consideraticn of the preparation of the Financial Statements on a Geing Concern Basis
taking account of forward looking income forecasts, the liquidity of the investment portfalic and debt profile;

® Tne financal and other disclosures in the Financial Statements;

® The information presentad in the Interim and Annual Reports to assess whzther, taken as a whole, the Reports are
fair, balanced and undarstandable and the information presented will enable the shareholders to assess the
Company's performance, business model and strategy; and

® The perfarmance of the external auditor, to approve their audit fees and consider the assessment of independance.

Ini=rnz! controls and miznagamant of risk

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of Internal Controis and for reviewing their effactivenass. Key
nsks identfied by the Auditars are considered by the Audit Committee to ensurs that robust internal controls and
monitoring procedures in respact of these are in place on an ongeing basis. Further details can be found on pages 28
to 30,

The Audit Committee raceivad and considered reports on internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas of
concern were highlighted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered to identify any new risks and whether any adjustments were required o
existing risks, and the controls and mitigation measures in place in respect of these risks.

Based on the processes and controls in place within the BMO Group and other significant service providers, the Board
has concurred that there is no current need for the Company to have a dedicated interna! audit function.

Signifizant Issuas in relation to the Financial Statements

The Comimittee has considered this report and Financial Statements and the Viability Statement on page 31. The
Committze considered the Auditor's assessment of risk of material misstaterment and reviewed the internal controls in
place in respect of the key areas identified and the process by which the Board moniters each of the procedures to give
the Committee comfort on these risks on an ongoing basis. These risks are also highlightad in the Company's Risk Map.

® Valuation of the Group’s Quoted investments — The Group's investments are priced for the daily NAV by
BNP Paribas. The quoted assets are priced by the Administratcr’s Global Pricing Platform which uses independent
external pricing sources. The control process surrcunding this is set aut in tha BNP Paribas ISAE 3402 internal
Controls Raport and testing by the reporting accountant for the period reported to 31 December 2018 did not reveal
any significant exceptions. The quarterly control report to the Board from BNP Panbas covering the period up to
31 March 2019 had no issues to report. In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using an alternative prcing
source on a daily basis as an independent check.

® Valuation of the Group’s Direct Property Investment - The physical praperty portfolio is valued every
six months by professional independent valuers.

Knight Frank LLP value the pertfolio on the basis of Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional
Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA 1 Valuations for Inciusion 1n Financial Statements, which appiy the
definiton of Fair Value adopted by the International Financial Reporting Standards. IFRS 13 defines Fair Value as:

“The amount for which an asset could be exchanged, g liability settisd, or an equity instrumant grantzd could be
exchanged, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an armi’s length transaction”
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Report of the Audit Committee
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Continued

In undertaking their valuation of each property, Knight Frank have made their assessment on the basis of a collation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investments, rental and sale transactions, togather with evidence of demand
within the vicinity of each property. This information has then been applied to the properties, taking inta account size,
location, terms, covenant and other material factars.

® The Impact of uncertainties due to the UK exiting the European Union - the impact of Brexit has been
considered in both terms of the effect on Sterling and the impact of the UK commercial property market. 73% of the
portfolio exposure is to currencies other than Sterling and 7% of the portfolio is invested in UK commerdial property
assets.

There has been nothing brought to the Committee’s attention in respect of the financial statements for the period ended
31 March 2019, which was material or significant or that the Committee felt should be brought to shareholders’ attention.

The Company's extemnal auditor, KPMG LLP was appointed as the Company's auditors at the 2016 AGM. The Committee
expects to repeat a tender process no later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following 31 March year end, in line
with the latest Corporate Governance provisions and EU Requirements.

During the year, KPMG presented their Audit Plan for the year end at the interim Committee mesting and the Committee
considered the audit process and fee proposal. The Committee also reviewed KPMG's independence policies and
procedures including quality assurance procedures. It was considered that these policies are fit for purpese and the
Directors are satisfied that KPMG are independent.

Total fees payable to the Auditor in respect of the audit for the year to 31 March 2019 were: £70,000 (2018 £70,000),
which were approved by the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2018 faes of £15,000 were paid to the Auditor in respect of the audit of subsidiaries of
the Company for prior periods.

The Committee has approved and implemented a pelicy on the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit services,
taking into account the recommendations of the Accounting Practices Board with a view to ensuring that the external
Auditor does not provide non-audit services that have the potential to impair or appear to impair the independence of
their audit role. The Committee does not believe there to be any impediment to the Auditor's objectivity and
independence.

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 March 2019 were nil {2018: nil).
Fuli detalls of the Auditor's fees are provided in note 6 to the accounts on page 70.

Following each audit, the Committae reviews the audit process and considers its effectiveness and the quality of the
services provided to the Company. The review following the completion of the 2619 Audit concluded that the Committee
was satisfied with the Auditor's effectiveness and performance. The Committee felt that KPMG had run en effective and
efficient audit process with appropriate challenge. The Committee was satisfied with the Auditor's performance and

a resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as the Company's Auditor will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

Tim Gillbanks

Chavman of the dads Compejies

6 June 2019



Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to
the Group financial statements

The Directors ars responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
staternents in accordance with applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare group and parent company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the group and the parent company financial staternents in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU) and
applicable law.
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Under company law the Diractors must not approve the {inancial statements unlass they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent company and of therr profit or loss for that period. In
preparing each of the group and parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

® sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable;
® state whather they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU;

® assess the group and parent company's ability to continue as a geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern; and

& use the going concemn basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or
to cease operatians, or have no realistic alternative but to do sa.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company
and erable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible far
such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financizl statements that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and int2grity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Fach of the Directors listed on page 33 conlirms that to the best of thair knowledge:
® the financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRs as adopted by the European Union, give a true and fair

view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole; and;

® the Annual Report, includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of
the Trust, together with a description of the principal risks and uncenainties that it faces; and
® the accounting records have been properly maintained; and

® the Annual Repor, taken as & whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the nacessary information for
shiareholders to assess the company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board

Hugh Seaborn

i e
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6 June 2019
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to the members of TR Property InvestmentTrust plc

1. Quropinionis unmedifiad

We haveaudited the financial statements of TR
Property Investment Trustplc {"the Com pany”) for the
yearended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Group
Statement of Com prehensive (ncome, Group and
Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
Flow Statements and the related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

— the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group’s and of the
parent Company's affairs as at 31 March 2019
and of the Group's return for the year then
ended;

— the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as
adopted by the EU);

— the parent Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

— the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006; and, asregards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs {UK)")
and applicable law. Ourresponsibilities are described
below. Wae believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.  Qur audit opinion is consistent with our report
to the audit committee.

Woe were appeinted as auditor by the directors on 2
November 2016. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is for the 3 financial years ended 31
March 2019. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and we remain independent of
the Company in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as
applied to listed public interest entities. No non-audit
services prohibited by that standard were provided.

£13.9m {2018: £13.7m}
1% {2018: 19%) of Total Assets

Materiality:
group financial
statementsasa

whole
Key Audit Matters vs 2018
New risk The impact of
uncertainties due to
the UK exiting the
European Union on our .
audit
Recurring risks  Valuation of direct <>
property investments
Carrying value of S

quoted investments




2. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of mostsignificance in the audit of the financia
statements andinclude the most significant assessed risks of materialmisstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us,
including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. We summ arise below the key audit matters in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our
key audit procedures to address those matters and, asrequired for public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These
matters were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, ocur
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently areincidental to that opinion, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

" 'Ourresponse

The impactof
uncertainties due to
the UK exiting the
European Unionon
our audit

{Group and Parent
Comp any)

Refer to page 29
{principal risks), page 31
fviability statement)
page 7 (Manager's
Review)

Unprecedented levels of uncertainty:

All audits assess and challenge the
reasonableness of estimates, in
particular as described in valuation of
direct property investments below, and
related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concern
basis of preparation of the financial
statements. All of these depend on
assessments of the future economic
environment and the Group's future
prospects and performance.

In addition, we are required to consider
the other information presented in the
Annual Report including the principa!
risks disclosures and the viability
statement and to consider the directors’
statement that the annual repert and
financial statements takenasawhole is
fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business
model and strategy.

Brexitis one of the most significant
economic events for the UK and at the
date of this report its effects are subject
to unprecedented ievels of uncertainty of
outcomes, with the full range of possible
effects unknown.

We developed a standardised firm -wide approach to the
consideration of the uncertainties arising from Brexitin planning
and performing our audits.

Our procedures included:

Qur Brexit knowledge - We considered the directors’
assessment of Brexit-related sources of risk for the Group's
business and financial resources compared with our own
understanding of the risks. We considered the directors’ plans
to take action to mitigate the risks.

Sensitivity analysis - When addressing valuation of direct
property investmaeants, we compared the directors’ analysis to
our assessment of the full range of reasonably possible
scenarios resuiting from Brexit uncertainty.

— Assaessing transparency — As well as assessing individual

disclosures as part of our procedures on valuation of direct
property investments we considered all of the Brexit related
disclosures together, including those in the strategic report,
comparing the overall picture against our understanding of the
risks.

Qur results:

As reported under valuation of direct property investments,
we found the resulting estimates and related disclosures in
respect of the degree of estimation and sensitivity to key
assumptions made when valuing the direct property
investments to be acceptable. We also found disclosures in
relation 1o going congern to be acceptable. However, no audit
should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all
possible future implications for a company and this is
particularly the casein relation to Brexit.

KPMG



2. Key audit matters: including our assessment of risks of material misstatement (continuad)

"Ourresponse

Carrying value of
quoted investments

(Group and Parent
Company}

(£1,189.5 milion; 2018
£1,217.9 million)

Refer to page 51 {Audit
Comnmittee Report),
page 66 (accounting
policy) andpages 73-76
{financial disclosures)

Low risk, high value:

The Group's portfolic of quoted
investments makes up 85.0% (2018:
89.1%) of the Group's totalassets (by
valuel and is one of the key drivers of
results. We do not consider these
investments to be at a high risk of
significant misstatement, crto be
subject to a significant level of
judgement because they comprisea liquid,
quoted investments. However, due to
their materiality in the contextof the
financial statements as a whole, they are
considered to be one of the areas which
had the greatesteffecton our overall
audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

Our procedures included:

— Tests of Detall: Agreeing the valuation of 100 per cent of
guoted investments in the portfolio to externally quoted
prices; and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100 per cent of quoted
investment holdings in the portfofio to independently received
third party confirmations from investment custodians.

Our results:

— We found the carryingamount of quoted investments to be
acceptable {2018 acceptable).

Valuation of direct
property investments

(Group and Parent
Company}

{£101.9 million; 2018:
£98 .0 million}

Refer to page 51 {Audit
Committee Report),
page 65 (accounting
policy) and pages 73-76
ffinancial disciosures)

KPVIG

Subjective valuation:

7.3% (2018: 7.2%) of the Group’s total
assets (by value) are held in investment
properties.

The fair value of each property reguires
significant estimation, in particular over
the key assum ptions of the estimated
rental value and the yield. The key
assumptions will be impacted by a

num ber of factors including location,
guality and condition of the building and
tenant credit rating.

The effect of these mattersis that, as
part of our risk assessment, we
determined that the valuation of
investment properties has a high degree
of estimation uncertainty. The financial
statements disclose the sensitivity
estimated by the Group.

Our procedures included:

— Assessing valuer's credentials: We evaluated the
com petence, experience and independence of the external
valuer;

— Methodology choice: We held discussions with the external
valuer to understand the valuation methodology used;

— Benchmarking assumptions: \We held discussions with the
Group's external progerty valuer to understand movements in
property values. For a sample of properties where the fair
value movements were outside our predetermined
thresholds, we challenged the key assumptions used by the
valuer upon which these valuations were based, including
those relating to forecastrents and yields, by makinga
comparisonto our own understanding of the marketandto
industry benchmarks;

— Assessing transparency: We also considered the adequacy
of the Group’s disclosures about the degree of estim ation and
sensitivity tc key assum ption made when valuing the
investment properties.

Qur results:

— We found the Company’s valuation of investment properties
tc be acceptable {2018 acceptable).



£1,399m (2018:£1,367m}

3. Ourapplication of materiality and

an overview of the scopeofouraudit

Materiality for the group financial statements as a whole
was setat £13.9m {2018; £13.7m), determined with
reference to a benchmark of total assets, of which it
represents 1% (2018: 1%]}.

In addition, we applied materiality of £3.3m (2018:£2.3m)
to investment income, other operating income, gross
renta! income and net revenue returns on contracts for
difference, for which we believe misstatements of lesser
amounts than materiality for the financial statementsasa
whole could reascnably be expected to influence the
Company's members assessment of the financial
performance of the Group.

Materiality for the parent Company audit was set at
£13.2m {2018: £12.9m), determined as 0.9% of the total
assets of the parent Company {(2018: 0.9%).

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected
or uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding
£695,000(2018: £683,000), in addition to other identified
misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Qur audit of the Com pany was undertaken tothe materiality
level specified above and was performed at the
administrator'soffice in Dundee and in KPMG's offices in

Edinburgh.

The audit team performed the audit of the Group asif it
was a single aggregated set of financial information. This
approach is unchanged from the prior year, The audit of
the Group was performed using the Group materiality level
set out above.

Materiality
£13.9m (2018: £13.7m)

Total Assets

£13.9m

Whgle financial statements
materiality

(2018: £13.7m}

8 £13.2m
MR Farent company materiality
{2018: £12.9m)

£0.7m

Misstatements reported to the
audit committee (2018: £0.7m)

Total Assets

KPMG

Wz have nothingto raport on goingcencern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the
going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Group or Company or 1o cease aperations, and they have
concluded that the Group and Company’s financial position
means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that
there are no material uncertainties that could have cast
significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going
concern for atleast a year from the date of approval of the
financial statements (“the going concern period”).

Qur responsibility is to conclude on the appropriateness of
the directors’ conclusions and, had there been a materia!
uncertainty related to going concern, to makereference to
that in this audit report. However, as we cannot predict all
future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
result in cutcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable atthe time they were made, the
absence of reference to a materialuncertainty in this
auditor's report is not a guarantee that the Group will
continue in operation.

In aur evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we
considered the inherent risks to the Group's business
model, including the impactof Brexit, and analysed how
those risks might affect the Group’s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the going concern period.
We evaluated those risks and concluded that they were not
significant enough to require us to perform additional audit
procedures.

Based on this work, we are required to report to you if:

« we have anything materialto add or draw attention to in
relation to the directors’ statementin note 1 to the
financia! statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group and
Company’s use of that basis for a period of at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements; or

+ therelated statement under the Listing Rules set out on
page 36 is materially inconsistent with our audit
knowledge.

We have nothing to report in these respects, and we did
not identify going concern as a key audit matter.



We have nothing to report on the other informationin
the Annual Report

The directors areresponsible for the other information
presented in the Annual Report together with the financial
statements. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

QOur responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether, based on our financial

statem ents audit work, the information therein is materially
misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements or
our audit knowledge, Based solely on that work we have
not identified materialmisstatements inthe other
information.

Strategc report and dirsctors’ report
Basedsolely on our work on the other information:

— we have not identified materialmisstatementsinthe
strategic report and the directors’ report;

— in our opinion the information given in those reports for
the financial yearis consistent with the financial
statements; and

— in our opinion those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Dirs=ctors’ ramanara hion reoart

In our opinion the partof the Directors’ Remuneration
Repert to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosures of princ-pal risks and longsar-term visbility

Basedon the knowledge we acquired during our financial
statements audit, we have nothing materialto add or draw

attention to in relation to:

— the directors’ confirmation within the Viability Statement
on page 31 that they have carried out a rcbust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group,
including those that would threaten its business model,
future performance, solvency and liquidity;

— the Principal Risks disclosures describing these risks
and explaining how they are being managedand
mitigated; and

— the directors’ explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Group,
over what period they have done so and why they
considered that period to be appropriate, and their
statementas to whether they have areasonable
expectation that the Group wil be able to continue in
operation and meaet its liabilities as they fal due over the
pariod of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
qualifications or assumptions.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
Viahility Statement. We have nothing to report in this
respect.

U ]
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Qur work is Imited to assessing these matiersin the
context of only the knowledge acquired during our financial
statements audit. As we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subseguent events may resultin
cutcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were
reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of
anything to report on these statements is not a guarantee
as to the Group's longer-term viability.

Corporate govearnance disclosures
We arereguired to report to you if:

— we have identified materialinconsistancies between the
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider
that the annualreport and financial statements takenas
a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Group’s position and performance, business
rmodel and strategy; or

— the section of the annual report describing the work of
the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us te the Audit Committee.

We are required te report to youif the Corporate Governance
Statementdoes not properly disclose a departure from the
eleven provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rules for our review,

We have nothing to report in these respects.

We have nothingto report on the other matters on
whichwe are required to report byexception

Under the Companies Act 2008, we are required 1o report
to you if, in our gpinion:

— adequate accounting records have not been kept, or
returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

— the financia! statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

— we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects,



Respectiveresponsibilities
Drectors’ responsibilisies

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page
53, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of the
financial statements including being satisfied that they give
a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due ta fraud or errof; assassing the Group and
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the Group or Company or to
cease operations, or have n¢ realistic alternative but to do
s0.

Auditor’s responsibites

Cur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whather due to fraudor other
irregularities {see below) or error, and to issue our opinion in
an auditor's report. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of
assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with 1SAs (UK} will always detect a material
misstatement when it existz. Misstatements canarise
from fraud, other irregularities or error and are considered
materialif, indivicdually orin aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to nfluence the economic
decisions of users takenon the basis of the financial
statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at vouww feo g L diorsresgonsioifites,

Irragularities — ability o datast

We dentified areas of laws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercialand
sector experience, through discussion with the directors,
the investment manager and the administrator {as required
by auditing standards}and discussed with the directors and
the manager the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations
throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of nen-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statem ents varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that
directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies
legislation), and its qualification as an Investmant Trust
under UK tax legislation, any breach of which could lead to
the Group losing various deductions and exemptions from
UK corporation tax, and we assessedthe extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our
procedurgs on the related financial statement items.

KPMG

lrrequlantas - ab ity to datact (continued)

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of noncompliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in
the financial statements. forinstance through the
imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following
areas as thase most likely to have such an effect: the
Listing Rules and certain aspects of company legislation
recognising the financial and regulated nature of the
Group's activities and its legal form . Auditing standards limit
the required audit procedures to identify noncompliance
with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors
and management and inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any. These limited procedures did not
identify actualer suspected noncompliance.

Owing to the inherent imitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements inthe financial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the
further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations
(irregularities) is from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it. In addition, aswith any audit, there remained a
higher risk of nondetection of irregularities, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional emissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. We
are not responsible for preventing noncompliance and
cannot be expected to detect noncompliance with all laws
and regulations.

8. Thepurposeofour auditwork and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company’'s members, asa
body, inaccordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. CQuraudit work has been undertaken
so thatwe might state to the Company’'s members those
matters we arereguired to state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
repoit, or for the opinions we have formed.

ly{Senior Statutory Auditor)

on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
artered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

E145GL

6 June 2019



Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year end=d 371 March 2013

Year ended 31 March 2019 vear gnded 31 AMach 20112
Revenue Capital Captal
Return Retum Total Rk Tota:
Muotas E'D00 £060 £000 £000 £'000
Income
Investment income 2 44,771 - 44,771 40,267 - 40,267
Other operating income 4 674 - 674 495 - 495
Gross rental income 3 3,659 - 3,659 3,971 - 3,971
Service charges income 3 1,608 - 1,608 1,397 - 1,397
Gains on investments held at
fair value 10 - 96,594 96,594 - 140,470 140,470
Net movement on foreign
pee exchange; investments
; and loan notes — {1,483) (1,463) - (2,845) (2,845)
Net movement on foreign
exchange; cash and cash
equivalents - (503) (308} ~ 921 921
Met returns on contracts
for difference 10 6,469 {18.380) (11,911) 4,624 6,358 10,982
Total Income 57,181 76,243 133,424 50,754 144,304 195 655
Expenses
Management and performance fzes 5 {1,514) (10,653} (12,167) (1,389) (14,355) (15,744)
Direct property expenses, rent .
payable and service charge costs 3 (1,940) - {1,940) (1,947) - (1,947}
Other administrative expenses 6 (1,271} (564) {1,835) (1,308) (558) {1,865)
Total operating expanses (4,725) (11,217) {15,942) (4,644) (14,91%) (19,557)
Overating profit 52,456 65,026 117,482 46,110 125,991 176,101
Finance costs 7 {851) (2,554) (3,405} (772) (2,070; (2,842)
Profit from operations
before tax 51,605 62,472 114,077 45,338 127921 173,259
Taxation 8 (5.351) 3,479 {1,872) (3,383) 2,326 (1,057)
Total comprehensive income 46,254 65,951 112,205 41,955 130,247 172,202
Earnings per Ordinary share 9 14.58p 20.78p 35.36p 13.22p 41.04p 54.26p

The Total column of this statement reprasents the Group's Statement of Cormprehensive Income, prepared in accordance
with IFRS. The Revenue Return and Capital Refurn colurmns are supplementary to this and are prepared under guidance
published by the Association of investrent Companies. All iterns in the above statement denve from continuing
operaticns.

The Group does not have any other income or expense that is not included in the above statement therefore “Total
comprehensive incame” is also the profit for the year,

All income 15 attributable to the sharehclders of the parent company.

The notes on pages 64 to B8 form part of these Financial Statements.



Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

FaEues T

Group
Share Share {apital Retainad
Capital Premium Rzdemption Earnings
Grdinary Account Resares Ordinary Tetat
Forthe yaar ended 31 March 2018 Netes E'500 €060 £'600 £000 £00g
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43,162 43971 1,069,088 1,255,559
Tota! comprehensive income - - - 112,205 112,205
Dividends paid 17 - - - {39,510} {39,510}
At 31 March 2019 78,338 43,162 43,51 1,161,783 1,328,254
Company
Shars Shave Capital Rzizinad
Canital ramium Rzdamniica Exraings
Crdinary Aczaunt Regarsd Crainary Total
For the yaarendad 31 March 2019 Moves £eco £000 €950 £o00 £'000
At 31 March 2018 79,333 23,162 43,971 1,085,038 1,255,55%
Total comprehensive income - - - 112,205 112,203
Dividends paid 17 - - - {39,510) {38.510)
At 31 March 2019 73,338 43,1862 43,9717 1,161,783 1,328,254
Group
Share shere Capra: Retaimed
Capitat Prarium Padeription Carmngs
Crdinar, Azcount Resere Ordinary Total
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Meres U0 Four) £ora BT £030
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43,162 43,971 951,953 1,118,424
Total comprehensive income - - - 172,202 172,202
Dwidends pad 17 - - - (35,067} {35,067)
At 31 March 2078 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,089,088 1,255,559
Company
Shate Shara Coaaia Petainad
Capata P Federmprnr Eainngs
Crdirary Accourt Reserse Qrcmary Totai
For the year ended 31 March 2018 Netes 2060 E00% 2000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2017 79,338 43162 43,971 851,953 1,118,424
Total comprehensive incorme - - - 172,202 172,202
Dividends paid 17 — - - (35,067) (35,067)
At 31 March 2018 79,338 43162 43971 1,089,088 1,255,559

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these Financial Staterments.

3




Group and Company Balance Sheets

a5 at B} pMarch 20132

Group Campany Croup ompany
2015 2018 2018 2013
|\l 25 E'QOU £0060 £000 el l4]
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 1,291,442 1,291,442 1,316,046 1,316,046
Investments in subsidiaries i0 - 50,442 - 50,470
1,221,442 1,341,884 1,316,046 1,366516
Deferrad taxation asset 12 243 243 243 243
1,291,685 1,342,127 1,316,289 1,366,759
Current assets
Debtors 12 54,892 54,770 32574 32,452
Cash and cash equivalents 52,282 52,280 18,114 18,110
107,174 107,050 50,688 50,562
Current liabilines 13 (12,520)  (62,832)  (52,543) (102,887)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 94,654 44,312 (1,855) (52,325}
Total assets less current liabilities 1,385,335 1,386,339 1,314434 1,314,434
Non-current liabilities 13 (58,083)  (58,085)  (58375)  (58875)
MNet assets 1,328,254 1,328,254 1,255559 1,255,559
Capital and reserves
Calfed up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43971 43971
Retained eamings 16 1,181,783 1,161,783 1,089,083 1,089,088
Equity shareholders” funds 1,328,254 1,328,254 1,25555% 1,255,559
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 418.54p 418.54p 395.64p 395.64p

These financial statements were approved by the directors of TR Property Investment Trust plc (Company No:84492) and

autherised for issue on

H Seaborn
Dhirctor

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements,



Group and Company Cash Flow Statements

Forths Victd ended T1 Warch 2079

Group Company Croup Corpany
2018 1019 25 2012
E006 £'G0O0 000 2000
Reconciliation of profit from operations before
tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
Profit from aperaticns before tax 114,677 114,077 173,259 173,255
Finance costs 3,405 31,405 2,842 2,842
Gains an investments and derivatives held at
fair value through profit or loss {78,214) (78,186) (146,828) (146,767)
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents and laan notes (292} {297) 185 186
{Increase)/cecrease in accrued income {1,128 (1.123) 218 218
Net sales/(puichases) of investments 115,685 115,683 (19,448) (19,4486)
{Increase)/decrease in sales settlement debtor {3.334) {3.333) 8,288 8,288
Increase/(decrease) in purchase settlemant creditor 1,474 1,473 (5,869} {5,869)
incraase in other debtors {18,350) {18,350} (2,710) (2,710)
{Decrease)/increase in other creditors (3.711) (3,737) 9,194 9,154
Serip dwidends includad in investment income and
net returns on contracts for difference {3,162) {5,162) (4,920) (4,920)
Net cash inflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 120,449 120,451 14,214 14,235
Interast paid {3,391) {3.391) (2,774) (2,774)
Taxation paid {1,872) (1,872) (1,625) {1,625)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 115,186 115,188 9,815 9,836
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid {39,510) (39,510) (35,067) (35,067}
{Repayment)/drasudown of loans {41,000) {41,800) 38,000 36,000
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (80,510) {80,510) 933 933
Increase in cash 33,676 34,678 10,748 10,769
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 18,114 18,110 6,445 6,420
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash equivalents (508} (508) 921 921
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 52,282 52,280 18,114 18,110
Note
Dividends received 45,249 46,249 42,097 42,097
Interest received 669 65% 484 434

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these Financial Statements.




Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

The financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2019 have be=n prepared on a going concarn basis, in accordance with
Intarnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which compnse standards and interpretations approved by the International
Ascounting Standards Board (IASB), together with interpratations of the Intemational Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committ2e approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) that remain in effect, to tha
ext2nt that they have besn adopted by the European Union and as regards the Company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companias Act 2006, The finandial statements bave also been preparad in accordance with
the Statament of Recommended Practice (SORP), "Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital
Trusts,” to the extent that 1t is consistent with IFRS.

The Group and Company financial statements ara expressad in Sterling, which is their functional and presentational currency.
Sterling is the functional currency because it is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Croup operates
Values ara roundad to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except where otharwise indicated.

Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the finandial statements necessarily requiras the exercise of judgemsant, both in applcation of accounting
policies, which arz sat out below, and in the selection of assumptions used in the calculation of estimatas. These estimates and
judzemants are reviewad on an ongoing basis and ara continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
Hewever, actual resuits may differ from these estimates The anly key estimate is considerad to be the valuation of investment
proparties. See section (f) of this note. There are not considered to be any kay judgemants.

a) Basis of consclidation
The Croup finandal statements consolidate the financial staterments of the Company and its subsidianes to 31 March 2019 All
the subsidiaries of the Company have been consclidated in these financial statements.

In accordance wath IFRS10 tha Company has been designated as an 1rvestment entity on the basis that'

& It obtans funds from investors and prowides those investors with investment management sefvices,;

*+ It commits 1o its investors that its business purpase is to invest solely for returns from cepital appreciation and investment
ncorne; and
* [t measures and evaluates performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis,

Each of the subsidiaries of the Company was established for the sole purpese of operating or supporting the investment operations of
the Company (induding raising additional firancing), and 15 not itself an 1nvestment entity. IFRS 10 sets out that in the case of controlied
entities that support the investment adivity of the Investment entity, those entities should be cansclidatad rather than presented as
nvestments at fair value. Accordingly the Company has consolidated the results and financial pasitions of those subsidiaries.

Subsicharies are consolidated from the date of ther acquisition, being the date on which the Company obtains contrel, and
continue to be consolidated unt! the date that such contrel ceases The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the praparation
of the consoldated financial statements are based on consistent accounting pohcies. All intra-group balances and transactions,
incdluding unreafised profits arising therefrom, are efiminatad. This is consistant with the prasantation in previous yesars,

b) Income
Dividends receivable on equity shares are traatad as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis. Where no ex-diidend data 15

available, dividends receivable on or befors the year end are traated as revenue for the year. Provision is mede for any divdends not
expected to be received. Where the Group has elected to receive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather than cash
the amount of cash dvidend foregone is recognised as income. Differences between the value of shares receved and the cash
dividend foregone are recogrised i the capital retumns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income. The fixed retums on debt
ecurities are recognised on a time apporticnment basis so as w reflect the affective yield on each such secunity Interest receivable
from cash and short term deposits is accrued to the end of the yzar. Stock lending income is recogrised on an accruals basis
Underarting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares undenwritten arz required to be taken up, nwhich case the
proportionate commission received is deducted from the cost of the investment,

Recognition of property rental income is set out in section (f) of this nots.
Racognition of income from contracts of difference is sat out 1n section (g) of this note.
c) Expenses

All expenses and finance costs are accounted for on an gccruals basis An analysis of retained 2arnings brokan down inte revenue and
capital items 15 givers in note 16, In amving at this breakdown, expenses have bean prasentad as revenue tems excapt as follovs:



Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

Y

1 Arcounting policias conrus
s

»  Expenses which arz incidental 1o tha acquisition or disposal of an invastment,

»  Fxpenses arz presentsd as capital where a connection with the maintsnance or enhancameant of the value of the investments
can be demonstratad, this includes irecoverable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of rasidential leases as
premiums received for extending or terminasing leases are recognisad in tha capital account;

»  DOne quarter of the base management fee is chargad to revenue, vith three quartars aliocated to capital ratum to raflect the
Board's expectations of long term investment returns. Al performance fees are chargad to capital retum;

*  The fund administration, depositary, custady and company secretanal services are chargad diszctly to the Company and are
mncheded vathin 'Other administrative expenses’ in note &. These expenses are charged on the same basis as the basz
management fee; ona quartar to income and thres quarters to capital

d} Finance costs
The finance costin respect of capnral instruments other than equity shares is calculated so as to give a constant rate of retur on
the outstanding balarce. One quarter of tha finence cost is charged to revenusz and three quartars w capizal return.

e} Taxation
Current tax assats and habilities are maasured &t the amount expacted to be racovered from or paid to tha taxznon authanties,

basad on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enactad by the balance sheet data.

rT

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates o items that are credited or charged to equiy. Othenvise incoime
tax 15 recognised in the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income.

The tax effect of different items of expenditura is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group's efiectiva rate of tax for
the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

£ S e

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP, the allocabon method used to calculate tax relief on e<penses prasantad
aganst capital returns in the supplementary informaiion in the Statement of Comprehensive lncore is the "marginal basis”
Under this basis, if taxable income 1s capable of baing offset entirely by expenses prasented in the revenue return column of the
Statement of Comprahensive Income, then no tax relief is transferred to the capital column,

Deferrad tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases usad in the computation of taxable profit, and 15 accounted for using the balance sheet
lighility method. Deferred tax liabilites are recognised for alf taxable temporary differances and deferred tax assets are recognised fo the
extert that 1t1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductibie ternporary ditferances can be utihsed

The Company is an wwestrnent trust under 51138 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, 1s not liable for tax on capital
gains, Capital gains arising in subsidiary companies are subjact to capital gains tax.

f) Investment property
Investment property is measured witiatly at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional

fees for legal services and initial leasing commissions to bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cast of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is
incurred if the recognition criteria are met The purchase and sale of properties is racognised to be effzcted on the date
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment proserty is stated at fair value. Gains or fossas arising from changes in the fair values
are included in the Group Statement of Comprahensive Income in tha year in which they arise.

Investment proparty is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdraun from use and no futtre economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses ars recognised in the Group Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the
year of disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of invesiment property are determined as the difference betwaen net disposal proceeds ard the
carrving value of the asset at the date of disposal.

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group caries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, ravalued twice a year with changss in farr
values being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. The Group engaged Knight Frark LLP as
independent valuation specialists to detarmine fair value as at 31 March 2012,




Notes to the Financial Statements

continued
] Ancounting policias conimuzad

Valuations of investment properties
Determination of tha fair value of investment properties has been prepared on the basis defined by the RICS Valuation Standards

6th Edition {The Red Book) as follows:

“The estimated amount for which a proparty should exchengs on the date of valuauon between & willing buyer and a willing seller in an
armi's kength transaction after proper marketing whersin the partizs had each ected knowledgeably, prudently and without cormpulsion”

The valuation takes into account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenanis’ profiles, fuiure revenue streams, capital values
of fitures and fitings, plant and machinary, any environmental mattars and the overall repair and condition of the property) and
discount rates applicable to those assats These assumptions are based on local market conditions existing at the balance shest date.

In arriving et their estimates of fair values as at 31 March 2019, the valuers have used thew market knowledge and professicnal
judgerment end have not only relied solsly on histerical ransactional comparebles. Examples of inputs to the valuation can be
B seen in the sensitvity analysis disclosed in nota 10(f).

Rental income
Rerital income recevable under aperating leases is recognised on a straight-ing basis over the tarm of the lease, exzept for

contngent rantal income which is recognised when 1t arises.

Incentives for lessees to enter into lease agrsaments are spread evenly ovar the lease term, even if the payments are not made
on such a basis. The lease term is the non-cancellable pariod of the lease together with any further term for which tha tenant bas
the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the directors are reasenably certain that the tenant will
exercise that ophon. Premiums recelved to terminatz or extend Jeases are recognised in the capital account of the Group

Statement of Comprehensive Income when thay arise.
Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

fncome arising from expensas recharged to tenanis is recognised in the penod in which the expense can be contractually
recovered, Service chargas and other such receipts are induded gross of the related costs in revenue as the dirsctors consider

that the Graup acts as principal in this respact.

g) Investments
When a purchase or sale 1s made under contract, the terms of which require delivery within the timeframe of the relevart market,

the investments concamed are recogrisad or derecognised on the trade data.

All the Group's invastments are defined under IFRS as investments designated as fair vatue through profit or loss but are also
described in these finencial statements as investmeants held at fair value,

All Investments are designatad upon initial recogninon as held at fair value, and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair value, which, for quotad invastments, is deemead to be closing prices for stocks sourced from Buropean stock exchanges and
for SETS stocks sourced from the London Stock Exchange. SETS 15 the Londen Stock Exchange electranic trading sanace covering
maost of the market including all the FTSE All -Share and the most liquid AlM constitients, Unquoted investments or investments
far which thers is only an inactve market are held at fair value which is based on valuations made by the directors in accordance
with IPEVCA guidelines and using currant market prices, trading conditions and the general economic cimate.

In its financial stataments the Company recognises its investments in subsidieries at adjusted net asset value, The subsidiaries
have historicelly been holding vehicles for direct property invastment or finarcing vahicles. No assets are currently held through
the subsidiary structure and all financing mstrumenits are diractly beld by the company

Changes i the fair value are racognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensivie Income On dispesal, realisad gains and
losses are alse recogrisad in the Croup Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Derivatives

Denvatives ara held at fair value based on traded prices. Gains and lossas on derivative transactions are recogrised in the Group
Staternent of Comprehensive income. Gans and lossas on CFDs resulting from movemants in the price of the underlying stock
are treated as capital. Dvidends from the underlying investment are treatad as revenue and financing costs of CFDs are treated as
ravenue/capital expensas.

Gains and losses on forward currency contracts used for capital haedging purposes are treatad as capial.
Y p g P



Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

1 Accounting policias consiuzd
Contracts for Difference ("CFDs") ara synthztic equities and are valuad by reference to the investments’ undarlying markat values.
The saurces of the returns under the derivative contract (2.g. noticnal dwidends, finanang costs, interest returns and capital
changes) are allocated to the revenue and capital eccounts in alignment with the nature of the underying source of inceme and
in accordance with the guidance given in the AIC SORP. Notional dividend income or expenses arsing on long or short posttions
ars apportionzd whelly to the revenue account. Notional intarast expense on long pesitions 15 apportionad between revenue and
capital in accordance with the Board's long term expected returns of the Compeny (zurantly determinad to be 257 to the
revente account and 737 to capital reserves). Changzs in valuz relating to uniderlying price movements of secunties in relation
to CFD exposures arz allocated whaolly to capital reserves

h} Borrowings, loan notes and debentures
Al leans and dabentures are initially recognised at the fair value of the considerztion received, lass issue costs where anplicable.
Alter initial rzcogniton, all interest beanng loans and borrowings arz subsequently measured at amortised cost

Amortised cost is calcelated by taking into account any discount or pramium on seffiement. The costs of arranging any interest

bearing loans are capitalised and amortised over the life of the loan on an effective interast rate basis,

i) Foreign currency translation

Transactions invalving foreign cusrsncies are convartad at the rate ruling at the datz of the transaction.

Foreign currancy monetary assets and habilities are translated into Sterling at the ra‘e rulng on the balance sheet dete. Foraign

excnange differences are recogmsed in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

j} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and casn equivaiants comprise cash in hand and demand deposits.

k) Dividends payable to shareholders

Interim dividends ars recognised in the period in which they are paid and final dvidends ara racognised when approved by

sharzheldars.

l) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period

Thne accounting policies adopted are consistant with those of the previous consolidated financial statements except as noted
below.

IFRS 9 — Finangial Instruments IFRS 9 intraduces new requirements for the classification and measurament of finanaal asszts
and finandial habilives, impairment for financial assets and general hedge accounting. The Croup has applied the standard in the
currznt financial year and the impact assessment from its adopunon concluded that there was no material impact on the financial
statements. The Sroup's invastments ramain classified as fair value through profit or loss and are measurad at fair value through
profit or less. The application of IFRS § has not resulted ir 2ny change to the valuation of nvestments nor were any othar
adiustmentis required. Other assets and liabilities continus to be measured at amortisad cost, except for Contracts for difference
and Foreign eschange forward contracts which continue to be measurad at farr value, Other assats were assessed for cradit risk
and no mpatrment provisions were required. The Group does not undertake any hedgs acoounting activities.

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers. IFRS 15 speafies how and when an eniity should recognise revenue. The
Group has applied the standard in the current financial year and the mpact assessment from ts adoprion concluded that there
was ne material impact on the finandial statements given that approximately 905t of the Group's income is derived from financial
imstruments under IFRS 9.

in addition the Croup has adapted the following amendments and interpratations in the current financial year, none of which
have had a matzrial impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 2 - Shara basad payments.
1AS 40 — Transfer of Investment Propesty.
IFRIC Intarpratation 22 Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance Consideration.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (Amendmeants to IFRS 1 Firs: time Adeption of IFRSs and 145 28 Investments 1n

Associates and Joint Ventures).
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1 Accounting policias coamiued

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issued before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2019 will not have a material effect on
equity or profit for the subsequent period. The Group has not early adopted any new International Financial Reporting Standard or
Interpretation Standards, amendments and interpratations issued but not yet effzctive up to the date of issuance of the Group
financial statements are listed below:

IFRS 16 — Leases (effective 1 January 2019). The Group dass nat expect the financial impact of this standard on the finandal
staternents to be matenal. The objective of IFRS 16 is to specify the pnndiples for recognition, measurerment, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The Group has not entered into any lzases as a lesses ard acts only in its capacity as a lessor. The Group's
leases will continue to be classified as oparating leases with the leesed assets recognised in the balance sheat.

IFRS 3 amendments (effective 1 January 2020). The amendments prowide more guidance on the dehnition of & business to
assist In determining whether a transaction results i an asset or a business acquisition, The amendmanis are not expected to
have a matenal impact an the Group’s financial stataments.

Amandments 10 145 1 and 1AS 8 — Definition of Matenal {affective 1 January 2020) The International Accounting Standards
Board has refined s definition of "matenal” and issued practical guidance on applying the concent of matzriality. The
amendrments are not expectad to have a matenal iImpact on the Group's financial statements

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts (effective 1 January 202 1) The IFRS introduces a comprehansive model for all insurance and
reansurance contracts, based on fulfilinent objective, using current assumptens and discount rates. Gwen the nature of the
Croup's businass, the IFRS is not expected to have a material impact on the financial stataments,

Arzndments to IFRS 10 and 1AS 23 — Salz or Contribution of Assets betwezn an Investor and its Associate or Joint Vanture
(effective date postponed until completion of broader ravew) The amendments seek to resolve a conflict between existing
guidance on consclidation and equity accounting when a parent company loses control of a subsidiary in a transaction with an
associats or joint venturs. The amendments are not expected to have a matena' Impact on the Group's finanoal stataments

2 Investmant income

2019 e

£000 e
Dividends from UK listed investments 2,304 3,658
Diidends from overseas listzd investmsnts 23,085 24,806
Scrip dividends from listad investments 8,226 4623
Property income distributions 11,156 7180

43771 10,267
3 Nstrental income

2013 2012

£0080 F000
Gross rental income 3,659 3,971
Service charge income 1,608 1,397
Diract property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs {1.940) (1,947)

3327 3421
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Net rental incomea cootinusg

Operating leases
The Group has enterad into commercial lzases on its property pertfalio, Commercial property leases typically have lease terms
between 5 and 15 years and middude dauses to enable pericdic upward revision of the rental charge according to pravailing

markst conditions. Some leasas contain options to break before the end of tha lease term

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable cperating leases as at 31 March are as follows:

2018 2512
£000 Eonn
wWithin 1 year 3,600 4,100
After | year but not mora than 5 years 10,750 12,000
tlore than 5 years 16,725 13,850
31,075 32,950

Crtnzr operating income
2019 2048
E'G00 £000
Interest receivable 35 35
Interest on refund of ovarseas withholding tax 351 450
Undenuniting commission 234 -
674 495

Undenvriting s part of the process of introducing new securities to the market The Company may participate in the underarniting
of investee companies’ secunties, as one of a number of participants, for which compensation in the form of commussion is
recaived. The Company only partiopates in underaritng having assessed the rsks involved and in securities in which it is
prepared to meraase its holding should that be the outcome. The commission eamned 1s taken to revenue unless any securities
underumitten are required to be taken up in which case the proporionats commission is deducted fram the cost of the
investment, During the year the Company partidpated in one (2018: nong) undenariting and all commission eamead was taken to
revenue and 1s shown under Other operating income

Managemant and performance fzes

013 019 013 2018 2018 2012
Ravenue Capital Tatal Raverue Capita! Tow
Return Return Rewrn Retm
£000 £000 E'OCO £000 £060 £000
ianagement fee 1,514 4,543 6,057 1,389 4,167 5,556
Performance fee - 6110 6,110 - 10,188 10,188

1,514 10,653 12,167 1,339 14,355 15,744

A summary of the tarms of the managemant agreament is given 10 the Report of the Directors on pages 36 and 37,
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6 Other adminisirative expensas

2019 2013
£000 E'000
Diractors’ fees (Directors’ Ramuneration Report on pages 43 and 43) 213 196
Auditar's remuneration:
— for audit of the consolidated and parent company finencial statements 70 70
— for audit of prior period financiel statements of subsidianes - 15
Legal fees - 17
Taxation fees 182 172
Other administrative expensas 185 134
Other expenses 4990 459
Irrecoverable VAT 131 155
i Expenses charged to Ravanys 1,271 1,308
P Expenssas charged to Capital 554 558
1,833 1,888

The audit of the pror peried financial statements of subsidianes comparative figura related to the 18 months from 1 Apnl 2015 to
30 September 20146,

Other adrinistrative expenses nclude depositary, custody and company secretanal servicas These expenses are charged on the
same basis as the basa management fes; one quartar to mcome and three quarters to capital Total other administrative
expenses chergad to both incomie and capuial ars £740,000 (2018: £736,000)

Other expenses include broker fees, marketing and PR costs, Diraciors’ National Insurance and recruitment, Registrars and listing
fees, and annual report and other publication printing and distribution costs. These expenses are charged solely to ths revenue

account,
VAT on costs incurred in connection with the extension of the residential leases on The Colonnades are chargad to the capital
account.

7 Finance cos's

2019 2012

E'G00 £000

Zank ioans and gverdrafts rapayable within 1 year 2,017 1,364
Loan notes repayable aftzr 5 years 1,388 1,396
HMRC interest - az
3,405 2,842
Amount allccated to capital return {2,554) (2070}

851 772
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a) Analysis of charge in the year

2615 2619 2018 2017
Ravenue Capital Total Tord)

Raturn Return
£000 £'000 E‘000 £000 £aen £ 000
UK corporaton tax at 197 (2018: 19%} 3,488 (3.483) 4 2,374 (2,374} -
Overseas taxation 2,729 - 2,729 2,664 44 2,908
6,217 (3.483%) 2,733 5,238 {2,330) 2,208
{Over)/under provisior m respect of prior years {853) 5 (861} (1,855} 4 (1,851}
Currani tad chargs for ths yaar 5,551 (3,479) 1,872 3,383 (2,326) 1,057

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
Thie tax assessad fur the yearis lower (2015: loveer) than the standard rate of corporate tax in the UK for a large company of 197

1207130 1950).
The diftzrence is explained below:
2013 2012 2319 2018 2018 08
Ravenus Capital Tatal Favernag Captal Tora
Raturn Raturn Rzt Ratur
E000 E'O00 £00o EN0G =000 £'000
Net profit on ordinary activities before taxahion 51,605 652,472 114,077 45333 127921 175259
Corporation tax charge at 1995 (2018; 1340) 9,805 11,873 21,675 8,614 24,305 32,219
Effacts of;
Non taxable gains on investments - {18,353) (18,353) - {26,689) (2568%)
Currency moverments not taxable wr 374 373 - 386 356
Tax rzliel on expenses {chargad)/credited to capital - (939} (939} - 803 803
Non-taxable retums - 3,492 3,492 - {1,208y (1,208}
Non-taxable UK dividends {811} - (3d1) {936) - (935}
Non-taxable overseas dividends {5,538} - (5,545} (5,350) - (5,350}
Overseas withnolding taxes 2,729 - 2,729 2,854 44 2558
{Over}/under provision in respact of prior y24ars {8686} 5 {851) {1.855) 4 (1,851)
Disallowable expenses 64 (27) 37 19 - 19
Dafarred tax rot provided B 99 105 27 48 76
5,351 (3,473} 1,872 3,335 {2,328) 1.057

The Croup has not recognised deferred tax assets of £1,106,000 (2018: £1,802,000) arising a5 a result of losses caried formard,
It is considerad too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses would be availzble to

offsat against and, on this basis, the deferred tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company's status as an Investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the condiions reguirad w abtain
approvel for the forseeatle futurs, the Company has not provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the ravaluation cr
disposal of mvastments. In raspact of properties held in subsidiaries, provisier for capiral gains tax has been made for ravaluation

surpluses not sheltered by brought fonvard capital lesses or non-trade dabits.
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8 Taxation continusd

¢) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for deferred taxation provided at 19%: (2018:

1540) comprise:

2019 201% 2019 2018 2018 2018
Revanuz Capital Total Ravenue Capital Tatal
Ratuin Retum Return Rewrn
Group €000 £060 £000 00 £'0C0 200U
Accelerated capital allowances 107 - 107 107 - 107
Unutilised losses carried forward - (350) {350) - (350) (350)
Shown as:
Deferrad tax hability/(asset) 107 {350) (243) 107 (350) (243)
2013 2009 2019 2018 2018 2018
Ravenus Capital Total Ravgnie Capita Total
Return Return Retm Returr
Company £'000 £000 E'DGO £000 £'000 £000
Acceleratad capital allowances 107 - 107 107 - 107
Unutilised lusses caried forward - (350) {350} - (350) (350)
Shown as:
Dafarrad tax liahility/(asset) 107 {350) (243} 107 (350) (243)
The movement in provision in the year is as follows:
2019 2019 2019 2008 2018 2018
Revanue Capital Total Revenue Capral Total
Raturn Return Relurn Retun
Group E'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Provision at the start of the year 107 {330) (243) 107 (350) (243)
Accelerated capital allowances - - - - - -
Provision at the end of the year 107 {(350) {243) 107 (350) (243)
2019 2019 2019 2008 2me 2012
Revenue Capital Total RaverLe Capiral Tota
Return Return Raum Return
Company €000 E'000 £000 £000 £000 £0Co
Provision at the start of the year 107 {350} (243} 107 (350) (2433
Acceleratad capital aliowances - - - - - -
Provision at the end of the year 107 {350) {243} 107 (350) (243)
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9 Eamings pershare

]

Earnings per Ordinary share

The sarnings per Ordinary share can be analysed betwveen ravenus end capital, as below

‘Yaar ended Yzar encied

31 March 31 March

2019 plnk

€000 £000

Net revenus orofi 48,254 41,355
Net capital profit 65,951 130,247
Net total profit 112,205 172,202
Weighted averags number of shares in 1ssus during the year 317,350,980 317,350,930
pence ealadl

Revenue 2zarings per share 4.58 13.22
Caprta! 2armings per share 26.73 41.04
35358 5126

Earrings per Ordinary share

The Group has no sacurities in issue that could dilute the ratum per Ordinary share, Trerefore the basic and diluted retum per

Ordinary shara are the same.

Investmants hala a: fair valus

a) Analysis of investments

Group Company Croup Company
2019 2013 2018 218
E000 £00C £00 £'000
Listed 1n the United Kingdor 426,798 425,798 401,967 401,567
Uniisted in the Unitad Kingdom 377 377 153 153
Listad Gverseas 762,338 752,338 815,915 815,915
Investrent properties 101,929 101,929 93,011 98,011
Investmeants held at fair value 1,291,442 1,291,532 1.316.045 1,316,045
Investments in subsidiaries at fair value - 50,442 - 50,470
1,291,332 1,341,884 1,516,045 1,366,516

b) Gains on investments held at fair value
Yaar ended Y2ar ended
31 Masch 1 March
2019 2012
£°000 £'000
Rzahsed gains on sale of investments 75,858 77.647
Unrzalised movement in investment holding gains 15,736 62,823
Cains on imeestrents hald at fair value 96,594 140,470




Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

10 Investrnants held at tair value continued

c) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuaton fat E Valupation ravenue revenye

31 Rharch adeditions/ E Jatsn/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 {cigpasals) {depreciation) 2019 2019 2018

£'000 £'050 ET00 £'gae £°000 £000

Listed investments 1217832 (121,957) 9321 1,189,136 44,682 40,267
Unlisted investments 153 - 224 3177 89 28
Contracts for difference 4325 14,675 (18.320) {3.210) 6,46% 4,624
Total investments segment 1,218,530 (107282} 75,055 1,185,303 51,230 44,919
Diract praperty segment 35,011 759 3153 101,929 5,267 5,368
1,316,541 {105,523) 73214 1,238,232 55,307 50,287

In seeking to achieve its invastmeant objective, the Company invests in tha shares and sacurities of property companies and
proparty refated businesses intarationafly and also in investment property lacated in tha UK The Company therafora considers
that there ara two distinct raporting segmants, invastments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and
allocation of rescurces. The Baard, which 15 the prinaipal decision makear, recenas information on the two segments an a ragular
basis. WWhilst revenue streams and direct property costs can be attnbuted to the reporiing segments, gzneral administrative
expanses cannot be sphit to allow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revanues for each segmant
ar2 shown above.

The properey costs includad within note 3 are £1,940,000 (2018 £1,947000) and deducnng thesz cosis from the direct
proparty grass revenue above would resultin net income of £3,327000 (2018: £3,421,000) for the direct property reporting
segment.

d) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Grass

valizatien Dt Rt Vatuatian revenue revenue

31 March addinors,” apprzaanon,’ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2018 fdisposals) 2019 019 w08

£'060 £000 £'000 £008 E'ano0

UX listed equities and convertibles 401,967 17542 426,798 13,371 10,838
UK unlisted equities 153 - 377 89 28
UK direct property’ 8,017 759 101,929 5,267 5,368
Continental Europaan fisted equities 815915 {139,839) 762,338 31,311 29,429
1,316,045 (121,158} 1,291,442 50,038 43,6583

UK contracts for differance 920 7430 {2,924} 3,635 2,383
European contracts for differance’ (425) 7,135 (286) 2,834 2,24
1,316,541 {106,523} 73,214 $,288,232 56,507 50,287

lcludad in the above figures ere purchasa costs of £276,000 (2013 E£470.000) and sales costs of £114,000 (2018
E211,000). These comprise mainly stamg duty and commission.
" Net additions, {disposals) includes £1,435,000 (2053 £330.200) of capital axperditurs hat acpr=calion (denrecation} includes amoents in respedi ol

ranl froe

1ef0as.
venue for contracs tor diffronce reletes 1o dviderds recerable, on an ex denderd Besis, on the Lnderhrg pusmons held, The
app 2aabien {deprecation) w CFUs relates to the moverrenlic far valuz in the year

e) Substantial share interests

The Group held interests in 370 or more of any class of capital in 12 companies (2018 8 companies) we imvest in. None of
these investments 15 considered significant in the context of these tinandial statements. See note 21 on pages 87 and 83 for
further details of subsidiery investments
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Invastmants hald at fair valus coniines

fy Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and finanzal iabilives ars carizd in the Balance Sheat eithar a2t ther fzir value (investments) or the batance sheet
amount is a reasonablz agpreremation of tair valua (duz from brokzrs, didends and intsrest racenable, dee to brokers, acoruals

and cash at bank).

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

Catagnnsaton within the hierarchy has been determined on the basis of the lowest level input thats sigrificant to the farr valuz

measurement of the relevant assat as follows:

Level | —valued using quoted prices in an active markat for identical assets

Level 2 ~ valued by reference to valuanon techniguss using observable inputs other than quotad prices wathin L
q g P g P

Level 3 — valued by r=ference to valuation techmigues using nputs that are not based on cbservable markar data,

The valuation techniquas used by tha Group are sxplained ¢ the accounting pelicies in notes 1 (f) and 1 ().

The table balow sels out fair vaiue measdrements using IFRS 13 fair value hisrarchy

Financial assets/(liabilities} at fair value through profit or loss

2y

Laval t Laval 2 Lavzl 3 Total
At 31 March 2019 E'C30 E'623 £'600 £o00
Equuty nestments 1,189,138 - 377 1,183,513
Investrment properties - - 101,929 101,929
Contrarts for diffzrence - (3.210) - (3,210}
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 1,969 - 1,969
1,188,135 {1.24%) 102,306 1,290,201
Lavall Lavei 2 Lavzi 3 Total
At 31 March 2018 £aco £o0o £000 £060
Equity nvestments 1,217,682 - 153 1,218,035
Investment properties - - 938,011 95,011
Contracts for diffsrence - 495 - 435
Foreign exchange forward contracts - 634 - 544
1,2172.882 1,139 38,164 1,317,185

The table abova represents the Group's fair value hierarchy. The Company's fair value hisrarchy is identical except for the
mclusion of the fair value of the investrment in Subsidiaries which at 31 March 2019 was £50,442,000 (2018: £50,470,000)
Thes= have been categorisad as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £23,000 (2018: £61,000) is the change in

fair value in the year. The total financial assets at fair value for the Company at 31 March 2019 was F1,343.853,000

(2018: £1,357,655,000).
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Invesimants held at fair value corneed

f) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continusd
Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

34 Marth Appreciation/ 31 March

2013 Purciaras Sales (Depreciation) 2019

At 31 March 2019 E'00 £000 £U00 £000

Unlsted equity investments 153 - - 224 377
Investment Propertias

- Mixed use 53,380 767 (737) 1,552 54,962

- Office & ndustrial 41631 729 - 1,607 45,967

98,011 1,494 (737) 3,155 101,928

03,154 1,495 {737) 3,383 102,306

All apprediation/(d=preciation) as stated abovz ralates to mevemeants in fair value of unlisted equity investments and investment
propesties held at 31 March 2019,

The Group held one unquoted investment at the yaar end (see 11,6 overleaf)

Transfers between hierarchy levels

Thers were no transfars during the year between leval 1 and level 2 nor batwaen levels 1 or 2 and level 3,
Key assumptions used in valua in use calculations are explained in the accounting pelicies in note 1(f).

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations
The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categonsed within Lavel 3 of the fair value hierarchy of

investment propertias are:

s Estimated rental value: £5 — £50 per sq ft (2013, £5 — £50)

o Capitalisation rates: 3.20% — 9.00% (2018 3.20%0 — 9.00%0)

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rental value and rant growth in isolation would result in a significantly higher
{lower) fair value measurernent. A significant increase (decrease) in long-term vacancy rate in isolation would result in

a sigrificantly lower (higher) fair value measurement

Therz arz intrelatonships between the yields and rental values as they are partially determined by market rate conditions.

The sensitivity of the valuation to changas in the most significant inputs per class of investment property arg shown below:

Office &
Estimatad movemeant in fair value of investment Retail tndustrial Other Total
properties at 31 March 2019 arising from £000 £'000 £000 £000
Increase in rental value by 5% 500 2,075 - 2.575
Decrease in rental value by 5% (575) {2,120} - (2,695)
Increase 0 yield by 0.5%0 {5.425) (5.550) {960} {11,935)
Decrease in yield by 0.5%0 1175 7,650 1,350 16,175

Office &
Estimated movernent in tair value of investment Retai! Industral Qther Total
propefties at 31 March 2013 ansing from £000 F'oon E'0U0 AR
Increase in rental value by 5% 400 1,510 - 2,010
D=acraase in rental value by 5% (425} (1,520} - (1,945)
increase in yield by 0.5% (5.950) (3,870) (1,125) (11,045)

Ducrease m yield by 0 5" 6,800 5,370 1,770 13,940
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Finanadiar instruments

Risk management policies and procedures

The: Group invests in equities and other iInstruments for the long term in the pursuit of the tnvestmant Objective sat out on

pags 24. The Group s exposad to a vanety of nisks that couid result in either a reduction or an increase i the profits avadadle for
distributivn by way of duidends,

The principal risks the Group faces in its perfolio management acivities are:

s Market risk (zomprising price nsk, cormenay nsk and intarest rate nisk).

*  Liguidity risk.

@ (Credit nsk.

The Managar's policies and procasses for managing these nsks are summentsad on pages 36 to 37 and have been applied
throughout the year,

11.1 Market price risk
By the very natura of 15 activiies, the Group's investments are exposed to markat price fluctuations.

Management of the risk
The hanager runs & dwersified porticlio and reperts to the Board on the portfolio activity and performance at each Board
meeting. The Board moniters the invesiment activity and strategy to ensure it1s compasible with the statad abjactives

The Croup’s exposure to changes in market prices on its quoted equity investments, CFDs and investment property portfolic, was

as follows'
2519 2ul3
£'050 E'00U
Investments heid at farr value 1,291,442 1,316,045
166,656 125,677

CFDY long gross exposure

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the Investment Policies on paga 25, there are guidelines to the amount of exposure to a single company,
geographical region or direct property. Thase guidelnes ansure an appropriate spread of esposure to individual or sector price
nsks. As an nvestment company dadicatzd to investmeant in the property sector. the Croup 15 exposed o price movernents across
the proparty asset class as a wholz,

Price risk sensitivity

The following teblz ustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxaton for the vear and th= value of sharehoiders’ tunds ta an
merease or decrease of 1592 in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixad interest, CFD and direct property mvestmants, The level
of change 1s consistant with the illustration shown in the previous year. The sensitivity is based on tha Group's eguity, fixad
interest, CFD and direct proparty exposure at each balance shaet date, with all other vanables held constant.

019 2019 2013
Increase Decrease ncraase C 252
in fair value in fair value in fer value i valee
£000 E'000 £'006 £000
Statement of Comprahensive Income — profit after tax
Revenue raturm (87) 87 (92) g2
Capial return 183,000 {193,000) 197241 (197.241)
Change t2 the profit after tax for the year/shareholders” funds 192,913 (192,913) 197,149 (197,149
Change to total earnings per Ordinary share 60.79p (60.79)p 62.12p (52.12)p

11.2  Currency risk

A proportien of the Group's pertfolio 1s invested in overseas secunties and their Sterling value can be significantly affected by

movements in foreign exchange rates
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Financial Instruments cononued

11.2 Currency risk coninuad
Management of the risk

The Board recawes a report at each Board meeting on the proportion of the investmant portfolio held in Sterling, Euros or other
currencies The Group may sametimes hedge foreign currency movernents outside the Eurazene by funding investments in
overseas secunties with unsecured loans denominated in the same currency or through forward currency contracts,

Cash depaosits ara held in Sterling and/or Euro dencminater] accounts.

Foreign currency exposure
At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure:
(Starling has been shown for reference)

Currency 2019 2me
Sterling 27.1% 29.10%
Euro 57.1% 56.949
Swedish Krana 9.8% 8.00c
Other 6.2% 600

The following table sets out the Group's total exposure to foraign currency risk and the net exposure o fareign cusrencies of the

nat monstary assets and habifities:

Swzdish

Sterding Euro Krona Gtier

2019 £002 €000 £G06 £'000
Recewables (due from brokers, dividends and other income recaivable) 8,033 48,558 - 334
Cash at bank and on deposit 8,060 33,212 8,498 1,512
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts (15,000} {43,085} - -
Fayables (dus to brokers, accruals and other craditors) (10,8567) (218) {1,379) -
FX forwards (157,239 104,395 - 54,812
Total foreign currency expasure on net monetary items {169,013) 141,805 7,119 56,658
Investments held at fair value 529,103 617023 120,312 24,958
Non-curresnt assets 243 - - -
Total currency exposura 360,334 758,833 127,431 81,656

Swedish

Sterlng Euro Krana Qther

2018 E'ane £000 £000 £0n0
Receivables (due from brokers, dividends and other income receivable) 7535 24,430 - -
Cash at bank and on deposit 3523 12,773 561 1,257
Bank lcans, loan notes and overdrafts (55,000} {43,375) - -
Payables (dusz ta brokers, accruals and other creditors) (11,428 (170) - -
£X forwards (73,383} 63,232 (15,540) 33,185
Total fareign currency exposure on net monetary tems (135,233) 56,460 (16,379} Z4.442
Investments held at fair value 500,131 558,333 116,951 40,631
Non-current assets 243 - - -
Total currency exposure 365,121 714,793 100,572 75.073

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after tax for the vear on the Group’s equity in regard o the exchangs

rates for Sterling/Eurc and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencias.

It assumes the fallowing changes in exchange rates:
Sterling/Euro +/-15% (2018:15%).
Sterling/Swedish Krona +/=15% (2018:15%).
Sterling/Other +/-15% (2018:15%%).
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11.2  Currency risk conmsuzd
Foreign currency sensitivity cortinued

If Stading had strangthened against the currendies shown, this would hava had the folioviing effect:

Year ended darch 2019 Yedr odzd March 2013
Swadish
Euro Krona Othar CLrg Ot
£'000 E'CH0 £000 2000 £000
Stetement of Comprehensiva Income — profit aftar tax
Revenue ratern {2,776) {328} (177; {2841 (231) {235)
Caprtal retum (75,341} (15,669) (3,258} {80443y (15231)  (5,291)
Changa to the profit after tax for
the year/sharehiclders funds {78,117y {15,597 {3,433} (83,292) (15482) (5,526)
2019 22012
Changz to total eamings per Ordnary share (30.74)p (32.85)0
If Sterhing had weakened against the currendias shown, this would have had the following effect:
Yaar endad tparch 2053 wch 2018
Swadish S eeduh
Euro Krana Cthar Eure ana Othe
E'GO0 E'GOC E'DGC £ E0ON0 E'0G0
Statemment of Comprehensive Income — profit aftar tax
Royenue retum ‘ 4,598 M 233 4,484 271 310
Capital return 108,472 21,214 4,497 115241 20,622 7154
Changs to the profit after tax for the year/sharehclders’
funds 113,068 21,613 4,630 113,725 20,893 7,474
2013 2008
Changa2 to total earmings per Ordinary share 43.90p 46.67p

11.3 Interest rate risk

fnt=rest rate movements may affact:

* tha faw value of any wvestmants in fixed intarest securities

s the fair value of the loan notes

®  tha l=vel of iIncome racewabls from cash at bank and on deposit
»  the level of interast expense on any variable rate bank leans; and
*  the prices of the underlying secunties held in the portfolios

Managernent of the risk

The passible effects an farr value and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in intzrast rates are taken into account

when making mvestment decisions. Property companias usua'ly have torrowings thermselves and the level of gearing and

sructure of its debr portfolio is a key factor when assessing the investment in @ property company,

The Groun kas fixed and has had variable rate borrowings during the year. The interest rates on the loan notes is fixed, details are
sat out in nete 13 1n addition to the loan notes the Group has unsecured, multi-currency revolving lean facilmes which carey
variable rates of interest bazed on the currancies drawn, plus @ margin These fadlities total £65,000,000 (2018: £65,000,000)

The Manag=r considers both the level of debt on the balance sheet of the Croup (e the loan nates and any bank loans drawn}
and the “see-through’ geanrg, taking into account tha assets and liabilities of the underlying vesiments, whan considenng the

nvastment porticlio. These gearing levels are reported ragularly to the Board.

¥
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i1 Financial Instruments contnusd

11.3 Interest rate risk contued

Management of the risk continued

The majonty of the Group's investment portfolio is non-interest bearing. As a result the Group's financial assets are not directly

subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in the prevaiing levels of market interest rates.

Interest rate exposure

The exposuse at 31 March of finandial assets and financial liabilities to interest ratz risk is shown by reference to:

s floating interast rates, when the interest rate is due to be re-set,

» fixed interast rates: when the finandal instrument is due to be repaid.

The Group's exposure to floating interest rates on assets is £92,415,000 (2018: £42.564,000).

The Croup's exposure to fixad interest rates on liabilities is £58,085,000 (2018: £58,875,000)

The Group’s exposure to floating interest rates on liebllities 1s £nil (2018 £41,000,000).

Interest recavable and finance costs are at the following rates:

s Interest recened on cash balences, or paid on bank overdrafts, is at a margn over LIBOR or its foreign cumency equivalent {2018 same).

» Interest paid on borrowings under the muta-currency loan facilities, is at & margin over LIBOR or its foraign currency equivalent
for the typa of loan (2018 same).

2 The finance chargas on the 80m and £15m loan netes are et interest rates of 1.92% and 3.5 raspectively.

The year end amouns are not representative of the exposure to interast rates dunng the year as the level of exposure changes as

investments are made in fixad interast secunties, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings betseen

floating and fixed interest rates changes.

Interest rate sensitivity
A change of 26 on interest rates at the reporting date would have had the following direct impact:

2019 2013 202

241 2% 2%

lneraasa Decrease [Dereas=

£060 £000 £'000

Change to sharzholders' funds 536 (556} (928) G928
Changa to total eamings per Ordinary share 0.18p {0.18)p (0.29)p 029

This level of changz s not raprasentative of the year as a whole, since the exposure changss throughout the period. This
assessment does not take into account the impact of interest rate changes on the markat value of the investments the Group
holds

11.4 Liquidity risk

Unquated investments in the portfolio are subjact to liquidity risk. The Group held one unquoted investment at the yaar end (see
116 below).

in certain markat conditions, tha hquidity of diract property investments may be raduced. At 31 March 2019, 73 (2018, 79%) of
the Group's investintent portfolio was held in diract property invastments

At 31 March 2019, 93% (2018, §330) of the Group's mvestment portfolio 1s held in listed secunties which are predominantly
readily realisable.

Bank toan facilites are short term revolving leans which 1t 15 intended are renswed or replaced but renewal cannot be certain.

The table shows the timing of cash outflows to settle the Group's current liabilin2s together with anticipated interast costs
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1.4 Liquidity risk =500 2
Debt and Financing maturity profile:

Within Within Within Within Within  Morz than

1 year 1-2 years  2-3yesrs 34 years  4-5 years 5 years Total

At 33 March 2019 £'000 £000 E'000 E'COD £060 £a00 E'C00

Bank Inans* - - - - - - -

Loan notes - - - - - 58,035 58.085
Prajacted mterast cash flows on bank and

loan notes 1,366 1,366 1,366 1,356 1,366 5423 12,253

Accruals and deferrad income 7,430 - - - - - 7,430

Other craditors 352 - - - - - 392

,198 1,366 1,366 1.3é¢ 1,356 £3,508 18,170

wtkn Yot

1 year 32 pears Tats

At 31 March 2018 £070 £C00 £

Bank loans 41,000 - — - — - 41,000

Loan rotes - - - — - 58872 548,875
Projcted interest cash flows on bank and

loan notes 1,888 1,531 1,331 1,381 1,341 £,534 14,2486

coruals and deferred meome 11,150 ~ - - - - 11,160

Other arzditors 383 - — - - - 333

53,431 1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381 55,709 125,664

£ A £3%m rutticunency |

y with RES was rerewed for ore yearin Jancary 2019 £ni vas draan or this facility at the balanca sheet date & £30m ore

year faziliy pith IMG Lusembourg wes renawad i uly, 2018, £ml was daawn on this fagley a e balenze shae: dale,

Management of the risk

The Managzr sats guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolio to unquotad and direct praperty investments. These are
set outin the Investment Policies on page 25. All unquoted investments with a valuz over £ 1m and direct properiy mvastments
with & valuz aver £5m must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintans regular contact with the banks providing revelving fecilimes and renewal discussions commence well
ahead of facility renewial dates. In additon the Company 1s explonng new opportunitias for the provision of dabt on an ongoing

basis

11.5 Credit risk

The failure of a counterparty to a transaction to discharge its cbligations under that transaction could result in the Groug suffenng
aloss. Al the pernod end the largest caunterparty nsk, which the Group was exnosed o was within Debtors and Cash and cash
equivalents where the total bank balences held with one counterparty was £41,620,000 (2018: £24.450,000).

Management of the risk

invastment fransactions are carried out wrth @ number of brokars, whase cradit standing is reviewed penadically by the Manager,
and limits are set on the amount that may be due from any ona broker. Cash at bank is only held with banks with high guality

axtarmel credit ratings
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Financial Instruments continusd

11.5 Credit risk contnued

Credit risk exposure
In summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as foliows:

29 2019 2018 20138

Balance fMaximum Balance Maxizrum

Sheet exposure Sheat Eyposure

E'G00 E000 E'000 E'U00

Debtors 54,892 54,892 32,574 32,574
Cash and cash eguivalents 52,282 52,282 18,114 18,114
107,173 107,172 50,238 50,638

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Group mitigate its countarparty nisk, the Group
may enter Into an ISDA Master Agraement or similar agreament with its OTC denvative contract countarparties. An ISDA Master
Agreement is an agreement between the Group and the counterparty that governs GTC denvativas and foreign exchange
contracts and typically contains, among cther things, collateral posting terms and natting provisions i the event of a default
and/or tarmination event. Under an I1SDA Mastar Agreamant, the Group has a contractual nght to ofiset with the counterparty
certain derivative inanaal instrumeants payablas and/or receivables with collateral held and/or posted and create one single net
paymant in the event of d=fault inchuding the bankruptcy or inselvency of the counterparty. However, bankruptcy or inselvency
laws of a paricular jurisdiction may impose rastrictions on or prohibitions against the nght of offset in bankrupicy, insolvency or
other events.

The disclosures set out in the following table include finanaial assets and financial habilites that arz subject to an enforceable
mastar nefing arangement of similar agreement.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group's denvative assets and liabilities (by type and countarparty) are as follows:

Year ended 2019 Yaar erded 2018
Net amounts of hel amaounts of
financial finarcial
assets/(liabilities) assets/thabilities)
presented preserts.
inthe Cash in the Cash
Balance collateral Bi'ance caliararal
Sheat pledged Shaar plecged
£000¢ E'¢ae £ou0 £'000
CFD positions:
ING (3.210) 40,133 495 24450
(3.210) 40,133 495 24,450
FX forward contracts:
Barclays 1,440 - - -
BNP Paribas (33) - 644 -
C1BC 651 - - -
JP Morgan (112) - - -
Societe Generale 23 - - -

1,969 - 644 -
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11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Except for the loan notes which are measured at amortised cost {refer to Note 13), the fair values of the financal assets and
financiat habilnes ars either carried in the balance sheet at their fair value (nvestments) or the balence sheat amount s 2
reasonable approamaton of fair valuz {debtors, creditors, cash at bank and bank overdrafts, accruals and prapayments).

The fair values of the hsted investments are derived from the closing price or last traded price at which the sacuritizs are quoted
on the London Siock Exchange and other recognised exchangas.

The fair value of contracts for difference are based on the underlying listed investmant valuz as set out above and the amount
due from or to the counterparty under the contract 1s recorded as an asset or hability accordingly, vhich s disclosed in Nete 13
for the current year

The fair values of the properties are derived from an open market (Red Book) valuanon of tha properties on the Balance Sheat
datz by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank).

Thera was ong unguoted fnvestment at the Balance Shest dats, Atrato, waith a total value of £377,000 (2018: Atrato, £153,000),
The amounts of chang= in fair value for investments including net returns on CFDs recognised in the profit or [oss for the yaar
was a profit of £75,214,000 (2013 profic of £146,828,000).

11.7 Capital management policies and procedures

The Group's cepital managerment objectives are:

»  toersure that it will be able ta continue as a going concern; and

* 1o maxmise tha total retum to its equity sharehclders through an appropnate balance of equity capital and dsbst.

The equity capizal of the Croup at 31 March 2019 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capital redermption and
revenue resarves totalling £1,328,254,000 (2018 £1,255,559,000) The Group does not regard the loan notss and loans as
permanant capital.

The loan notes agresment requires compliance with a set of financial covenants, including:

*»  Total Borrowings shall not exceed 334, of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

» the Adjustzd Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a rminimum of 30045 of Tetal Borowings; and

*  the Adusted NAY shall not be less than £250,000,000.

Daotors

Croup Company orouUp Company
2019 2019 2013 2018
£000 £000 EU00 £070

Amounts falling due within one year:
Securties and properties sold for future settlement 3,603 3,603 269 269
Tax racoverable 1,296 1,174 1,296 1,174
Prepayments and accrued income 5,666 5,666 4537 4537
Foreign exchange fanaard contracts for settiement 1,969 1,969 644 644
Amounts receivable in respect of Contracts for Difference - - 4595 495
CFD margin cash 40,133 490,133 24,450 24450
Other dabtors 2,225 2,225 823 833
54,892 54,770 32574 32452

Non-current assets

Defarrad tataton asset 243 243 243 243

Nndludes amounts n raspact of rent free periods.
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Currant and non-current labilitizs

Croup Company Graup Company
2019 2019 2018 2018
E'000 £°000 £00D £000

Amounts falling dus within one vear:
Bank lnans and overdrafts - - 41000 41,000
Securities and properties purchased for future settlement 1.474 1,474 - -
Amouints due to subsidianes - 50,359 - 50,361
Amounts payable in respact of Contracts for Differance 3,210 3,210 - -
Tax payable 4 a - -
Accruals and deferred ncome 7,359 7,324 11,160 11,149
Crher crediors 473 467 383 377
12,520 62,838 52,543 102,887

Non-current habilitias

1.52%: Euro Loan Notes 2026 43,085 43,085 43,875 43875
3.5905 GEP Loan hotes 2031 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
58,023 58,085 58,875 58,875

loan Notes
On the 10 February 2016, the Company issired 1.92%0 Unsecured Euro 50,000,000 Loan Netes and 3.59% Uns=cured GBP

15,000,000 Loan Notes which are due to be redeemnad at par on the 10th February 2025 and 10 February 2031 raspacively
Tne faw value of the 1.92% Eure Loan Notes was £43,255,000 (20181 £44,003,000) and the 3.59% GBP Loan Notes was
£15,373,000 (2018: £15,271,000) at 31 March 2013, Using the IFRS 13 fair value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed to be
categorisad within Lavet 2.

The loan notes agreement requires comphance with a set of financial covenants, including:

s Total Borrowings shall not exceed 33%; of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

®  the Adjustad Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minirmum of 3007a of Total Barrowings; and

2 tha Adjusted NAVY shall not be less than £260,000,000.

The Company and Croup complied with the tarms of tha loan notas agresmant throughout the year.

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities

The Group also Fad unsecurad, multi-currency, revelving short-term loan faciines rotaling £63,000,000 (2018 £65,000,000) at
31 March 2019, At 31 March 2019 £nil was drawn on these facilities (2018: £41,000,000).

The maturity of thess facilihes is shown in notes 11.3 and 11.4.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Lang term Short term

debt debt Total
Group and Company £000 £'000 £'C00
Opening abilities from finanang activities at 31 March 2018 58,875 41,000 99,875
Cash flovs:
Repayment of bank loans - (41,000) {31,000)
Movement an foraign exchangs (790) - {790)
Clesing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2013 58,085 - 58,085
Net debt

Net debt includes the value of the loam notes, lcans, the notional exposure to CFDs, less cash (including cash collateral held by
the CFD pravider which is shown as a debtor In the Financial Statements) as a propertion of eguity sharsholders' funds.
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Current and non-current liabilities conunss

The net gzaring has been caiculated as follows:

GCroup Croup

2019 e

£000 £'600

Lean notes 58,085 58,875
Loans - 41,000
CFD postions (notional exposurs) 166.656 125.677
Less: Cash (52,282) (128,114)
Less: Cash collateral (ncluded within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12} (30,133} (24,450)
132,326 182,988

Equity sharzhiclders’ funds 1,323,253 1,255,559
10.0%% 14.6%,

Nat gearing

1 L i

Callad up share capital

Ordinary share capital
The balance classified es Ordinary share capital includes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shares of 25p.

Iszued, alletad

ane} fully paid

rymber £'000
Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 Apnl 2018 317.350,930 79.338
At 31 March 2019 317,350,930 79,338

The voting rights ar2 disclosed in the Recort of the Directors on page 38.
During the year, the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2018: nona).

Since 31 March 2019 ne Ordinary sharss have been purchased and cancellad

Shars prermium account and capital rademption resenz

Share premium account
Tha balance dassined as share premium includas the pramium ebove nominal value from the proceeds an issue of the equity

share capital compiising Ordinary sharas of 25p.

Capital redermption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is usad to record the armount equivalent to the nominal valus of purchases of the Company's awn

sharaz in ordet to maintaim the Company's canital,
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16 Retained earnings

Group Company Group Company

2019 2019 008 2018

£'000 £'060 E000 £'00d

Investment holding gains 402,635 433,107 404,279 435,779
Realised capital reserves 038,986 562,303 621,391 594,708
1,091,621 1,097,418 1,025,670 1,031,487

Revenus raserve 70,162 64,373 53418 57601

1,161,783 1,161,783 1,089,088 1,083,083

Group investrneant holding gains at 31 farch 2019 include a £55%,000 loss (2018: £1,17%,000 Joss) relating to unfisiad
mvestments and gains of £45,164,000 (2018: £41,246,000) relating to investmeant properties

Company nvestment holding gains at 31 March 2019 include gains of £75,680,000 (2012: £72,568,000) r2lating to unlisted
and subsidiary investments with a £44,024,000 revaluation gain (2018 £40,106,000 gain) relating to invastment properties.
Dridends are only distributable from the revenue resenve.

17 Dividands

Yzaar eadad Yaar anded
31 March 31 March
20i9 013
£000 £'G00
Amounts recognised as distributions 1o equity heldars in the year:
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 7.53p
(2017: 6.40p) per Ordinary share 23,950 20,310
Interim dividend far the year ended 31 Marck 2019 of 4.90p
(2018: 4.65p) per Ordinary share 15,550 14,757
39,510 35067
Amaunts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the vear:
Propossd final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 8.60p
(2018: 7.55p) per Ordinary share 27,292 23,960

The finat dwvidend has not been induded as a hiability i thase financial statzments in accordance with 1AS 10 “Events after the
Balanca Sheet Data".

Set out below 1s the total dividend to be pard in respect of the yzar, This 15 the basis on which the requirements of 5.1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 are considerad.

Year ended Year 2nded
31 March 21 March
2013 2018
£060 000
Interim dividend for the vear ended 31 March 2012 of 4.90p

{2018: 4.65p) per Ordinary snare 15,550 14,757

Proposed final dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of 8.60p
(2018: 7.55p) per Ordinary share 27,292 23,960

42,842 38717
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18 Company Statement of Comprensnsive income

As parmitted by Section 408 of the Companizs At 2006, the Company has not presented its own Statement of
Comprehensiva Income, Tne net prafit after tacation of the Company dealt with 1 the accounts of the Group was
£112,205,000 (2018: £172,202,000)

19 Net asset vaus per Ordinary share

Net asset value per Ordinary share is based on the net assets attributablze to Ordinary shares of £1,328,254,000 (2018:
£1,255,559,000) and on 317,350,980 (2018 317,350,980) Crdinary sharas i issue at the year end.

! [
i

20 Commiimen’s and coniingant iabilitias

At 31 March 2019 the Group had capital commitments of £337,000 (2012: nil} but no contingant habilitiss (2018 nil) gy

Mame Ragz. Numbar Principal activity
New England Properties Limitad 738595 Non-trading company
The Celonnades Limited 2326572 Nen-trading company
Showart Lirnited 2300728 Nen-trading company
Trust Union Propertizs Residential Develepments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Ltd 2415846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Invastment Trust Limitad 2415015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Union Property Invastment Trust Limitad 2416017 Mon-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Five) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Six} Limited 2416013 Non-trading cormparny
Trust Union Properties (Number Sevan) Limited 241583¢ Nen-trading company
Trust Union Proparties (Number Eight) Limited 2416012 Non-trading compary
Trust Unton Properaes (Number Mine) Limited 2415833 Nun-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited 2415021 Nen-trading compeny
Trust Umon Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Tivelve) Limited 2416022 Ner-trading company
Trust Umicn Proparties {Number Thirteen) Limitad 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {(Number Fourteen) Limite 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteeny Limited 2318026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixtean} Limitad 2413806 Non-trading company
Trust Unicn Properties (Number Saventzen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nummber Eightaen) Limited 2415768 Nen-trading company
Trust Unicn Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investrment
Trust Unien Proparties (Cardiff) Limitad 2415772 Ncn-trading compaiy
Trust Unicn Proparties (Theale) Limited 2418031 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (humber TaentyTac) Limited 2415765 Nen-traging company
Trust Umion Properties (Number Twenty-Thres) Limitad 2416038 Non-trading company
Skillion Financa Limted 2420758 Non-trading company
Trust Umion Finance {1991) Flec 2663561 Investment financing
FGH Developments Limitad 1451478 Non-tracing company
FOH Devslopments (Aberdeen) Limited (£18030) 5C68759 Nen-trading company
FCH (Newcaste) Limited 1456619 Nen-trading company

NEP (1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading company
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Subsidiaries consnu=d

Mame Reg. Number Principal activity
New England Developments Limited 1385908 Non-trading company
New England Investmeants Limited 2613505 Nen-trading company
New England Ratail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company
Sapco One Limited 803340 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance Limited 12333238 Investment holding and finance company
TR Property Finance Limited 2415841 investment holding and finance company
Trust Unian Preperties (South Bank) Limitad 2420097 Non-trading company

The Company has provided a guarantze for each of these subsidiaries 1n order for them to take the exemption from the
raquiremient of an audit, i line with the requirernents of 5.479A of the Companies Act 2008,

All the subsiduaries are fully owned and all the holdings are ordinary sharss

Al companies have the registerad office of 11-12 Hanover Strast, London, W15 1¥Q wath the exception of FGH Developments
{Aberdeen) Limited which 1s registered to 50 Lothian Read, Festival Square, Edinburgh EH3 9BY.

Related party transactions disclosuras

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminatad on
consolidation. The balances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand

Armaounts due by the Company to subsidianes per nate 13.

2819 2014

£'000 E£'000

The Colonnades Limited 22,619 22,619
TR Property Finance Limited 27,760 27762
New England Properties Limited 203 (20}
50,356 50,3561

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the diractors, who are the key management personnel of the Company for each of the relavant categones
specified in 1AS 24: Related Party Disclosures is provided in the audited part of the Diractors’ Ramuneration Report on pages 43
and 49

Directors’ transactions
Transactions in shares by directors are considered to be a refated party transaction due to the nature of their role as directors.
Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remunearatien Report on page 49.

Dividends totalling £171,000 (2018; E10,000) were paid ir the year in respect of sharas held by the Company's diractors,




Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alterpative Parformance Measures

Altarnative Perdformance Measures are numencal meaasures of the Company's current or historical performance, financial position
or cash flows, other than the finanaal measures definad or specified in the Financial Statements.

The measures defined below are considered © be Altermative Performance Measures, They are viewed as particularly relevant
and ar= frequzntly quotad for closzd endad investmant comparnies.

Total Return

The MAY Total Return is calrulatad by reinvestng in the dividends in the assets of the Company from th= relevant ex-dividend
date. Dividends are deemed te be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protecol used by the Company's benchmark
and oth=r indices. The Shar=s Frice Totzl Return is calculatad by reinvesting the dividends in the shar=s of the Company from the
relevant ex-dividend date.

Net Debt
Nat debt is the total value of lcan natss, loans (inciudimg noticnal exposure to CFDs) l2ss cash as a propartion of nat assat value,
The calculation iz set out it not2 13 to the Financial Stat=ments

Ongoing Charges

The Ongaing Charges ratio has been calculated in acceordance with the guidance ssued by the AIC as the tofal of investment
management fees and administrative expensas exprassed as a percentage of the averags Ne: Asset Values throughout the year,
Tne defintion of admunistrative expenses does Include property related expensas, the Ongoing Chargas caiculahon 1s shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison of the direct administrative and managameant charges with the
majority af Investment Trusts which de not hiold any direct property investmen's.

The Ongoing charges ratio prowvided in the Company's Key Information Document is calculated m line with the PRIIPs ragulanans
which s differant to the AIC methadaology abave.
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continued

2.0 Clossary of Tarms and Definitions

AlFMD

AlC
Altamatiye Parformance Measurs
Discount

ey Information Document

Key Performance Indizator "kPI"

MIFID

Net Assat Value (NAY) per share

The Alternative Fund Managars Directive is European tegislaton which creatad a
European wide framework for regulating the managers of “altzrnative investment
funds” (AlFs). Any fund which is not a UCITS (Undertakings for Collective Investment
in Transferable Securities) fund and whirch is managed or marketed in the EU.

The Assocation of lnvestment Companies - the AlC is the reprasentative bady fur
closed-ended investment companies.

A finandal measura of financial performancz or finanaal position other than a financial
maasure defined or specified in the accounting statements.

The amount by which the merket price of a share of an investment trust is lower than
(e Met Asset Value par share expressed as a parcantage of the NAY per share,

Under the PRIIPs Regulations a short, consumer frigndly Key Infarmaton Decument is
required setting out tha kay faatures, fisks, rawards and costs of the PRIIF and is
intzndad o as3i5t investors to bettsr understand the Trust and make compansons
betaaen Trusts

The document includes estimates of investment parformance undear a number of
scenanios. Thesa calcuiations are presaribed by the regulation and are based puraly on
recent historical data. It is important for investors to note that there is no judgement
apoliad and these do not in any way reffect the Board or Mangers vigws,

A KPL" is a2 quentifiable measure that evaluates how successful the trust is in meeting
its objectives. The Trust's KPls ar2 discussed on pages 27 to 29.

The Markets in Finandia! Instruments Directive 15 the EU legisiation that regulates firms
who provide services to clisnts inked to “financial instruments” fshares, bonds, units
in collective investmeant schames and derivativas) and the venues where those
instruments are traded,

The value of total assets less lizbities (including berrowings) divided by the numbar
of shares in issuz.
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Altermative Investment Fund Managers Directive ("AIFRMD")

In azcardance with the AFMD, information in relation to the Company's leverag= and remuneration of the Company's AIFM), F&C
irvestment Business Limited, is required to be made available to investors, Detaled regulalery disclosures including those on the
AIFM's remuneration policy are available on the F&C wabst2 or from FAC on r2quest. The numerical remuneration disclosures in
rglatnn to the AIFM's first relevant accounting period will be made avalable in due course,

Leverage
lnder the AIFM Diractive, 1t is necessary for AlFs to disclose thelr leverage in accordence with prescribed calculatons.

Although leveraga is oitzn usad as enother term for gzaring, undar tha AIFMD laverage is spectfically defined. Two types of
leverage calzulations arz defined, the gross and commutment methods, Thess mathads stmmarily express leverage as a ratio of
the exposure of the AIF against is net assat value. "Exposure” typically indludes debt, the value of any physizal properies subject
to mortgags, nen-Sterling currency, equity or currency hedging at ébsoluts notional vaiues (svan thosz held purely for nsk
recuction purposes, such as fonward foreign exchanga contracts held for currangy hedging) and denvatve exposure (convartad
inte th2 equivalent underlying positions). The commemant method nets off denvatres instruments, whilz tha gross method

a

gzregates them.

The table below sets cut the current maximurn parmitied limit and the actual leval of levarage for tha Company as at 31 Marc

Lavarags gxposura Grass mathod Commitmant mathod
Madmum permitied hmat 200%% 200%
Actual 128% 1272

The leverage himits are szt by the AIFM and approvad by the Board and arz in fing with tha limits set outin the Company's
Articles of Assaciation.

Thes shouid not be confused wath the gearing set out in the Finandial Highhghts which 13 calculated under the traditional method
set out by the Association of Investment Companizs. The AIFN 15 alse required 1o comply vath the gearing parameters sat by the
Beard in relation to borrowings.




Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

t you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, solicitor, accountant or other
independent professional adviser,

If you hava sold or othenvise transferred all of your shares, please pass this docurment, together with the accompanying docurments to the
purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who aranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these decuments to the person who now

holds the shares.

iNofice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeung of 11 THAT

TR Property lvestment Trust plc (the “Company”) will be held at (a) (subject to the passing of Resolution 10 set cut above) the
2.30 pimoon 23 July 2019 at the Royal Automohbile Club, 83/91 directors be empowerad pursuant to Section 570 and

Palt Mall, London SW 1Y 5HS for the purpose of transacting the Section 573 of the Act to allot equity secunties (as defined

following business: in Section 580 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority

conferred by Resolution 10 above and/or to sall sharas
hetd by the Company as treasury shares for cash as f
Section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such
allatment, provided that this power shali be fimitad ta:

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,
of which Resolutions 1t 10 will be proposed as Ordinary
Resclutions and Resolutions 11 and 12 shall be proposed as
Special Resolutions.

(i} the allotment of equity securities and sale of raasury

1 Toreceive the Report of the Diractors and the Audited » :
shares for cash in cannection with an offer of, or

Accotnis for tha year ended 31 Narch 2019, ; ) ]
invitation to apply for, equity securities:

2 To approva the Directors’ Rermuneration Report for the year

ended 31 March 2019 {aa) to shareholders in proporticn (as nearly as may

be practicable} to therr existing holdings: and

3 To dedlare a final dwidend of 8 80p per Ordinary share. ' 7 B
{(bb)to holders of other equity securities, as required

4 To reeledt Simon Marmson as a Director. by the nghts of those secunties, or as the Board
5 7o re-elect Hugh Seabom as a Diractor, otherwise considers necessary,
6 Toreelect David Watson as a Director. and so that the Beard may impose any limits or

restrictions and make any arrangements which it
7 Toreelect Tim Gilbanks as a Director. considers necessary or appropriate 1o deal with treasury
8  To re-appoint KPMG LLP a5 auditars of the Company to hold shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal,

regulatory or practical prablems in, or under the laws of,
any taritory ar any other matter; and

office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company.
(i) 1nthe casa of the authonty granted under
Resolution 10 and/or in the cas= of any sale of traasury
shares for cash, to the allctment (othensise than under

9 To autherise the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditor.

10 THAT the Directurs be generally and unc.ond\tfonal\y authorsed paragraph (i) above) of equity securities or sale of
pursuant to and 1n accordance with Secthn 551 of the trassury shares Up 16 3 nomingl arrount of £3 986,887
Companies Act 2004 (the "Adt”) to exarcise all the powers of the (b=ing aporoamately 5% of the total issued shars
Compary to allot shares in the Compajy and to grant rights o capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
subscribe for, or to convert any securfy into, shares in the prior to publicanon of the notice of meeting),
Company up to a nominal value of £26,181,435 (being
approximately 3324 of the total issued share capital of the (b} the power given by this resolution shall expire upen the

expiry of the authonty conferred by Resclution 10 above,
save that the Company shall be entifed to maks offers or
agreements before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the diractors shall be entitled to allot equity
securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if

Company as at the latest practicable date prior to publication of
this Notice) provided that this authority shall expire at the date of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company (or, if earlier, at
the close of business on 23 October 2020), save that the
Company shall be entitled to maks offers or agreements before
the expiry of this authority which would or might require shares
to be allotted or nights to be grantad aiter such expiry and the
Durzctors shall be entitled to allot shares and grant nghts pursuant
to any such offers or agreements as if this authonty had not

the pov.er conferred hereby had not expirad.

expirad.
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continued
12 THAT the Company be and is hareby generally and {c) the mirumum price (exclusive of expenses) which may
unconditionally authersed in accordance with Section 701 be paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, baing the
of the Act to make market purchases (within the meaning naminal value per Ordinary share; and
of Section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each
in the capital of the Company on such terms and in such {d} the authority hereby conferred shall expire ar the
manner as the directors may fram time o tme determine condlusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
provided that: Company in 2020, save that the Comparny shall be
entitlad to enter into a contract to purchase Ordinary
(a) the maximum number of Ordinary shares herzby shares which will, or may, be completed or executed
authorised to be purchased shall be 14.99% of the wholly or partly after the power exprres and the Company
Company's Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the may purchase Ordinary shares pursuant to such contract
Annual General Meeting (equivalent to 47,570,911 as if the power conferred herzby had not expired.

Ordinary shares of 25p each at £ June 2018, the latest
practicable date prior to publication of this Natice};

() the maximum price (sxclusive of expenses) which may
b= paid for any such share shall not be more than the

higher of,
Registered Office:
{iy 105%; of the average of the middle market Registered in England MNo: 84492
quotations for an Crdinary share as taken from the 11-12 Hanaver Sureet
Londen Stock Exchangz Daity Official List for the Londaen
five business days immadiately praceding the date W1s 1vQ
on which the Company agrees to buy the shares
concerned; and By Crder of the Board

(i) the higher of the price of the last indspendent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Crdinary share in the Cornpany on the trading venus
where the purchase is caried out at the relevant time; For and on behalf of
Link Company Matters Limited
Sacretary

& lune 2019
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Directions pal Mal Clubhouse

‘STMARTINS LANL

- oy A

I2Cany

is-

The Royal Automobile Club has a dress code: Jacket
and tie

Motes to the Notice of Apnual Ganeral Mealing

1

tMembers are entitled to appoint a proxy to exercise all ar any
of their rights to attend and to speak and vote on ther behalf
at the meeting. A shareholder may appoint more than one
proxy In relation to the Annual General Meeting ("AGM™)
providad that each praxy 15 appointed to axercisa the rights
attached to a differant share or shares held by that
shareholder. A proxy nzed not be a sharsholder of the
Company. To appoint mate than ore proxy, the proxy form
should be photocopied and the name of the proxy to be
appaintad indicatzd on each proxy form together with the
number of sharas that such proxy 1s appointed in respect of.

To be valid any proxy form or other instrument appainiing

a proxy must be returned by post, by courier er by hand to the
Company’s Ragistrars, Computarshare investor Sarvices PLC,
The Pavilions, Bridgwiater Road, Bristal B399 672Y, ar

SAANDOINLT £ :om and

alternatwely, by going to v en
following the instructions provided All proxies must be
appointad by no later than 48 hours before the ume of the
AGM. The raturn of a completed prowy form or other such
instrument will not prevent a sharehelder attending the AGH
and voting in person if he/she wishes to do so

In order to be able to attend and vate at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting (and also for the purpose of calculating
how many votes a person may <ast), @ person must have
his/her name entzred on the Ragister of Members of the
Company by 500 pmon 21 July 2019 (or .00 pm on the

date two days before any adjoumead mesting). Changes to
entries on the Register of Members after this time shall ba
disregarded in determining the rights of any person to attend
or voiz at the meeting.

Shareholders should neta that it is possible that, pursuant to
requests mace by shareholders of tha Company undar
Saction 527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company may
be required to publish on a website a statzment setting cut
any matter relating to (i) the auwdit of the Compeny's azcounts
(including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit)
that are to be laid before the AGAY: or (i) any arcumistence
connacted vath an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold
office since the previous mesting at which arnue! accounts

nd reports were faid in accordance with Sachon 437 of the
Campanies Act 2006,

The Company may not raquira the sharzheldars requesting
any such website publication to pay 15 expens2s in complying
with Sections 527 or 527 of the Comparies Act 2006 Whers
the Company is required tu place a statement on a wabaite
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, 1t miust
fornvard the statemant to the Company's audttor not fater than
the time when it makes the statement availabiz on the
website, The business which may ba dealt vith at the AGM
ncludes any staterment that the Company has been required
under Section 527 of the Companies Act 2C04 to publish on
d welbsilz,

Any corparation which is @ member of the Company can
appont one or moere corporate raprasentatives who may
exarcise on its behalf all of its powers as @ member provided
that they do not do so in relation to the same sharss

The right to appoint a proxy does not apply @ persons whose
sharss are held on their behalf by anothar person and who
have b2en nominatad to receive communication from the
Company in azcordance with Sectien 145 of the Companias
Act 2006 ("nominated persons”). Norunatzd persons may
have a nght undsr an agreement with the registerad
sharehalder who holds shares on therr behalf to be appointed
{or to have somaone else appeintad) as a proxy Atematively,
if nominated persons do not have such a nght, or do not vash
to excrase it, they may have a nght under such an agreement
to give instructions (o the person hoiding the shares as to the
exarcise of voung rights

CREST members who wish to apooint a proxy or proxias
through the CREST electronic proxy appointmient service may
do so for the AGM to be held on 23 July 2019 and any
adjournment(s) therzof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual. CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsared members, and those CREST mambers who have
appointed a voting senvice provider sheuld refer o ther
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CREST sponsors or voting service provider{s}, who will be able
ko take the appropriate action on their behalf.

In order for & proxy appointment or instrudtion made by means
of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(a "CREST Proxy Instruction”) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the information required for such instructions,
as described in the CREST Manual. The massage must be
transritted so as to be received by the Cormpany's agent,
Computershare Investor Services PLC {CREST Padticipant ID:
FRA50), no later than 48 hours befars the time appointad for
the meeting. For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken
to be the time (as determined by the time stamp appliad to the
ressage by the CREST Apphcation Host) from which the
Company's agent is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to
CREST 1n the rmanner prascribed by CREST.

CREST members and, whare applicable, their CREST sponsor
or voting service provider shoufd note that Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited does not make available special procedures in
CREST for any particular messages.

pormal systern timings and limitations will therefore apply in
relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. 1t is the
responsibility of the CREST member concernad to take (o, if
the CREST member 15 a CREST personal member or sponscred
member or has appointed & voting senice provider, to procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider takes) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 15
ransmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular
time. In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, their CREST sponsor or voting service provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
conceming practical limitations of the CREST system and
timings, The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5){a)
of the Uncertificated Securities Regulanons 2001.

Any mernber attending the meeting has the right to ask
questions. The Company must cause o be answered any such
question relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting
but no such answer need be given if {a) to do so would interfers
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidential information; (b) the answer has already
been given on a webste in the form of an answer to a question;
or (€} it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the
geod arder of the meeting that the question be answerad.

A copy of this notice, and other information required by
section 3114 of the Companies Act 2008, can be found at
o trpropesty. cam.

12

13

13

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338 of the
Companies Act 2005 may require the Company to give, to
members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a reselution which those members intend to
move (and which may praperly be moved) at the ACM,

A resolution may properly be maved at the AGM unless;

() it would, if passed, be ineffective (whether by reasan of any
inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s
constitution or othenwise); (in 1t is defamatory of any person;
or (i} it is frivolous or vexatious. A request made pursuant to
this right may be in hard copy or electronic form, must identfy
the resolution of which notice is to be given, must be
authenticated by the person(s) making it and rmust be
received by the Company not later than six veeks befarz the
datz of the AGM.

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 3384 of the
Companies Act 2006 may request the Company to indude in
the business to be dealt with at the AGM any matter {other
than a proposed resolution) which may properly be included
in the business at the AGM. A matter may properly be
included In the busingss at the ACM unless: (1) itis
defamatory of any person; or (i) it is frivolous or vexatious,

A request made pursuant to this right may be in hard copy or
electronic form, must identify the matter tc be included in the
business, must be accompanied by a staterment setting out the
grounds for the request, must be authenticated by the
person(s} making it and must be receved by the Company
not later than six weeks before the date of the AGM,

Biographical details of the directars are shown on page 53 of
the Annual Report & Accounts.

As at 8 June 2013 (being the latast practicable day prior to
publication of this Notice), the issued share capital of the
Campany is 317,350,980 Ordinary shares of 25p each.
Therefore, the total number of voting nghts in the Company at
6 June 2019 15 317,350,280,

The tarms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
blanagement Engagement Committee, the Nomination
Committze and the Letters of Appointment for directors will
be available for inspection for at least 19 minutes prior to and
during the Company's AGM.

You may not use any electronic addrass provided etther in this
Notice or any related documents to communicate for any
purposes other than those expressly stated.

o




Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resoiutions 1, 2 and 3: Accounts,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and
Dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation
of the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the declaration of the final
dividend, The vote to approve the Remuneration Report

is advisory only and will not require the Company to

glter any arrangements detailed in the report should the
resolution not be passed.
Resoitions 4, 5, 6 and 7: Election ana
Re-election o~ Directors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Simon
Marrison, Tim Cillbanks, Hugh Seaborn and Dawd Watsan.
In accordance with the UK Carporate Governance Code, all
directars will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed
that they will offer themselves for re-election.

A performance evaluation has been completed and your
Board has determined that each of the directors continues
to be effective and demonstrates their commitment to
their rofe.

Resoiutions 8 and 9: Auditor

These deal with the reappointment of the Auditor,
KPMG LLP and the authorisation for the directors to
determine their remunaration.

Resoiution 10: Alotment o7 share capita’

Qur Board considers it appropriate that an authority be
granted to allot shares in the capital of the Company up
to a maximum nominal amount of £26,181,455
(representing approximately 33% of the Company's
issued share capital as at 6 June 2019, being the latest
practical date prior to publication of this Notice of the
meeting). As at the date of this notice the Company does
not hold any shares in treasury.

The directors have no present intention of exercising this
authority and would only expect to use the authority if
shares could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net
Asset Value per share.

This authority will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 23 October 2020 and the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2020.

Resolution 11: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

This resolution would give the directors the authority to
allot shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects
to hold in treasury) for cash without first offering them to
existing shareholders in propertion to their existing
shareholdings.

This autharity would be limited to allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to holders
of other equity securities if required by the rights of those
shares or as the board otherwise considers necessary, or
otherwise up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£3,966,887. This aggregate nominal amount represents
5% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at
6 June 2019, the latest practicable date prior to
publication of this Natice, In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directors confirm their intention to
follow the provisions of the Pre-Emption Group's
Staternent of Principles regarding cumulative usage of
autherities within a rolling 3-yeer period where the
Principles provide that usage in excess of 7.5% should not
take place without prior consultation with shareholders.

The authority will expire at the earlier of close of business
on 23 October 2020 and the conclusion of the Annual
Ceneral Meeting of the Company to be held in 2020,

Resoiution 12: Authority to make Marke:
Purcnases o the Comnany's Ordinary
shares

At the AGM held on 24 July 2018, a special resolution
was proposed and passed, giving the directors authority,
until the conclusion of the AGM in 2019, to make market
purchases of the Company's own issued shares up to

a maximum of 14.99% of the issued share capital.

Your Board is proposing that they should be given
renewed authority to purchase Ordinary shares in the
market. Your Board believes that to make such purchases
in the market at appropriate times and prices is a suftable
method of enhancing shareholder value. The Company
wauld, within guidelines set from time to time by the
Board, make either a single purchase or a series of
purchases, when market conditions are suitable, with

the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders.
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Where purchases are made at prices below the prevaifing
Net Asset Velue per share, this will enhance the Net Asset
Value for the remaining sharehelders. It is therefore
intended that purchases would only be made at prices
below Net Asset Value. Your Board considers that it will be
most advantageous to shareholders for the Company to be
able to make such purchases as and when it considers the
timing to be favourable and therefore does not propose to
set a timetable for making any such purchases.

The Companies {Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury
Shares) Regulations 2003 enable companies in the United
Kingdom ta hold in treasury any of their cwn shares they
have purchased with a view to possible resale at a future
date, rather than cancelling them. If the Company does
re-purchase any of its shares, the directors do not currently
intend to hold any of the sharas re-purchased in treasury.
The shares so re-purchased will continue to be cancelled.

The Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority limit the
maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for any such share. It shall not be more than the
higher of:

(iy 105%s of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Ordinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the
Company agrees to buy shares concemned; and

(ii) the higher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an
Ordinary share in the Company on the trading venue
where the purchase is carried out,

The minimurm price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary
share (being the nominal value). The Listing Rules also limit
a listed company to purchases of shares representing up to
150 of its issued share capital in the market pursuant to a
general autherity such as this, For this reason, the Company
is limiting its authority to make such purchases to 14.99%
of the Company's Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the
AGM; this is equivalent to 47,570,911 Ordinary shares of
25p each (neminal value £11,852,727) at 6 June 2019,
the latest practicable date prior to publication this Natice,
The authority will last until the Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held in 2020.

Recommendation

Your Board believes that the resolutions contained in this
Notice of Annual Ceneral Meeting are in the best interests
of the Company and shareholders as a whole and
recommends that you vote in favour of them as your
Directors intend to do in respect of their beneficial
shareholdings.




Directors and Other Information
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General Shareholder Information

Release of Results

The half year results are announced in fate November. The
full year results are announced in sarly June.

Annua! Generai Meeting
The AGM 15 held in London in July.

Dividend Payment Da‘es

Dividends are usually paid on the Grdinary shares as
follows:

Interim: January

Final; August

Divicend Payments

Dividends can be paid to shareholders by means of BACS
(Bankers' Automated Clearing Services); mandate forms
for this purpose are avallable from the Registrar.
Alternatively, shareholders can write to the Registrar

(the address is given on page 98 of this report) to give
their instructions; these must include the bank account
number, the bank account titie and the sort code of the
bank to which payments are to be made,

Dividend Re-investment P.an ("DRi?")

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the
Company through the DRIP. DRIP forms may be obtained
from Computershare Investor Services PLC through their
secure website wanvinvestorcentre.co.uk, or by phoning
0370 707 1694. Charges do apply; dealing commission
of 0.75% (subject fo a minimum of £2.50}. Government
stamp duty of 0.5% also applies.

Share Price Listings

The market prices of the Company's shares are published
daily in The Financial Times. Some of the information is
published in other leading newspapers. The Financial
Times also shows figures for the estimated Net Asset
values and the discounts applicable.

Share Price 'nformation

ISIN GBGOGR064057
SEDCL 0906409
Bloomberg TRYAN
Reuters TRY.L
Datastream TRY

Benchmark

Details of the benchmark are given in the Strategic Report
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts. The benchmark
index is published daily and can be found on Bleomberg;

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Total
Return Index in Sterling
Bloomberg: TRORAG Index

internet
Details of the market price and Net Asset Value of the

Ordinary shares can be found an the Company's website
at waan irproparty.com.

Shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form
can check their holdings with the Registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PLC, via wacomputarshare.com,
Please note that te gain access to your details on the
Computershare site you will need the holder reference
number stated on the top left hand comer of your

share certificate.

Disabiity Act

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents
issued by the Company are-available from the Company

Secretary. If needed, copies can be made available in

a variety of formats, including Braille, audio tape or larger

type as appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare investor
Services PLC, which has installed textphones to allow
speech and hearing impaired pecple who have their own
textphone to contact them directly, without the need for
an intermediate operator, by dialling 6870 702 0005,
Spedially trained operators are available during normal
business hours to answer queries via this service.

Alternatively, if you prefer to go through a “typetalk’
operator (provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf
People) you sheuld dial 18007 followed by the number
you wish to dial,




General Shareholder Information

continued

Nominee Share Code

Where netification has been pravided in advance, the
Comparty will arrange for copies of shareholder
communicaticns to be provided to the operatars of
nominee accounts. Nominee investors may attend general
meetings and speak at meetings when invited to do so by
the Chairman,

CGT Base Cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of 2 shareholder's holding
of Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder's capttal
gains tax base cost of the conversion to Sigma shares in
2007 and the redesignation to Ordinary shares in 2012
should be considered.

in respect of the conversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with KM Revenue & Custorms ("HMRC") to
base the apporticnment of the capital gains tax base cost
on the propertion of Ordinary shares that were converted
by a shareholder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, if an Qrdinary shareholder converted 20% of
their existing Ordinary shares intc Sigma shares on 25 July
2007, the capital gains tax base cost of the new Sigma
shares acquired would be equal to 20t of the original
capital gains tax base cost of the Grdinary shares that they
held pre-conversion. The base cost of their remaining
holding of Ordinary shares would then be 8026 of the
original capital gains tax base cost of their Ordinary shares
held pre-conversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into
Ordinary shares in December 2012, a further
shareholder's agreement was reached with HVRC that

a shareholders capital gains tax base cost in their new
Ordinary shares should be equivalent to their capital gains
base cost in the pre-existing Sigma shares (Le. their capital
gains base cost under the existing agreament if
applicable).

If in doubt as to the consequences of this agreement
with HMRC, shareholders should consult with their own
professional advisors.




Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market Purchases

The shares of TR Property Investment Trust plc are listed
and traded on the Londan Stock Exchange, Investors may
purchase shares through their stockbroker, bank or other
financial intermediary.

Ho'aing shares in Certificatad Form

Investors may hold their investment in certiticated form.
Cur registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service
which enables investors to buy and sell shares quickly and
easily cnline without a broker or the need to open

a trading account. Alternatively the Investor Centre allows
investors to manage portfolios quickly and securely,
update details and view balances without annual charges.
Further details are available by contacting Computershare
on 0370 707 1355 or visit wacomputershara.com,

TR Property Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders
the opportunity to purchase further shares in the company
through the Dividend Re-investrment Plan ("DRIP")
through the registrar, Computershare, Shareholders can
obtain further information on the DRIP through their
secure website waw investorcentre.co.uk, ar by phoning
0Z70 707 1694. Charges do apply. Please note that to
gain access to your details or register for the DRIP on the
Computershare site you will nead the holder reference
number statad on the top left hand comer of your share
certificate.

Saving Schemes, SAS anc otner pians

A number of banks and wealth management organisations
provide Savings Schemes and 15As through which UK
clients can invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc,

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing and
other fees for operating the accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditions provided by these
companies and ensure that the charges best suit their
planned investrnent profile. Most schemes carry annual
charges but these vary between provider and product.
Where dealing charges apply, in sorme cases these are
applied as a percentage of funds invested and others as
a flat charge. The optimum way te hold the shares will be
different for each investor depending upon the frequency
and size of investments to be made.

Details are given below of two providers offering shares in
TR Property investment Trust, but there are many other
options.

Alliance Trust Savings

Alliance Trust provide and administer a range of seif-select
investment plans, including tax-advantaged 15As and SIPPs
{Sel-Invested Pension Plans) and also Investment Plans
and First Steps, an Investment Plan for Chiidren. For more
informaticn Alliance Trust can be contacted on

01382 573 737, or visit wanv.aiancetrstsavings.co.uk,

Investers in TR Property through the ATS Investmant Plan
and 15A receive all shareholder communications. A voting
instruction form is provided to fecilitate voting at general
meeatings of the Company.

F&C Asset Management Limited (“F&C")

F&C offer a number of Private Investor Plans, Investment
Trust and Junior 1SAs and Children’s Investment Plans.
[nvestments can be made as lump sums cr through
regular savings. For mare information see inside the back
cover. FRC can be contacted on 0800 136 420, or visit
wean fandec.co.uk,

Please remember that the value of your investiments and
any income from them may go down as well as up. Past
performance is not a guide to future performance. You
may not get back the amount that you invest. If you are in
any doubt as t¢ the suitability of a plan or any investment
available within a plan, please take professional advice,

Saving Scnemes and 15As transerred from
BN Paridas

in 2012 BNP Panbas closed down the part of their business
that operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs. Investors were
given the choice of transferring their schemes to Alliance
Trust Savings ("ATS™} or to a provider of their own choice,

or to close their accounts and sell the holdings.

Hinvestors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Panbas, their accounts were transferred 1o ATS.

Any questions regarding accounts transferred to ATS
should be directed to ATS on 01382 573 737




Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

continued

Share Fraud and boiler room scams

Shareholders in a number of Investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are
informed of an opportunity to sell their shares as the
company is subject to a takeover bid. This 1s not true and
is an attempt to defraud shareholders. The share fraud
also seeks payment of a “commission” by shareholders to
the parties carying out the fraud.

Shareholders should remain aleit to this type of scam and
treat with suspicion any contact by telephone offering an
attractive investment opportunity, such as a premium price
for your shares, or an attempt to convince you that
payrment is required in order to release a settlement for
your shares. These frauds may alsc offer to sell your
shares in companies which have little or na value or may
offer you bonus shares. These so called "boiler room”®
scams can also involve an altempt to obtain your personal
and/or banking information with which to commit identity
fraud.

The caller may be friendly and reassuring or they may take
a maore urgent tong, encouraging you to act quickly
othenwise you could lose maney or miss out on a deal,

If you have been contacted by an unauthonsed firm
regarding your shares the FCA would like to hear from you.
You can report an unauthorised firm using the FCA helpline
on 0800 111 6768 or by visiting their website, which also
has other useful information, at www.fca.org.uk.

If you receive any unsolicited investment advice make
sure you get the correct name of the person and
organisation. If the calls persist, hang up. if you deal with
an unauthorised firm, you will not be eligible to receive
payment under the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme.

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager
would never make unsolicited telephone calls of
such a nature to shareholders.




How to Invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through one of the savings plans run by

BMO.

BMO Investment Trust 154

You ¢an usa your ISA affowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 far the
2019/20 tax year with 2 lump sum from £500 or
regular savings from £50 a manth per Trust. You
can also transfer any existing 15As to us whilst
maintaining tha tax benefits.

BMO Junior 1SA (H3A)*

You can invest up to £4,358 for the tax yaar
2019/20 from £500 lump sum or £30 a month
per Trust, or a combination of bath. Plaase nate, if
your child already has 2 Child Trust Fund (CTF),
then you cannot opan a separate HSA, howevar you
can transfer the existing CTF (held either with BMO
or another pravidar) to a BMO JISA.

BMO Child Trust Fuad (CTF)*

if your child has a CTF you can invest up to £4,368
for the 2013,/20 tax year, from £100 lump sum or
£25 a month per Trust, or a combination of both. You
can also transfar a CTF from ancthar providerto 2
BMO CTF. Please note, the CTF has been replaced by
the JiSA and is only available to investors who
already hold a CTF.

BMO Genaral Invesiment Account {GIA}

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of
Investrment Trusts. Thers are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£500 lump sum or £50 a maenth per Trust. You can
also maka additional fump sum top-ups at any time
from £230 per Trust.

BMO Junior Investment Account (1A)

This is a fiexible way to save for a child in our rangs
of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and the plan can 2asily be sat up
under bere trust (where the child is notad as the
ben=ficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish
to retain control over the investment, Investments
can be made from a £250 lump sum or £25 a
moenth per Trust. You can also make additional lump
surn top-ups at any time from £100 per Trust.

*Tha CTF and NISA accounts are opened in the child's name and they
have accass to the money at age 18. **Calls may be recorded or
monitored for raining and quality purposes.

BMO 9

BMO Asset Management Limited

Charges
Annual managernent charges and other charges apply according to the type
of plan.

Annual account charge

ISA: £60+VAT

GIA: £40+VAT

JISA/NA/CTF: £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
{in addition to any annual subscription imits).

Dealing charges
15A: 0.2%
GIA/NA/IISA: postal instructions £12, online instructions £8 per Trust.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits for
the GiA, JIA and H5A.

There are no dealing charges on a CTF but a switching charge of £25
applies if more than two switches are carried out in one year.

Govemment stamp duty of 0.5% also applies on the purchase of shares
(where applicable).

There may be additional charges made if you transfer a plan to another
provider or transfer the shares from your plan.

The velue of investments can go down as well as up and you may net get
back your original investment. Tax benefits depend on your individual
circumstances and tax allowances and rules may change. Please ensure
youi have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant
Key Features documents before investing. For regulatory purposes, please
ensure you have read the Pre-sales cost disclosures related to the product
you are applying for, and the relevant Key Information Documents (KIDs)
for the investment trusts you are wanting to invest into.

How to Invest
To open a new BMO plan, apply online at bmogam.com/apply

Naote, this is not available if you are transferring an existing plan with another
provider to BMO, or if you are applying for a new plan in more than one
name.

New Customers

Call: 0800 136 420** (8.30 am — 5.30 pm, weakdays)
Email: info@bmogam.com

Existing Plan Holdars
Calt: 0345 600 3030** {(3.00 am — 5.00 pm, weskdays)

Email: investor.enquiries@bmogam.com
By post: BMO Administration Centre

PO Box 11114

Chelmsford

CM3I3 200G

You can also invest in the trust through cniine dealing platforms for private
investors that offer share dealing and 15As. Companies include:

Alliance Trust Savings, Barclays Stockbrokers, Halifax,
Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank,
Selftrade, The Share Centre

0345 500 3030, 900 am - 300 pm, weekdays, clls may be recorded or monitored for training and quaiity purposes.
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